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Introduction 
 
 
The State Auditor’s Office completed accreditation reviews of five higher 
education institutions’ fiscal year 2012 financial statements: 
 
 Angelo State University. 

 
 Midwestern State University. 

 
 Texas A&M University, including Texas A&M University at Galveston. 

 
 Texas A&M Health Science Center. 

 
 Texas Woman’s University. 
 
Those reviews are performed to comply with the accreditation reaffirmation 
requirements of the Southern Association of Colleges and Schools. The financial 
statements included in this document were prepared by the higher education 
institutions, but they include the following documents issued by the State 
Auditor’s Office: 
 
 Independent Accountant’s Review Report.  
 
 A management letter.  
 
A review includes primarily applying analytical procedures to an institution’s 
financial data and making inquiries of institution personnel. A review is 
substantially less in scope than an audit, the objective of which is to express an 
opinion regarding the financial statements as a whole. Accordingly, the State 
Auditor’s Office did not express such opinions. 
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Angelo State University 
Statement of Net Assets 
For the Fiscal Year Ended August 31, 2012 
(See Independent Accountant’s Report on Page 1) 

 
ASSETS       
  Current Assets     
    Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 3) $ 38,752,068  
    Restricted:     
      Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 3)   (706,923) 
      Legislative Appropriations   4,690,735  
    Receivables, Net of Allowances:     
      Federal (Note 14)   20,929,780  
      Accounts Receivable   1,053,823  
      Gifts   436,190  
      Student Receivables   9,333,243  
    Due from Other State Entities (Note 6)   143,185  
    Consumable Inventories   257,226  
    Merchandise Inventories   3,660  
    Prepaid Expenses   5,933,817  
    Loans and Contracts   770,445  
  Total Current Assets $ 81,597,249  
              
  Non-Current Assets     
    Restricted:     
      Investments (Note 3)   118,281,830  
    Capital Assets (Note 2):     
      Non-Depreciable   43,545,121  
      Depreciable and Amortizable   185,075,807  
        Less: Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization   (102,074,561) 
  Total Non-Current Assets $ 244,828,197  
              
Total Assets   $ 326,425,446  
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LIABILITIES     
  Current Liabilities     
    Payables:     
      Accounts $ 2,110,635  
      Payroll   3,066,084  
    Deferred Revenue   32,487,897  
    Employees' Compensable Leave (Note 4)   281,525  
    Revenue Bonds Payable (Notes 4, 5)    2,595,006  
    Notes and Loans Payable (Note 4)   811,475  
    Funds Held for Others   16,542,532  
    Other Current Liabilities (Note 14)   4,810  
  Total Current Liabilities $ 57,899,964  
              
  Non-Current Liabilities     
    Employees' Compensable Leave (Note 4)   1,776,345  
    Revenue Bonds Payable (Notes 4, 5)   70,790,940  
    Notes and Loans Payable (Note 4)   3,134,958  
    Other Non-Current Liabilities (Note 14)   466,875  
  Total Non-Current Liabilities $ 76,169,118  
              
Total Liabilities $ 134,069,082  
              
NET ASSETS     
  Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt $ 52,267,432  
  Restricted for:     
    Non-Expendable     
      Permanent Funds, True Endowments, Annuities   119,076,428  
    Expendable     
      Capital Projects (HEAF)   2,796,257  
      Other   8,894,499  
  Unrestricted   9,321,748  
Total Net Assets $ 192,356,364  
              
              
              
The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Angelo State University 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets 
For the Fiscal Year Ended August 31, 2012 
(See Independent Accountant’s Report on Page 1) 

 
OPERATING REVENUES     
  Tuition and Fees - Pledged  $ 49,741,129  
    Discounts and Allowances   (9,154,551) 
  Auxiliary Enterprises - Pledged   15,603,265  
    Discounts and Allowances   (2,871,410) 
  Other Sales of Goods and Services - Pledged   1,052,868  
  Federal Revenue   3,966,562  
  State Grant Revenue   4,999,470  
  Other Operating Grant Revenue   680,625  
Total Operating Revenues $ 64,017,958  
            
OPERATING EXPENSES     
  Salaries and Wages   46,375,601  
  Payroll Related Costs   12,220,772  
  Professional Fees and Services    578,193  
  Travel   1,529,681  
  Materials and Supplies   7,323,059  
  Communications and Utilities   4,766,870  
  Repairs and Maintenance     2,829,896  
  Rentals and Leases   606,473  
  Printing and Reproduction   365,837  
  Depreciation and Amortization   6,564,714  
  Bad Debt Expense   249,717  
  Scholarships   5,836,892  
  Other Operating Expenses   18,645,204  
Total Operating Expenses $ 107,892,909  
            
Operating Income (Loss) $ (43,874,951) 
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NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)     
  Legislative Appropriations $ 28,438,916  
  Federal   10,485,568  
  Gifts     1,923,700  
  Interest and Investment Income (Loss)   10,723,926  
  Net Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments   (2,013,674) 
  Interest Expense and Fiscal Charges   (2,736,483) 
  Gain (Loss) on Sale of Capital Assets   (53,139) 
  Other Nonoperating Revenues - Pledged   12,283,152  
  Other Nonoperating Expenses   (11,691,324) 
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) $ 47,360,642  
            
Income (Loss) Before Other Revenues, Expenses, Gains (Losses), and 
Transfers $ 3,485,691  
            
OTHER REVENUES, EXPENSES, GAINS (LOSSES), AND 
TRANSFERS     
  Capital Contributions $ 13,000  
  Capital Appropriations (HEAF)   3,743,027  
  Transfers In from Other State Entities (Note 6)   20,625  
  Transfers Out to Other State Entities (Note 6)   (3,483,242) 
  Legislative Transfers Out (Note 6)   (3,040,311) 
  Legislative Appropriations Lapsed   (1,281) 
Total Other Revenues, Expenses, Gains (Losses), and Transfers $ (2,748,182) 
            
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS $ 737,509  
            
Net Assets, September 1, 2011 $ 191,618,855  
            
NET ASSETS, August 31, 2012 $ 192,356,364  
            
            
            
The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Angelo State University 
Statement of Cash Flows 
For the Fiscal Year Ended August 31, 2012 
(See Independent Accountant’s Report on Page 1) 

 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES     
  Proceeds from Tuition and Fees $ 41,511,729  
  Proceeds from Research Grants and Contracts   10,739,684  
  Proceeds from Loan Programs   370,992  
  Proceeds from Auxiliaries (net)   12,227,495  
  Proceeds from Other Revenues (net)   673,276  
  Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services   (18,000,008) 
  Payments to Employees for Salaries   (46,932,296) 
  Payments to Employees for Benefits   (12,207,765) 
  Payments for Loans Provided   (387,003) 
  Payments for Other Expenses   (23,987,607) 
    Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $ (35,991,503) 
          
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES   
  Proceeds from Legislative Appropriations $ 28,651,067  
  Proceeds from Gifts   1,726,725  
  Proceeds of Transfers from Other Entities   20,625  
  Proceeds from Other Sources (Grants)   10,493,799  
  Payments for Transfers to Other Entities   (1,419,137) 
  Payments for Other Uses   (11,152,559) 
    Net Cash Provided (Used) by Non-Capital Financing Activities   $ 28,320,520  
          
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
  Proceeds from State Appropriations (HEAF) $ 3,743,027  
  Proceeds from Issuance of Capital-Related Debt   57,258,178  
  Payments for Additions to Capital Assets   (10,714,933) 
  Payments of Principal on Capital-Related Debt   (44,331,539) 
  Payments of Interest on Capital-Related Debt   (2,463,902) 
  Payments of Other Costs of Capital-Related Debt   (272,582) 
    Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related Financing Activities $ 3,218,249  
          
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES     
  Proceeds from Sales of Investments $ 7,385,382  
  Proceeds from Interest and Investment Income   10,723,926  
  Payments to Acquire Investments   (7,428,999) 
    Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities $ 10,680,309  
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Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 6,227,575  
          
Cash and Cash Equivalents, September 1, 2011 $ 31,817,570  
          
Cash and Cash Equivalents, August 31, 2012 $ 38,045,145  
          
          
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to      
  Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities     
          
Operating Income (Loss) $ (43,874,951) 
          
Adjustments:     
  Depreciation and Amortization $ 6,564,714  
  Bad Debt Expense   249,717  
  Operating Income and Cash Flow Categories:     
  Changes in Assets and Liabilities:     
    (Increase) Decrease in Receivables   (614,203) 
    (Increase) Decrease in Due from Other Entities   296,362  
    (Increase) Decrease in Inventories   42,197  
    (Increase) Decrease in Prepaid Expenses   453,336  
    (Increase) Decrease in Loans and Contracts   17,173  
    Increase (Decrease) in Payables   (630,816) 
    Increase (Decrease) in Due to Other Entities   (2,000) 
    Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Revenue   1,551,454  
    Increase (Decrease) in Employees' Compensable Leave   13,008  
    Increase (Decrease) in Other Liabilities   (57,494) 
Total Adjustments  $ 7,883,448  
          
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $ (35,991,503) 
          
Non-Cash Transactions     
  Net Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments $ (2,013,674) 
  Donated Capital Assets   13,000  
  Disposal of Capital Assets   (205,807) 
          
          
          
The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Angelo State University 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Fiscal Year Ended August 31, 2012 

 
General Introduction 

These financial statements include a Statement of Net Assets; a Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and 
Changes in Net Assets; a Statement of Cash Flows; and the related Notes to the Financial Statements. 

Reporting Entity 

Angelo State University (University) is considered an Institution of Higher Education of the State of 
Texas, and its financial records comply with state statutes and regulations.  This includes compliance with 
the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts Reporting Requirements for State Institutions of Higher 
Education.  Angelo State University serves the state by offering a wide range of academic programs 
leading to baccalaureates and master’s degrees.  Angelo State University is committed to providing 
educational excellence for Texas. 

The University is a component of the Texas Tech University System (System) and an agency of the State 
of Texas.  The System prepares the consolidated annual financial report that is included in the State’s 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, which is audited by the Texas State Auditor’s Office.   

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Basis of Accounting 

The basis of accounting determines when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in the 
accounts reported in the financial statements.  The accounting and financial reporting treatment 
applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus. 

For financial reporting purposes, the University is considered a special-purpose government engaged 
only in business-type activities.  Accordingly, the University’s financial statements have been 
presented using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  
Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are 
recognized at the time liabilities are incurred.  Operating items are distinguished from non-operating 
items.  Operating revenues and expenses result from providing services or producing and delivering 
goods in connection with the University’s principal ongoing operations.  Operating expenses include 
the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation or amortization on capital 
assets.  The budget is prepared biennially and represents appropriations authorized by the legislature 
and approved by the Governor (the General Appropriations Act).  Unencumbered appropriations are 
generally subject to lapse 60 days after the end of the fiscal year for which they were appropriated. 

The accompanying financial statements were prepared in conformance with generally accepted 
accounting principles as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).  The 
University applies all GASB pronouncements as well as Financial Accounting Standards Board 
(FASB) Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting 
Research Bulletins issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with 
or contradict GASB pronouncements.  The University does not apply FASB pronouncements issued 
after November 30, 1989 in the preparation of the accompanying financial statements. 
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The accompanying financial statements are presented on the basis of funds.  A fund is considered a 
separate accounting entity.  The fund designation for institutions of higher education is a Business 
Type Activity within the Proprietary Fund Type. 

Proprietary Funds, Business Type Activity 

Business type funds are used for activities that are financed through the charging of fees and sales for 
goods or services to the ultimate user.  Institutions of higher education are required to report their 
financial activities as business type because the predominance of their funding comes through charges 
to students, sales of goods and services, and grant revenues. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Short-term highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less are considered 
cash equivalents.  For reporting purposes, this account includes cash on hand, cash in local banks, cash 
in transit, and cash in the Treasury.   

Capital Assets 

Capital assets are categorized as either (1) land and land improvements, (2) facilities and other 
improvements, (3) buildings and building improvements, (4) infrastructure and infrastructure 
improvements, (5) construction in progress, (6) furniture and equipment, (6) vehicles, (7) books, and 
(8) other capital assets.  Non-depreciable capital assets include land and land improvements, 
construction in progress, and other capital assets (artwork).  All other capital asset categories are 
depreciated over the estimated useful life using straight line depreciation. 

Capital Asset Category Useful Life Capitalization Threshold 

Buildings and Building Improvements 11 to 30 years $100,000 

Infrastructure and Infrastructure Improvements 10 to 45 years $500,000 

Furniture and Equipment 3 to 15 years $5,000 

Vehicles 5 to 7 years $5,000 

Books 15 years $0 

 

Capital assets are recorded at cost at the date of acquisition, or, in the case of gifts, at fair value as of 
the date of the gift.  Depreciation of capital assets is charged to operations and accumulated 
depreciation is an offset to the asset book value.    

Restricted Net Assets 

Restricted net assets result when constraints placed on net assets uses either are externally imposed by 
creditors, grantors, contributors, and the like, or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or 
enabling legislation.  Once the stated purpose of the restricted net asset has been fulfilled, any 
remaining funds are unrestricted.   
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Bank Deposits Carrying Amount Bank Balance

Cash in Bank $ 3,776,084 $ 6,410,924
Total Bank Deposits $ 3,776,084 $ 6,410,924

Unrestricted Net Assets 

Unrestricted net assets consist of net assets, which do not meet the definition of the two preceding 
categories.  Unrestricted net assets often have constraints on resources, which are imposed by 
management, but can be removed or modified.  Restricted net assets become unrestricted when the 
stated purpose has been fulfilled.  Financial managers are encouraged to utilize unrestricted net assets 
prior to restricted net assets, when appropriate.   

Note 2: Capital Assets 

 

Note 3: Deposits, Investments, and Repurchase Agreements 

The University is authorized by statute to make investments following “prudent person rule.”  There 
were no significant violations of legal provisions during the period. 

Deposits of Cash in Bank 

As of August 31, 2012, the carrying amount of deposits was $3,776,084 (including Restricted Assets) 
as presented below.  These amounts consist of all cash in local banks and a portion of short-term 
investments.  These amounts are included on the Combined Statement of Net Assets as part of the 
“Cash and Cash Equivalents” and “Securities Lending Collateral” accounts.  As of August 31, 2012, 
the total bank balance for Governmental and Business-Type Activities was $6,410,924. 

 

 

Balance 
9/1/2011 Adjustments

Completed 
Construction 
in Progress Additions Deductions

Balance 
8/31/2012

Non-Depreciable and Non-Amortizable Assets:
Land and Land Improvements $ 2,554,756 $ $ $ $ $ 2,554,756
Construction in Progress 31,661,488 (26,140) (417,151) 9,362,086 40,580,283
Other Capital Assets (includes Museum and Art) 356,392 53,690 410,082

Total Non-Depreciable Assets $ 34,572,636 $ (26,140) $ (417,151) $ 9,415,776 $ 0 $ 43,545,121

Depreciable and Amortizable Assets:
Buildings and Building Improvements $ 152,124,695 $ $ 417,151 $ $ $ 152,541,846
Infrastructure 5,286,500 5,286,500
Facilities and Other Improvements 6,993,141 6,993,141
Furniture and Equipment 9,410,561 1,141,996 (161,849) 10,390,708
Vehicles, Boats, and Aircraft 1,498,233 65,661 (44,796) 1,519,098
Other Capital Assets (includes software) 8,287,489 109,325 (52,300) 8,344,514

Total Depreciable and Amortizable Assets at Historical Cost $ 183,600,619 $ 0 $ 417,151 $ 1,316,982 $ (258,945) $ 185,075,807

Less Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization for:
Buildings and Building Improvements $ (75,325,359) $ $ $ (4,945,819) $ $ (80,271,178)
Infrastructure (1,953,535) (179,618) (2,133,153)
Facilities and Other Improvements (4,622,534) (310,436) (4,932,970)
Furniture and Equipment (5,766,711) (852,384) 161,011 (6,458,084)
Vehicles, Boats, and Aircraft (1,194,571) (79,981) 44,796 (1,229,756)
Other Capital Assets (includes software) (6,852,944) (196,476) (7,049,420)

Total Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization $ (95,715,654) $ 0 $ 0 $ (6,564,714) $ 205,807 $ (102,074,560)
Depreciable and Amortizable Assets, Net $ 87,884,965 $ 0 $ 417,151 $ (5,247,732) $ (53,138) $ 83,001,246

Capital Assets, Net $ 122,457,601 $ (26,140) $ 0 $ 4,168,044 $ (53,138) $ 126,546,367
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Cash and Cash Equivalents 

As of August 31, 2012, the carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents was $38,045,145 as 
presented below. 

 

The University’s TexPool investment of $30,089,020 is valued using the net asset value per share 
methodology and is exposed to minimal credit risk.  TexPool and TexPool Prime are rated at AAAm 
by Standard & Poor’s.  TexPool investments consist exclusively of U.S. Government securities, 
repurchase agreements collateralized by U.S. Government securities, and AAA-rated no load money 
market mutual funds.   

Investments 

As of August 31, 2012, the value of long-term investments is $118,281,830.  The University 
participates in the Texas Tech University System (System) long-term investment fund.  The System 
issues separate annual financial reports for the year ended August 31, 2012.  The foreign currency and 
credit risks for investments in the System’s Long-term Investment Fund are disclosed separately in the 
System’s annual financial report.  The fair value of the University’s portion of the Long-Term 
Investment Fund is $111,431,677.  Additionally, the Carr Trust’s mineral interests of $6,837,837 are 
reported at historical cost, a value determined during estate settlement negotiations with the Internal 
Revenue Service, when the mineral interests were transferred to the University in 1980 and 1989.  
Additional disclosures are included in Note 9.  Non-current restricted investments are also held and 
presented below.   

 

  

Composition of Cash and Cash Equivalents Carrying Amount
Cash on Hand $ 14,173
Cash in State Treasury 879,131
Reimbursement Due from Treasury 3,286,737
Total Bank Deposits (per above) 3,776,084
Other Cash Equivalents 30,089,020
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 38,045,145

Non-Current Assets, Restricted Investments
Mineral Interest $ 6,837,834
Collaterilized Mortgage Obligations 1,124
Long Term Investment Fund 111,431,677
Fiduciary Cash and Equivalents 11,196

Total Investments per Statement of Net Assets $ 118,281,830
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Note 4: Summary of Long-Term Liabilities 

 

Employees’ Compensable Leave 

Employees’ Compensable Leave Balances represent the liability that becomes ‘due’ upon the 
occurrence of relevant events such as resignation, retirements, and uses of leave balances by covered 
employees.  Liabilities are reported separately as either current or noncurrent in the Statement of Net 
Assets.  GASB Statement No. 16, Accounting for Compensated Absences, establishes the standards of 
accounting and reporting for compensated absences (i.e., vacation, unpaid overtime, and sick leave) by 
State entities. 

Substantially all full-time University employees earn annual leave in the amount of 8 to 21 hours per 
month depending upon the respective employee’s years of state employment.  State law permits 
employees to carry accrued leave forward from one fiscal year to another fiscal year with a maximum 
of 532 hours for those employees with 35 or more years of state service.  Eligible part-time 
employees’ annual leave accrual rate and maximum carryover are proportional to the number of hours 
appointed to work.  Employees with at least six months of state service who terminate their 
employment are entitled to payment for all accumulated annual leave.  Expenditures for accumulated 
annual leave balances are recognized in the period paid or taken in governmental fund types. For these 
fund types, the liability for unpaid benefits is recorded in the Statement of Net Assets. An expense and 
liability for proprietary fund types are recorded in the proprietary fund as the benefits accrue to 
employees. 

Sick leave, the accumulation of which is unlimited, is earned at the rate of eight hours per month and 
is paid only when an employee is off due to illness or to the estate of an employee in the event of his 
or her death.  The maximum sick leave that may be paid to an employee’s estate is one-half of the 
employee’s accumulated entitlement or 336 hours, whichever is less.  The University’s policy is to 
recognize the cost of sick leave when paid, and the liability is not shown in the financial statements 
because experience indicates that the expense for sick leave will be minimal.  Eligible part-time 
employees’ sick leave accrual rate is proportional to the number of hours appointed to work. 

Bonds Payable 

Revenue Bonds 
Revenue bonds are generally accounted for in the proprietary funds.  The bonds payable are reported 
at par less unamortized discount or plus unamortized premiums.  Interest expense is reported on the 
accrual basis, with amortization of discount or premium.  Payables are reported separately as either 
current or noncurrent in the statement of net assets. 

See Note 5 for detailed information on bond liability balances and transactions. 

Balance 
9/1/2011 Additions Deductions

Balance 
8/31/2012

Amounts 
Due Within 
One Year

Employees’ Compensable Leave 2,044,862 281,525 268,517 2,057,870 281,525
Revenue Bonds Payable 32,160,000 43,513,878 2,287,933 73,385,945 2,595,006
Notes and Loans Payable 32,363,673 13,744,299 42,161,539 3,946,433 811,475
     Total $ 66,568,535 $ 57,539,702 $ 44,717,989 $ 79,390,248 $ 3,688,005
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Notes and Loan Payable 

On October 21, 1993, the governing board of the Texas Tech University System established a 
Revenue Financing System for the purpose of providing a financing structure for all revenue supported 
indebtedness of Texas Tech University System components.  The source of revenues for debt service 
issued under the Revenue Financing System includes pledged general tuition, pledged tuition fee, 
pledged general fee and any other revenues, income, receipts, rentals, rates, charges, fees, including 
interest or other income, and balances lawfully available to Texas Tech University System 
components.  Excluded from the revenues described above are amounts received under Article 7, 
Section 17 of the Constitution of the State of Texas, general revenue funds appropriated by the 
Legislature except to the extent so specifically appropriated, encumbered housing revenues, and 
practice plan funds. 

The University participates in the Revenue Financing System commercial paper program, which is 
comprised of variable rate demand notes with a maximum maturity of 270 days.  The issuance of 
commercial paper notes may not exceed, in aggregate, the principal amount of $150,000,000.  In 
practice, the System rolls, pays off, and/or issues new commercial paper at each maturity.  
Commercial paper assists as interim funding until long term bonds are approved and issued or 
revenues and gifts are received to retire the debt. 

Additional System Revenue Financing System Commercial Paper Notes, Series A in the amount 
$13,744,299 were issued during the fiscal year to finance various University capital projects and notes 
in the amount of $42,161,539 matured.  The outstanding balance at August 31, 2012, is $3,946,433 
with an average interest rate of .13% for the outstanding issues; however, the current amount due is 
$811,475.  The System will provide liquidity support for $150,000,000 in commercial paper notes by 
utilizing available funds of the System in lieu of or in addition to bank liquidity support. 

Note 5: Bonded Indebtedness 

The University receives proceeds from revenue bonds issued and held by the System to support capital 
projects of the System and its institutions.  These proceeds are recorded as proceeds from the System 
on the University’s books.  The University disburses funds to the System for payments of principal 
and interest related to the University’s share of bond proceeds.  These disbursements are recorded as 
principle payments and interest to the System, decreasing the liability on the University’s books.  At 
August 31, 2012, the University had outstanding bonds payable of $73,385,945.  All bonds issued by 
the System are defined as revenue bonds.  As such, the revenues of the System, including the 
University, are pledged for repayment of the bonds.  Segment information requirements are not 
applicable, due to the bond indentures’ lack of specifically identifiable activities and separate 
accounting requirements imposed by an external party. 
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Revenue Financing System Refunding and Improvement Bonds, 14th Series 2012A 

Purpose:  For refunding of $41,380,000 of Revenue Financing System 
Commercial Paper Notes Series A and a partial current refunding of 
$355,000 of Texas State University System Revenue Financing 
System Bonds Series 2002 representing ASU’s portion.  To provide 
new funding for the construction of ASU Plaza Verde Phase I 
Residence Hall and other University capital improvement projects.  

Original Issue Amount: $39,370,000 
Issue Date:  February 1, 2012 
Interest Rates: 2.0% to 5.0% 
Date Range: 2012 through 2041 
Type of Bond: Revenue 
Changes in Debt: $39,370,000 issued, $765,000 retired   

Revenue Financing System Refunding and Improvement Bonds, 12th Series 2009 

Purpose: For advanced refunding of ASU portion of Texas State University System 
TRB bonds and construction of Centennial Village.

Original Issue Amount: $35,630,000
Issue Date: March 3, 2009 
Interest Rates: 3.00% to 5.25% Maturity
Date Range: 2009 through 2038 
Type of Bond: Revenue
Changes in Debt: $0 issued, $4,785,000 retired 

 

 

Prior to September 1, 2007, all bonded indebtedness for Angelo State University was issued through 
the Texas State University System (TSUS) Revenue Financing System, of which the Texas State 
University System Administration and each of their components were members.  The TSUS Board of 
Regents cross-pledged all lawfully available funds (revenues) and balances attributable to any TSUS 
RFS member against the bonded indebtedness of all other TSUS RFS members for payment on the 

Description Year  Principal  Interest Total
Texas Tech System Issues 2013 $ 2,365,000     $ 3,248,631     5,613,631

2014 2,370,000     3,177,406     5,547,406
2015 1,645,000     3,109,231     4,754,231
2016 2,020,000     3,034,456     5,054,456
2017 2,095,000     2,948,781     5,043,781

2018-2022 9,170,000     13,331,331    22,501,331
2023-2027 10,600,000    11,037,094    21,637,094
2028-2032 13,310,000    8,061,191     21,371,191
2033-2037 15,925,000    4,410,413     20,335,413
2038-2041 9,860,000     869,319        10,729,319

Total $ 69,360,000    $ 53,227,853    122,587,853 

Unamortized premium 4,025,945     

Debt Service Requirements
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Business-Type
Activities

Pledged Revenue Required for Future Principal and Interest on Existing Revenue Bonds $122,587,853
Term of Commitment Year Ending 08/31 2041
Percentage of Revenue Pledged 100.0%
Current year Pledged Revenue $72,356,831
Current year Principal and Interest Paid $4,609,964
Pledged revenue sources:
Business-type activities - Operating income from current unrestricted funds

Parity Debt.  Effective September 1, 2007, House Bill 3564 (80th Legislature, Regular Session) 
transferred governance of Angelo State University to the Texas Tech University System.  For the debt 
issued by the TSUS, the bonds payable are reported by TSUS.  ASU will repay the debt that was 
issued on its behalf; consequently, the following debt amortization schedule is presented below for 
informational purposes only. 

 

In fiscal year 2012, $353,141 of Texas State University System debt on behalf of Angelo State 
University was refunded and new debt was financed by the Texas Tech University System on behalf 
of Angelo State University.  The refunded bonds were Angelo State University’s portion of the Texas 
State University system 2002 series of bonds.  This refunding resulted in a cash flow increase of 
$38,141 and an economic gain of $64,671. 

A portion of the debt represents Tuition Revenue Bonds historically funded by the Texas Legislature 
through General Revenue Appropriations.  The institution was appropriated $4,003,574 during the 
current fiscal year for Tuition Revenue Bond debt service.  The institution expects future Legislative 
appropriations to meet debt service requirements for Tuition Revenue Bonds. 

Pledged Future Revenues 

GASB Statement No. 48, Sales and Pledges of Receivables and Future Revenues and Intra-Entity 
Transfers of Assets and Future Revenues, makes a basic distinction between sales of receivable and 
future revenues, on the one hand, and the pledging of receivables of future revenues to repay a 
borrowing (a collateralized borrowing), on the other.  The following table provides the pledged future 
revenue information for Angelo State University’s revenue bonds:  

 

Description Year Principal Interest Total
Texas State System Issues 2013 $ 2,861,199  $ 1,662,354  $ 4,523,553

2014 3,059,602 1,519,294 4,578,896
2015 2,746,440 1,366,314 4,112,754

2016-2020 11,374,833 4,841,034 16,215,867
2021-2025 5,570,000 2,606,500 8,176,500
2026-2030 4,425,000 1,488,000 5,913,000
2031-2035 3,210,000 326,500 3,536,500

Totals $ 33,247,074  $ 13,809,995  $ 47,057,070

Debt Service Requirements Attributable
To Angelo State University
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Note 6: Interagency Balances / Activity 

The University experienced routine transfers with other state agencies, which were consistent with the 
activities of the state entity making the transfer.  Repayment of inter-entity balances will occur within 
one year from the date of the financial statement.  As of August 31, 2012, the University has the 
following types of transactions among state entities: 

 Transfers: Legally required transfers that are reported when incurred as ‘Transfers In’ by the 
receiving state entity and as ‘Transfers Out’ by the disbursing state entity. 

 Reimbursements: Reimbursements are repayments from state entities responsible for 
expenditures or expenses to the state entity that made the actual payment.  Reimbursements of 
expenditures, made by one entity for another, are recorded as expenditures by the reimbursing 
entity and as a reduction of expenditures by the reimbursed entity.  Reimbursements are not 
displayed in the financial statements. 

 Inter-entity receivables and payables: Inter-entity loans are reported as inter-entity receivables 
and payables.  If repayment is due during the current year or soon thereafter, it is classified as 
‘Current, repayment for two (or more) years is classified as ‘Non-Current’. 

 Inter-entity Sales and Purchases: Charges or collections for services rendered by one state 
entity to another are recorded as revenues of the receiving entity and expenditures or expenses 
of the disbursing entity.    

The composition of the University’s Inter-entity receivables and payables as of August 31, 2012 is 
presented as follows: 
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DUE FROM/TO OTHER STATE ENTITIES

Entity

Due from 
Other State 

Entities
Due to Other 
State Entities Purpose

CPRIT $ 52,193 $ Accruals

Texas Tech University 7,083 Accruals

Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board 83,909 Accruals

$ 143,185 $ 0

TRANSFERS IN FROM/OUT TO OTHER STATE ENTITIES

Entity

Transfers In 
from Other 

State Entities

Transfers Out  
to Other State 

Entities Purpose

Texas State University System $ $ (2,186,401) Bond payments

Texas Tech University System (255,931) System Office operations

Texas Tech Foundation, Inc 20,625 Presidential Awards

Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board (525,091) B-On-Time Loans

Texas Pub Fin Auth (515,819) TPFA

$ 20,625 $ (3,483,242)

LEGISLATIVE TRANSFERS IN/OUT

Entity
Legislative 

Transfers In
Legislative 

Transfers Out Purpose

Texas State University System $ $ (2,919,683) Bond payments

Texas Tech University System (120,628) System Office operations

$ 0 $ (3,040,311)
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Note 7: Contingent Liabilities 

Unpaid Claims and Lawsuits 

At August 31, 2012, certain lawsuits and claims were pending against the University.  The liability 
with respect to litigation and other claims asserted against the University are not likely to have a 
material effect on the University. 

Note 8: Risk Financing and Related Insurance 

The State provides coverage for unemployment compensation benefits from appropriations made to 
other State agencies for University employees. The current General Appropriations Act provides that 
University must reimburse General Revenue Fund-Consolidated, from University appropriations, one-
half of the unemployment benefits paid for former and current employees.  The Comptroller of Public 
Accounts determines the proportionate amount to be reimbursed from each appropriated fund type. 
The University must reimburse the General Revenue Fund one hundred percent of the cost for 
workers’ compensation and for any employees paid from funds held in local bank accounts.  The 
unemployment plan is on a pay-as-you-go basis, in which no assets are set aside to be accumulated for 
the payment of claims.  No material outstanding claims are pending at August 31, 2012. 

The University, by state law, is required to be a participant in the Worker’s Compensation Program 
and Pool managed by the State Office of Risk Management (SORM).  The University is assessed fees 
by SORM based upon claims cost, claim count, payroll and FTE.  Total payments to SORM for fiscal 
year 2012 totaled $88,038.  The State Office of Risk Management pays all workers’ compensation 
claims.  The Worker’s Compensation pool for the fiscal year was funded by a .25 percent charge on 
non-educational and general gross payroll for paying its proportionate share of the SORM assessment. 

Due to the diverse risk exposure of the University, the insurance portfolio contains a comprehensive 
variety of coverage.  Texas statutes require participation of all state agencies in directors and officers 
liability, employee blanket bond, and property and casualty programs.  In addition to these basic 
policies, the University’s Department of Risk Management establishes guidelines in risk assessment, 
risk avoidance, risk acceptance, and risk transfer. 

 The auxiliary buildings and contents are insured for replacement value.  Each loss incident is 
subject to a $100,000 deductible. 

 University automobiles and leased vehicles new to 5 years old are insured for general liability 
and physical damage.  Any automobiles or leased vehicles six years old or older are insured 
for general liability only. 

 Each loss incident is subject to a $1,000 deductible. 

Note 9: The Financial Reporting Entity 

Houston Harte Foundation Available 

The Houston Harte Foundation is a non-profit organization with the sole purpose of supporting 
educational and other activities of the University. The assets of the foundation were managed under a 
Fiduciary Agreement by the Wells Fargo Bank, San Angelo, Texas.  The Foundation remitted 
unrestricted gifts of $35,000 to the University during the year ended August 31, 2012.  Since the assets 
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were managed externally, the Foundation does not have any employees.  The only services provided 
by the University are the keeping of the minutes. 

In September 2011, the Foundation began the process of dissolving its assets and distributing those 
assets to the ASU Foundation, Inc. for the use and benefit of Angelo State University.  The dissolution 
was completed in June of 2012 and $ 2,389,157 in assets was distributed to the ASU Foundation, Inc. 

Robert A Carr and Nona K. Carr Scholarship Foundation 

On September 1, 1980 the Robert G. Carr Estate transferred certain assets totaling $6,815,644.46 to 
the Board of Regents, Texas State University System, trustees of the Robert G. Carr and Nona K. Carr 
Scholarship Foundation that was established for the benefit of Angelo State University under 
provisions of the Last Will and Testament of Robert G. Carr whose death occurred on March 17, 1978.  
This principal fund included $2,986,880 in cash, and $3,828,765 in oil, gas, and mineral properties. 

On September 1, 1989 the Nona K. Carr Estate transferred certain assets totaling $5,098,288 to the 
Board of Regents, Texas State University System, trustees of the Robert G. Carr and Nona K. Carr 
Scholarship Fund that was established for the benefit of Angelo State University under provision of 
the last will and testament of Robert G. Carr.  Nona K. Carr died on June 17, 1987.  This principal 
fund included $2,089,219 in cash and $3,009,069 in oil, gas, and mineral properties. 

Prior to the 2012 fiscal year, the Foundation received payments for oil and gas royalties, oil and gas 
lease rental and bonuses, and oil and gas payment commissions totaling $95,177,583 and realized an 
appreciation on investments of $1,879,050.  During the 2012 fiscal year, the Foundation received 
payments for oil and gas royalties, oil and gas lease rentals and bonuses, and oil and gas payment 
commissions, and refunds totaling $7,385,382. 

All principal fund cash that is received by the Foundation is transferred to Wells Fargo Bank, San 
Angelo as master custodian.  All principal is invested in the Long Term Investment Fund (LTIF), 
which is managed by the Texas Tech University System. 

The value at which oil, gas, and other mineral properties is carried on the financial statements is the 
value that was agreed to in the settlement with the Internal Revenue Service of the Federal Estate Tax 
Liability of the Estate of Robert G. Carr.  No provision has been made for depletion of these 
properties.  

The LTIF spending distribution is transferred to the Angelo State University Robert G. Carr and Nona 
K. Carr Scholarship and expense funds.  During the 2012 fiscal year, the spending distribution 
received from the investment agent totaled $4,751,877.  Of this amount, $325,000 was transferred by 
the trustees to the Foundation Trust Estate Expense Account for the payment of salaries and wages and 
other operating expenses of the foundation.  Disbursements from the expense account for the 2012 
fiscal year totaled $342,809.  $4,424,667 was transferred to the Angelo State University Robert G. 
Carr and Nona K. Carr Scholarship Foundation Account.  Depository interest of $2,210 was 
transferred.  During the 2012 fiscal year, the scholarship account earned interest totaling $14. 

Total scholarships awarded prior to the 2012 fiscal year amounted to $69,709,265.  During the 2012 
fiscal year, scholarship awards amounted to $5,971,139.  It is estimated that the amount of annual 
scholarship awards from the scholarship fund will total $4,500,000 in fiscal year 2013. 
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The records of the Foundation are audited annually by the firm of Oliver, Rainey & Wojtek, LLP, San 
Angelo, Texas. 

Other Organizations 

The ASU Alumni Association contributed $0 to the University during the 2012 fiscal year for 
operation of the Alumni office.  The University paid $55,459 above the contributed amount for 
maintaining the records on the students who have graduated from the University. 

The ASU Foundation is a non-profit organization with the sole purpose of supporting educational and 
other activities of the University.  The Foundation solicits donations and acts as Coordinator of Gifts 
made by other parties.  The association expended $119,335 on behalf of the University during the year 
ended August 31, 2012.  During the year, the University furnished limited staff assistance to the 
association. 

Note 10: Employee Retirement Plans 

The State of Texas has joint contributory retirement plans for substantially all of its employees.   

Teacher Retirement System pension plan 

One of the plans in which the University participates is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined 
benefit pension plan administered by the Teacher Retirement System of Texas (TRS 
Plan).  Participating employers in the TRS Plan include public schools, service centers, charter 
schools, and community colleges as well as the State of Texas, which covers employees of colleges, 
universities, medical schools, and certain other state agencies.  Employees of the University are 
members of the TRS Plan if they are employed on a half-time or greater basis, unless they participate 
in the Optional Retirement Program, described below, or are students employed in a position that 
requires student status as a condition of employment. 

Benefits under the TRS Plan are established or amended by the Texas Legislature in state law, as 
provided by Texas Government Code, Chapter 824.  Benefits include retirement and disability 
annuities and death and survivor benefits.  A member is vested after earning five years of creditable 
service.  The normal service retirement is at age 65 with 5 years of credited service or, for members 
who established and maintained membership before September 1, 2007, when the sum of the 
member’s age and years of credited service equals or exceeds 80 years (Rule of 80).  For members 
who established membership on or after September 1, 2007, members must be at least age 60 with at 
least 5 years of credited service to retire under the Rule of 80.  Reduced service retirement is at age 55 
with 5 years of credited service and at any age below 50 with 30 years of credited service.  The 
standard life annuity benefit formula is 2.3 percent of the average of the five highest annual salaries 
multiplied by the years of service credit.  For certain “grandfathered” members, the three highest 
annual salaries are used.  The Teacher Retirement System issues a comprehensive annual financial 
report that includes the TRS Plan.  That report may be obtained by writing to TRS at the Teacher 
Retirement System of Texas, 1000 Red River Street, Austin, Texas 78701-2698, or from the TRS Web 
site at www.trs.state.tx.us. 

Contribution requirements for employees and employers are not actuarially determined but are 
established in the Texas Constitution and pursuant to state law passed by the Texas Legislature each 
biennium.  The state constitution requires the legislature to establish a member contribution rate of not 
less than 6% of the member’s annual compensation and a state contribution rate of not less than 6% 

http://www.trs.state.tx.us/
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and not more than 10% of the aggregate annual compensation of all members of the system during the 
fiscal year.  For the year ended August 31, 2012, the statutorily required contribution rate was 6.40% 
of annual compensation from active plan members and 6.00% of annual compensation from the 
University. 

For the years ended August 31, 2010, 2011, and 2012, the University contributed 100% of the 
following statutorily required employer contributions: 

 

Optional Retirement Program 

The State also established the Optional Retirement Program (ORP), a defined contribution plan for 
certain employees at public higher education institutions.  The ORP is authorized by Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 830, and is administered by the University, subject to policies, practices, 
and procedures developed by the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board to provide greater 
uniformity in the administration of the program.  Participation in the ORP is in lieu of participation in 
the TRS Plan.  The ORP provides for the purchase of annuity contracts and mutual funds through 
companies that provide optional retirement programs for higher education institutions.  Because these 
are individual investment contracts with investment or insurance companies, and future participant 
benefits are based on the performance of the selected investment instruments, neither the State nor the 
University has any liability for investment performance or for retirement commitments beyond the 
required contributions.  Benefits in the ORP vest in a participant after one year of participation. 

State law provides for participant contributions of 6.65 percent of annual compensation and for a 
maximum employer contribution of 8.5 percent of a participant’s annual compensation.  Each 
biennium, the Texas Legislature establishes the State’s share of the employer contribution and permits 
the higher education institutions to contribute an additional amount so that total employer 
contributions do not exceed 8.5 percent.  Depending on the source of funding for the employee’s 
compensation, the University may be required to make the employer contribution in lieu of the State.  
During the year ended August 31, 2012, the required State contribution rate was 6.0 percent and the 
University’s contribution rate was 2.50 percent of participants’ annual compensation for each 
participant whose first date to participate in ORP in lieu of the TRS Plan is prior to September 1, 1995, 
regardless of any break in service (grandfathered) or was .4 percent of participants’ annual 
compensation for each participant whose first date to participate in ORP in lieu of the TRS Plan is on 
or after September 1, 1995 (non-grandfathered). 

For the year ended August 31, 2012, contributions to the ORP were as follows: 

Participant contributions    $1,184,204 
Employer contributions         1,272,449 
Total       $2,456,653 

Note 11: Deferred Compensation 

The following deferred compensation plans are available to University employees: 

2010 2011 2012
Required Contribution Rate 6.64% 6.64% 6.00%
Contributions Required & Made $858,485 $1,034,227 $948,791 
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University employees may elect to defer a portion of their earnings for income tax and investment 
purposes pursuant to authority granted in Texas Government Code, Section 609.001.  The State of 
Texas offers a deferred compensation plan to all state employees, referred to as the TexaSaver 457 
Plan and administered by the Employees Retirement System of Texas.  This plan is in accordance with 
Internal Revenue Code Section 457 and permits employees to defer a portion of their salary until 
future years.  Deferred amounts are invested in approved investment products offered by qualified 
vendors as directed by participating employees.  All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, 
all property and rights purchased with those amounts, and all income attributable to those amounts, 
property, or rights are held in trust for the exclusive benefit of participants and their beneficiaries and 
may not be used for, or diverted to, any other expense, except to defray the reasonable expenses of 
administering the plan.  Neither the State nor the University is liable to a participating employee for 
the diminution in value or loss of all or part of the participating employee’s deferred amounts or 
investment income because of market conditions or the failure, insolvency, or bankruptcy of a 
qualified vendor. 

The University also administers a Tax-Sheltered Annuity Program, created in accordance with Internal 
Revenue Code, Section 403(b).  All employees are eligible to participate.  The Tax-Sheltered Annuity 
Program is a private plan, and the deductions, purchased investments, and earnings attributed to each 
employee’s 403(b) plan are held by vendors chosen by the employee.  The vendors may be insurance 
companies, banks, or approved non-bank trustees such as mutual fund companies.  The assets of this 
plan do not belong to the University, or the State.  Therefore, none of these entities has a liability 
related to this plan. 

Note 12: Donor-Restricted Endowments 

Pursuant to Texas Property Code Chapter 163, expenditure of endowed funds is not allowed without 
the express consent of the donor.  Most of the University’s endowments are held in perpetuity.  In 
many cases, endowment earnings are expendable for student financial assistance or other purposes as 
designated by the donor.  In other cases, endowment earnings are reinvested. 

Endowment assets are invested predominantly in the Long Term Investment Fund (LTIF).  The LTIF 
has experienced varying performance since its inception.  The cumulative effect of valuation changes 
assignable to endowment fund assets by the University are summarized in the following table: 

 

Note 13: Post-Employment Health Care and Life Insurance Benefits 

Plan Description:  The University contributes to the State Retiree Health Plan (SRHP), a cost-sharing 
multiple-employer defined benefit other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plan administered by the 
Employees Retirement System of Texas (ERS).  The SRHP provides healthcare, life, and dental 
insurance benefits to eligible retired employees of the State, including retirees of participating 
universities, as well as to eligible retirees of other entities as specified in statute.  Eligible participants 
generally are retirees who retired with at least 10 years of service to eligible entities.  The Texas 
Insurance Code, Chapter 1551, assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the 

Donor-Restricted Endowments
Amount of Net 
Appreciation Reported in Net Assets

True Endowments ($1,583,595) Restricted Nonexpendable
Total ($1,583,595)



  

 
Page 23 

ERS board of trustees.  The ERS issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report that 
includes financial statements and required supplementary information for SRHP.  That report may be 
obtained by writing to ERS at Employees Retirement System of Texas, P.O. Box 13207, Austin, Texas 
78711-3207, or from the ERS Web site at www.ers.state.tx.us. 

Funding Policy: The Legislature determines the amount to be appropriated each biennium for the 
employer’s contribution toward retiree benefit costs.  Currently, for retirees who were state employees, 
the State pays 100 percent of eligible retiree health and basic life insurance premiums and 50 percent 
of dependents’ premiums.  The retiree contributes any premium in excess of the employer contribution 
amount.  Employer contributions do not include the cost of any optional life or dental insurance 
benefits.  The table below summarizes the maximum monthly employer contribution toward eligible 
retirees’ health and basic life premium for fiscal year 2012. 

 
Contractually required employer contributions to the plan are currently based on the annual pay-as-
you-go expenses of the SRHP.  The University's contributions to SRHP for the years ended August 31, 
2010, 2011, and 2012, included in amounts reported as Payroll Related Costs, were $1,349,306, 
$1,472,522, and $1,567,472 respectively, which equaled the required contributions each year. 

Note 14: Disaggregation of Receivable and Payable Balances 

 

   

Level of Coverage Amount
Retiree Only  $   458.62 
Retiree and Spouse       721.06 
Retiree and Children       634.34 
Retiree and Family       896.78 

Maximum Monthly Employer Contribution for Retiree OPEB
For the fiscal year ended August 31, 2012

 Amount 
$ 5,422,337

23,861
10,233

15,473,349
$ 20,929,780

$ 4,810
$ 4,810

$ 466,875
$ 466,875

Other Agencies' Funds

Federal Receivable
Federal Receivable Program
Other Instructional & Departmental
Research
Public Services

U.S. Government Grants Refundable

Total Net Federal Receivable

Other Liabilities - Current
Type
Deposits from Students

Other Liabilities - Non-Current
Type

http://www.ers.state.tx.us/
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Texas A&M University, including Texas A&M University at Galveston 
Statement of Net Assets 
August 31, 2012 
(See Independent Accountant’s Report on Page 1) 
 
ASSETS 

    
 

Current Assets 
  

  
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 3) $ 222,828,373  

  
Restricted: 

  
   

Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 3) 
 

22,611,980  

   
Legislative Appropriations 

 
76,077  

  
Receivables, Net of Allowances: 

  
   

Federal (Note 18) 
 

13,297,237  

   
Gifts (Note 18) 

 
21,775,577  

   
Other (Note 18) 

 
58,774,725  

  
Due from Other State Entities (Note 8) 

 
81,832,483  

  
Consumable Inventories 

 
13,422,536  

  
Merchandise Inventories 

 
3,163,325  

  
Loans and Contracts 

 
13,076,965  

  
Other Current Assets 

 
48,275,290  

 
Total Current Assets $ 499,134,568  

       
 

Non-Current Assets 
  

  
Restricted: 

  
   

Investments (Note 3) $ 408,199,196  

  
Gifts Receivable 

 
58,519,674  

  
Investments (Note 3) 

 
847,355,352  

  
Loans and Contracts 

 
18,911,409  

  
Capital Assets (Note 2): 

  
   

Non-Depreciable 
 

138,239,522  

   
Depreciable and Amortizable 

 
2,989,416,309  

    
Less: Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization 

 
(1,655,226,278) 

 
Total Non-Current Assets $ 2,805,415,184  

       Total Assets $ 3,304,549,752  

       LIABILITIES 
  

 
Current Liabilities 

  
  

Payables: 
  

   
Accounts (Note 18) $ 22,634,896  

   
Payroll (Note 18) 

 
44,394,313  

   
Other (Note 18) 

 
8,430,134  

  
Due to Other State Entities (Note 8) 

 
26,475,214  

  
Deferred Revenue 

 
269,649,447  

  
Capital Lease Obligations (Notes 4, 6) 

 
385,536  

  
Employees' Compensable Leave (Note 4) 

 
4,005,797  

  
Funds Held for Others (Note 4) 

 
8,794,229  

  
Other Current Liabilities (Note 4) 

 
10,587,203  

 
Total Current Liabilities $ 395,356,769  

       
 

Non-Current Liabilities 
  

Page 2



  
Due to Other State Entities (Note 8) $ 2,340,088  

  
Capital Lease Obligations (Notes 4, 6) 

 
1,834,227  

  
Employees' Compensable Leave (Note 4) 

 
42,726,695  

  
Other Non-Current Liabilities (Note 4) 

 
19,389,500  

 
Total Non-Current Liabilities $ 66,290,510  

       Total Liabilities $ 461,647,279  

       NET ASSETS 
  

 
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt $ 1,453,240,053  

 
Restricted for: 

  
  

Non-Expendable 
  

   
Permanent Funds, True Endowments, Annuities 

 
223,684,263  

  
Expendable 

  
   

Capital Projects 
 

80,885,333  

   
Education 

 
113,956,425  

   
Term Endowments 

 
65,229,891  

 
Unrestricted 

 
905,906,508  

Total Net Assets $ 2,842,902,473  

       
       
       The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this 
statement. 
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Texas A&M University, including Texas A&M University at Galveston  
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets 
For the Fiscal Year Ended August 31, 2012 
(See Independent Accountant’s Report on Page 1) 
 
OPERATING REVENUES 

  
 

Tuition and Fees - Non-Pledged $ 16,509,989  

 
Tuition and Fees - Pledged 

 
480,056,484  

  
Discounts and Allowances 

 
(105,100,578) 

 
Auxiliary Enterprises - Pledged 

 
178,745,601  

  
Discounts and Allowances 

 
(14,735,468) 

 

Other Sales of Goods and Services - Non-
Pledged 

 
6,161,452  

 
Other Sales of Goods and Services - Pledged 

 
101,883,900  

 
Interest Revenue 

 
1,574,950  

 
Federal Revenue 

 
88,052,461  

 
State Grant Revenue 

 
29,071,885  

 
Other Operating Grant Revenue 

 
103,049,228  

 
Other Operating Revenues 

 
19,270,874  

Total Operating Revenues $ 904,540,778  

      OPERATING EXPENSES 
  

 
Cost of Goods Sold $ 14,796,417  

 
Salaries and Wages 

 
651,340,133  

 
Payroll Related Costs 

 
133,406,489  

 
Professional Fees and Services  

 
71,812,671  

 
Travel 

  
28,986,965  

 
Materials and Supplies 

 
84,629,732  

 
Communications and Utilities 

 
68,127,149  

 
Repairs and Maintenance   

 
51,423,449  

 
Rentals and Leases 

 
20,156,060  

 
Printing and Reproduction 

 
4,176,821  

 
Depreciation and Amortization 

 
112,006,284  

 
Bad Debt Expense 

 
42,148  

 
Interest Expense 

 
17,518  

 
Scholarships 

 
62,003,472  

 
Other Operating Expenses 

 
46,019,907  

Total Operating Expenses $ 1,348,945,215  

      Operating Income (Loss) $ (444,404,437) 

      NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
  

 
Legislative Appropriations $ 299,465,049  

 
Federal Revenue 

 
37,633,142  

 
Gifts 

  
75,991,683  

 
Interest and Investment Income (Loss) 

 
20,911,823  

 
Investing Activities Expense 

 
(2,019,351) 

 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of 
Investments 

 
30,336,366  

 
Land Income 

 
1,082,267  

 
Interest Expense and Fiscal Charges 

 
(217,763) 
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Gain (Loss) on Sale of Capital Assets 

 
112,180  

 
Claims and Judgments 

 
(1,971) 

 
Other Nonoperating Revenues - Non-Pledged 

 
646,379  

 
Other Nonoperating Revenues - Pledged 

 
391,323  

 
Other Nonoperating Expenses 

 
(10,971,971) 

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) $ 453,359,156  

      Income (Loss) Before Other Revenues, Expenses, Gains 
(Losses), and Transfers $ 8,954,719  

      OTHER REVENUES, EXPENSES, GAINS (LOSSES), 
AND TRANSFERS 

  
 

Capital Contributions $ 613,406  

 
Additions to Permanent and Term Endowments 

 
1,525,579  

 
Transfers In from Other State Entities (Note 8) 

 
433,894,430  

 
Transfers Out to Other State Entities (Note 8) 

 
(98,941,119) 

 
Legislative Transfers Out (Note 8) 

 
(6,564,726) 

 
Legislative Appropriations Lapsed 

 
(113) 

Total Other Revenues, Expenses, Gains (Losses), and 
Transfers $ 330,527,457  

      CHANGE IN NET ASSETS $ 339,482,176  

      Net Assets, September 1, 2011 $ 2,504,992,469  
Restatements (Note 13) 

 
(1,572,172) 

Net Assets, September 1, 2011, as Restated $ 2,503,420,297  

      NET ASSETS, August 31, 2012 $ 2,842,902,473  

      
      
      The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this 
statement. 
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Texas A&M University, including Texas A&M University at Galveston  
Statement of Cash Flows 
For the Fiscal Year Ended August 31, 2012 
(See Independent Accountant’s Report on Page 1) 
 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

  
 

Proceeds from Tuition and Fees $ 405,010,302  

 
Receipts from Customers  

 
99,374,474  

 
Proceeds from Research Grants and Contracts 

 
232,494,178  

 
Proceeds from Loan Programs 

 
1,839,119  

 
Proceeds from Auxiliaries 

 
153,597,161  

 
Proceeds from Other Revenues 

 
25,751,747  

 
Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services 

 
(385,243,145) 

 
Payments to Employees for Salaries 

 
(656,380,936) 

 
Payments to Employees for Benefits 

 
(133,791,191) 

 
Payments for Loans Provided 

 
(1,373,691) 

 
Payments for Other Expenses 

 
(62,812,319) 

  
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $ (321,534,301) 

     CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
  

 
Proceeds from Legislative Appropriations $ 304,595,325  

 
Proceeds from Gifts 

 
95,088,418  

 
Proceeds from Endowments 

 
1,525,578  

 
Proceeds of Transfers from Other Entities 

 
129,194,465  

 
Proceeds from Other Grant Revenues 

 
39,033,898  

 
Proceeds from Other Sources 

 
2,823,333  

 
Payments for Transfers to Other Entities 

 
(5,161,801) 

 
Payments for Other Uses 

 
(610,937) 

  
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Non-Capital Financing Activities   $ 566,488,279  

     CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
  

 
Proceeds from Disposal of Capital Assets 

 
373,096  

 
Proceeds of Transfers from Other Entities 

 
16,796,642  

 
Payments for Additions to Capital Assets 

 
(60,519,980) 

 
Payments of Principal on Capital-Related Debt 

 
(282,263) 

 
Payments of Interest on Capital-Related Debt 

 
(216,696) 

 
Payments for Transfers to Other Entities 

 
(98,394,272) 

  
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related Financing Activities $ (142,243,473) 

     CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
  

 
Proceeds from Interest and Investment Income 

 
18,892,472  

 
Payments to Acquire Investments 

 
(52,217,218) 

  
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities $ (33,324,746) 

     Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 69,385,759  

     Cash and Cash Equivalents, September 1, 2011 $ 176,054,594  
Cash and Cash Equivalents, August 31, 2012 $ 245,440,353  

     
     

Page 6



Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to  
  

 
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 

  
     Operating Income (Loss) $ (444,404,437) 

     Adjustments: 
  

 
Depreciation and Amortization $ 112,006,284  

 
Bad Debt Expense 

 
(306,678) 

 
Operating Income and Cash Flow Categories: 

  
  

Classification Differences 
  

 
Changes in Assets and Liabilities: 

  
  

(Increase) Decrease in Receivables 
 

(12,149,170) 

  
(Increase) Decrease in Due from Other Entities 

 
(95,716) 

  
(Increase) Decrease in Inventories 

 
293,284  

  
(Increase) Decrease in Prepaid Expenses 

 
(1,920,090) 

  
(Increase) Decrease in Loans and Contracts 

 
(673,446) 

  
(Increase) Decrease in Other Assets 

 
(90,479) 

  
Increase (Decrease) in Payables 

 
(8,532,513) 

  
Increase (Decrease) in Due to Other Entities 

 
136,252  

  
Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Revenue 

 
32,741,132  

  
Increase (Decrease) in Employees' Compensable Leave 

 
(121,568) 

  
Increase (Decrease) in Other Liabilities 

 
1,582,844  

Total Adjustments  $ 122,870,136  

     Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $ (321,534,301) 

     Non-Cash Transactions 
  

 
Net Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments $ 18,916,318  

 
Other Additions to Capital Assets (Transfer from Other Entities) 

 
294,600,105  

 
Disposal of Capital Assets 

 
(260,916) 

     
     
     The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Texas A&M University, including Texas A&M University at Galveston  
Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Fiscal Year Ended August 31, 2012 
 
General Introduction 
 
These financial statements include a Statement of Net Assets; a Statement of Revenues, Expenses, 
and Changes in Net Assets; a Statement of Cash Flows; and the related Notes to the Financial 
Statements.  
 
Reporting Entity 
 
Texas A&M University, including Texas A&M University at Galveston (Texas A&M University) is 
a component of the Texas A&M University System (A&M System) and an agency of the State of 
Texas.  The University prepares financial statements that are included in the State’s Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report, which is audited by the Texas State Auditor’s Office. 
  
 
Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Basis of Accounting 
 
The basis of accounting determines when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in 
the accounts reported in the financial statements.  The accounting and financial reporting treatment 
applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus. 
 
For financial reporting purposes, Texas A&M University is considered a special-purpose 
government engaged only in business-type activities.  Accordingly, the University’s financial 
statements have been presented using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual 
basis of accounting.  Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned 
and expenses are recognized at the time liabilities are incurred.  Operating items are distinguished 
from non-operating items.  Operating revenues and expenses result from providing services or 
producing and delivering goods in connection with the University’s principal ongoing operations.  
Operating expenses include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation 
or amortization on capital assets. 
 
The accompanying financial statements were prepared in conformance with generally accepted 
accounting principles as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).  The 
University applies all GASB pronouncements as well as Financial Accounting Standards Board 
(FASB) Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting 
Research Bulletins issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict 
with or contradict GASB pronouncements.  The University does not apply FASB pronouncements 
issued after November 30, 1989 in the preparation of the accompanying financial statements. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
All highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase are 
considered cash and cash equivalents according to GASB No. 9.  With the exception of residual cash 
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which results from the management of investment portfolios, the A&M System maintains cash and 
cash equivalents for the purpose of meeting short-term disbursement requirements. 
 
Investments 
 
In accordance with GASB No. 31, the A&M System reports investments at fair value on the 
Statement of Net Assets.  Fair value is defined as the amount at which an investment could be 
exchanged in a current transaction between parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.    
 
GASB No. 40, implemented in fiscal year 2005, requires the disclosure of common deposit and 
investment risks related to credit risk, concentration of credit risk, interest rate risk, and foreign 
currency risk. Under GASB 40, disclosure of carrying value of investments is no longer required.  
 
GASB No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments, is effective for 
periods beginning in fiscal year 2010. This statement addresses the recognition, measurement and 
disclosure of information pertaining to derivative instruments. Most derivative instruments are 
required to be measured at fair value on the Statement of Net Assets. The statement also makes 
consideration of hedge accounting necessary. The disclosures required by GASB No. 40 have been 
incorporated into GASB No. 53.  
 
Current Assets 
 
On the Statement of Net Assets, items classified as current are defined as resources expected to be 
realized or consumed within one year. 
 
Receivables 
 
Receivable balances are grouped into several receivable categories. Accounts receivable reflects 
amounts owed for goods and services provided.  Other receivables include items such as travel 
advances, returned checks, and various items accrued and not yet invoiced. 
 
Receivable balances are presented net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts. The allowance is 
based on management’s judgment of potential uncollectible amounts, which includes such factors as 
historical experience and type of receivable. Refer to Note 19, Disaggregation of Receivable and 
Payable Balances, for additional details.  
 
Voluntary Nonexchange Transaction 
 
Voluntary nonexchange transactions (primarily private donations and pledges) are recognized in 
accordance with GASB No. 33, adopted by the A&M System on September 1, 2000.   
 
Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets are recorded at cost at the date of acquisition or fair value at the date of donation in the 
case of gifts.  Livestock held for educational purposes is recorded at estimated fair value.  The 
capitalization threshold for personal property is $5,000.  The capitalization threshold is $100,000 for 
buildings/building improvements, facilities and other improvements, software purchased, land use 
rights with terms, and leasehold improvements.  Infrastructure has a capitalization threshold of 
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$500,000.  Internally developed software has a capitalization threshold of $1,000,000. All land, land 
improvements, permanent land use rights, library books/materials, museums/collections, and works 
of art/historical treasures are capitalized. 
 
According to GASB No. 34, No. 35, and No. 51, the A&M System is required to depreciate and 
amortize capital assets. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated 
useful lives of the assets; generally, 10 to 30 years for buildings, 10 to 45 years for infrastructure, 4 
to 15 years for equipment, and 15 years for library books. 
 
GASB No. 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets, requires all intangible 
assets not specifically excluded by scope provisions to be classified as capital assets. Accordingly, 
existing authoritative guidance related to the accounting and financial reporting for capital assets 
should be applied to these intangible assets, as applicable.  
 
Payables 
 
Payable balances are grouped into several payable categories. Accounts payable represents the 
liability for the value of assets or services received at the Statement of Net Assets date for which 
payment is pending.  Payroll payable includes accrued salary, wages, and benefits.  Other payables 
include a variety items, including payables for purchasing card activity, manager fees, sales taxes, 
student liabilities. 
 
Unearned Revenue 
 
The A&M System members record receivables when revenue is earned but not collected.  Unearned 
revenue is recognized when cash is received prior to revenue recognition, and is considered a 
liability. 
 
Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) 
 
The liability and associated expenses for the A&M System’s single-employer postemployment 
health care and life insurance benefit plan is recorded by the A&M System Offices. In accordance 
with GASB 45, the OPEB liability is classified as noncurrent. Additionally, the net change in OPEB 
obligation is recorded as a natural classification of expense, which was formerly included in the 
payroll related costs classification. 
 
Restricted Net Assets 
 
Restricted net assets result when constraints placed on net asset use are either externally imposed by 
creditors, grantors, contributors, and the like, or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or 
enabling legislation. When both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available for use, restricted 
resources are used first, then unrestricted resources are used as needed. 
 
Other Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Certain operations provide goods and services to internal customers. These operations include 
activities such as self insured programs, repairs & maintenance, utilities, computer services, and 
other services with interdepartmental activities. The revenues were eliminated to the extent of 
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expenses for these internal transactions in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net 
Assets to avoid inflating revenues and expenses. Receivables and payables between A&M System 
members were eliminated except those arising from service department operations and auxiliary 
enterprises, which are considered to be exchange in nature.  
 
An Appreciation Reserve was created in fiscal year 1997 for the purpose of providing a consistent 
and predictable income stream for the System Endowment Fund.  The Appreciation Reserve is 
administered by the A&M System Offices and distributions occur when current income is 
insufficient to meet the distribution of income in accordance with the System Endowment Fund 
spending policy. 
 
 
Note 2: Capital Assets 
 
A summary of changes in Capital Assets for the year ended August 31, 2012, is presented below: 
 

 
 
 
Note 3: Deposits, Investments, and Repurchase Agreements 
 
The Texas Education Code, Title III, Chapter 51.0031 grants authority for a governing board to 
invest funds under prudent person standards “if a governing board has under its control at least $25 
million in book value of endowment funds.” 
 
The A&M System’s investment policy authorizes the following types of investments:  U.S. 
Government obligations, U.S. Government Agency obligations, other government obligations, 
corporate obligations, corporate asset and mortgage backed securities, equity, international 
obligations, international equity, certificates of deposit, banker’s acceptances, negotiable certificates 
of deposit, money market mutual funds, mutual funds, repurchase agreements, venture capital, 

Balance 9/1/2011 Adjustments

Completed 
Construction 
in Progress Additions Deductions

Balance 
8/31/2012

Non-Depreciable and Non-Amortizable Assets:
Land and Land Improvements $ 33,390,581 $ 233,111 $ 0 $ 175,138 $ 0 $ 33,798,830
Construction in Progress 55,380,802 (186,126,685) (122,060,966) 318,592,784 0 65,785,935
Library Books 11,445,569 (5,955) 0 756,220 0 12,195,834
Other Capital Assets 26,345,146 27,673 0 90,394 (4,290) 26,458,923

Total Non-Depreciable Assets $ 126,562,098 $ (185,871,856) $ (122,060,966) $ 319,614,536 $ (4,290) $ 138,239,522

Depreciable and Amortizable Assets:
Buildings and Building Improvements $ 1,809,724,376 $ 85,762,008 $ 106,856,982 $ 13,708,349 $ (2,231,391) $ 2,013,820,324
Infrastructure 280,832,638 92,490,083 6,750,959 673,030 (1,324,535) 379,422,175
Facilities and Other Improvements 163,235,949 5,683,530 2,824,336 28,497 (562,208) 171,210,104
Furniture and Equipment (including Computer Software) 292,492,189 2,630,425 4,948,947 18,961,745 (17,734,085) 301,299,221
Vehicles, Boats, and A ircraft 41,901,475 8,000 679,742 2,233,738 (1,347,840) 43,475,115
Other Capital Assets 78,348,712 0 0 2,159,765 (319,107) 80,189,370

Total Depreciable and Amortizable Assets at Historical Cost $ 2,666,535,339 $ 186,574,046 $ 122,060,966 $ 37,765,124 $ (23,519,166) $ 2,989,416,309

Less Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization for:
Buildings and Building Improvements $ (951,741,623) $ (1,587,542) $ 0 $ (68,495,006) $ 175,444 $ (1,021,648,727)
Infrastructure (184,318,781) (745,336) 0 (11,702,810) 0 (196,766,927)
Facilities and Other Improvements (126,802,943) (77,871) 0 (3,939,420) 0 (130,820,234)
Furniture and Equipment (204,418,425) 4,172 0 (24,132,343) 10,959,741 (217,586,855)
Vehicles, Boats, and A ircraft (30,410,122) 3,774 0 (3,530,364) 1,326,716 (32,609,996)
Other Capital Assets (52,671,338) 128,441 0 (3,418,629) 167,987 (55,793,539)

Total Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization $ (1,550,363,232) $ (2,274,362) $ 0 $ (115,218,572) $ 12,629,888 $ (1,655,226,278)
Depreciable and Amortizable Assets, Net $ 1,116,172,107 $ 184,299,684 $ 122,060,966 $ (77,453,448) $ (10,889,278) $ 1,334,190,031

Capital Assets, Net $ 1,242,734,205 $ (1,572,172) $ 0 $ 242,161,088 $ (10,893,568) $ 1,472,429,553
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private equity, hedge funds, Real Estate Investment Trusts (REITs), securities lending, derivatives, 
timber, bank loans, energy and real estate. 
 
Deposits of Cash in Bank 
 
As of August 31, 2012, the carrying amount of deposits was $245,440,353 as presented below: 
 

 
 

These amounts consist of all cash in local banks.  These amounts are included on the Statement of 
Net Assets as part of the “Cash and Cash Equivalents” line items. 
 
At the direction of the A&M System Board of Regents, Texas A&M University cash and cash 
equivalents are held at the A&M System level.  All deposits are managed centrally at the A&M 
System and participation is mandatory.  The A&M System’s annual financial statements provide 
required disclosures about the specific types of risk to which the deposits are exposed and the 
System’s policies to address each of those risks. 
 
Investments 
 
At the direction of the A&M System Board of Regents, Texas A&M University investments and 
cash equivalents are pooled at the System level.  This fund pool is managed centrally at the A&M 
System and participation is mandatory.  The A&M System’s annual financial statements provide 
required disclosures about the composition of the investment portfolios, the specific types of risk to 
which those investments are exposed and the System’s policies to address each of those risks.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cash on Hand $ 496,654       
Cash in State Treasury 63,511,810   
Reimbursement Due from Treasury 1,175,200     
Cash in Bank 5,166,433     
Assets Held for Investment by System Offices 157,913,109 
Restricted Assets Held for Investment by System Offices 17,177,147   

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 245,440,353 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Current Assets $ 222,828,373 
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Current Assets, Restricted 22,611,980   

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 245,440,353 

Page 12



As of August 31, 2012 the value of assets held long-term by the A&M System on behalf of Texas 
A&M University totaled $1,255,554,548.  Of that amount $408,199,196 is restricted.  These 
investments are reported as Non-Current Assets, Restricted Assets held by System Offices – Long 
Term and Assets held by System Offices – Long Term on the Statement of Net Assets.  Texas A&M 
University’s investments held by the A&M System, by Pool and by Statement of Net Assets 
Classification are as follows: 
 

 
 
 
Note 4: Summary of Long-Term Liabilities 
 
During the year ended August 31, 2012, the following changes occurred in liabilities: 
 

 
 
Employees’ Compensable Leave 
 

 Full-time State employees earn eight to twenty-one hours per month annual leave depending on 
years of State employment.  Under the State's policy, an employee with 35 or more years of State 
service may carry up to 520 hours accrued leave forward from one fiscal year to another. 

 Employees with at least six months of State service who terminate employment are entitled to 
payment for all accumulated annual leave up to the maximum allowed.  The A&M System has 
accrued the dollar value of annual leave benefits which are payable upon retirement, termination, or 
death of its employees.  This liability (current and noncurrent) for Texas A&M University is 
projected to be $46,732,492 as of August 31, 2012.  This liability is based on calculations from the 
A&M System centralized leave tracking system and employer estimates. The accrued liability for the 

Investments Held by System in:
Cash Concentration Pool $ 931,107,316
System Endowment Fund 324,403,027
Separate Investment Accounts 44,205

Total University Share of Pooled Investments Held by System $ 1,255,554,548

Non-Current Assets
Cash Concentration Pool $ 525,067,020
System Endowment Fund 322,244,127
Separate Investment Accounts 44,205

Non-Current Assets, Restricted
Cash Concentration Pool 406,040,297
System Endowment Fund 2,158,899

Total University Share of Pooled Investments Held by System $ 1,255,554,548

Balance 
9/1/2011 Additions Deductions

Balance 
8/31/2012

Amounts Due 
Within One 

Year
Capital Lease Obligations $ 2,423,528 $ 86,891 $ 290,656 $ 2,219,763 $ 385,536
Employees’ Compensable Leave 46,854,060 1,122,398 1,243,966 46,732,492 4,005,797
Funds Held for Others 8,220,496 575,756 2,023 8,794,229 8,794,229
Other Liabilities
    D eferred Compensation Liability 1,410,679 1,010,679 400,000 200,000
    D eposits 8,804,359 1,582,844 10,387,203 10,387,203
    A ssets Held in Trust 19,189,500 19,189,500
     T otal $ 86,902,622 $ 3,367,889 $ 2,547,324 $ 87,723,187 $ 23,772,765
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unpaid annual leave has been recognized as a current and non-current liability.  Texas A&M 
University made lump sum payments of $6,530,126 for accrued vacation to employees who 
separated from State service during the fiscal year ended August 31, 2012. 

 
     Sick leave accumulation is not limited.  Sick leave is earned at the rate of eight hours per month and 

is paid only when an employee is absent due to illness or to the estate of an employee in the event of 
his/her death.  The maximum sick leave payment to an employee's estate is the lesser of one-half of 
the employee's accumulated entitlement or 336 hours.  The A&M System policy is to recognize the 
cost of sick leave when paid.  The liability is not shown in the financial statements since historical 
use of sick leave has been minimal. 
 
 
Note 5: Bonded Indebtedness 
 

 The A&M System has established a financing program known as the Revenue Financing System.  
Members of the A&M System may use the Revenue Financing System as a long-term debt program 
to finance new facilities or as a short-term debt program to finance equipment or to interim finance 
construction projects.  Members’ financing requests are evaluated for adequate revenue streams and 
bonding capacity. 

 
 Assets created as a result of the expenditures of Permanent University Fund and Revenue Financing 

System Bonds and Notes proceeds, which are subsequently capitalized, are reported on the 
applicable members' Statement of Net Assets in the Capital Assets category.  The associated bond 
liability is reported in total by the A&M System Offices. 
 
Texas A&M University receives proceeds from revenue bonds issued and held by the A&M System 
to support capital projects of the A&M System and its institutions.  These proceeds are recorded as 
transfers from the A&M System.  Texas A&M University disburses funds to the A&M System for 
payments of principal and interest related to the University’s share of bond proceeds.  These 
disbursements are recorded as transfers to the A&M System.  At August 31, 2012 the A&M System 
had outstanding bonds payable of $2,241,200,000. All bonds issued by the A&M System are defined 
as revenue bonds.  As such, the revenues of the A&M System, including Texas A&M University, are 
pledged for repayment of the bonds.  Segment information requirements are not applicable, due to 
the bond indentures’ lack of specifically identifiable activities and separate accounting requirements 
imposed by an external party. 
 
No amount of indebtedness related to these bonds has been recorded in Texas A&M University’s 
financial statements as the A&M System is the party directly liable for these bonds.  At August 31, 
2012, however, outstanding debt issued on behalf of Texas A&M University is $711,846,633. 
 
 
Note 6: Capital Leases 

 
 Certain leases to finance the purchase of property are capitalized at the present value of future 

minimum lease payments. At August 31, 2012, Texas A&M University had various capital lease 
obligations relating to the acquisition of capital assets. The original capitalized cost of the capital 
assets under capital lease as of August 31, 2012, is $4,111,488. The following is a schedule of the 
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future minimum lease payments for leased property and the present value of the net minimum lease 
payments: 

 

 
 

 
 
 
Note 7: Operating Leases 
 
A summary of future operating lease payments for the year ended August 31, 2012, is presented 
below: 
 

 
 

 
 
Note 8: Interagency Balances / Activity 
 
As of August 31, 2012, amounts to be received or paid between funds and agencies are to be 
reported as: 

• Due from/to other state entities 
• Transfers in from/out to other state entities 
• Legislative transfers in/out 

Year Ended August 31, 2012 Total
2013 $ 528,364
2014 454,232
2015 407,372
2016 365,758
2017 107,668
2018-2022 494,543
2023-2027 491,384
2028-2032 65,517
Total Minimum Lease Payments $ 2,914,838
Less: Amount Representing Interest at Various Rates (695,075)
Present Value of Net Minimum Lease Payments $ 2,219,763

Assets under 
Capital Lease

Accumulated 
Depreciation

Buildings and Building Improvements $      2, 372,049 $        625, 957 
Furniture and Equipment 1,516,031     603,179       
Vehicles, Boats, and A ircraft 223,408       22,482        
     T otal $ 4,111,488 $ 1,251,618

Year Ended August 31, 2012 Total
2013 $ 2,450,467
2014 2,006,632
2015 1,636,279
2016 1,370,679
2017 1,144,430
2018-2022 1,238,558
Total Minimum Future Lease Payments $ 9,847,045
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Texas A&M University made transfers with other state agencies, which were consistent with the 
activities of the fund making the transfer.  All of the following balances will be paid within a year 
except for the $2,340,088 due to the State Energy Conservation Office for the Texas LoanSTAR 
(Saving Taxes and Resources) Program.  Individual balances and activity at August 31, 2012, were 
as follows: 
 

 
 
 
Note 9: Contingent Liabilities 
 
At August 31, 2012, various lawsuits and claims involving Texas A&M University had arisen in the 
course of conducting Texas A&M University business.  While the ultimate liability with respect to 
litigation and other claims cannot be reasonably estimated at this time, management is of the opinion 

DUE FROM/TO OTHER STATE ENTITIES

Entity

Due from 
Other State 

Entities
Due to Other 
State Entities Purpose

Texas A&M University System Administrative & General Offices $ 18,182,342 $ RFS/PUF Debt Proceeds for minor construction projects
Texas A&M University System Administrative & General Offices 48,328,500 Shared Cash - AUF required to be reported on System Offices financial report
Texas A&M University System Administrative & General Offices 996,521 Contracts & Grants reimbursements due
Texas A&M University System Administrative & General Offices 26,191,335 Locally funded construction project funds due to System for System managed construction projects
Tarleton State University 7,000 Contracts & Grants reimbursements due
Prairie View A&M University 12,390 Contracts & Grants reimbursements due
Texas Agrilife Research 50,237 Contracts & Grants reimbursements due
Texas Agrilife Extension Service 16,900 8,308 Contracts & Grants reimbursements due
Texas Engineering Experiment Station 78,948 Contracts & Grants reimbursements due
Texas Transportation Institute 5,929 Contracts & Grants reimbursements due
Texas A&M University - Corpus Christi 12,344 126,996 Contracts & Grants reimbursements due
Texas A&M Research Foundation 11,367,231 Contracts & Grants reimbursements due
Texas Department of Motor Vehicles 72,900 Shared Cash - funds required to be reported on Tx DOT AFR
Texas General Land Office 200,754 Contracts & Grants reimbursements due
Governor's Office 32,842 Contracts & Grants reimbursements due
Texas Department of State Health Services 156,944 Contracts & Grants reimbursements due
Texas Department of Transportation 8,840 Contracts & Grants reimbursements due
Texas Education Agency 259,148 Contracts & Grants reimbursements due
Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board 509,547 Contracts & Grants reimbursements due
Texas Parks & Wildlife Department 9,267 Contracts & Grants reimbursements due
University of Texas at Austin 96,312 Contracts & Grants reimbursements due
Cancer Prevention and Research Institute of Texas 214,708 Contracts & Grants reimbursements due
Texas Water Development Board 4,998 Contracts & Grants reimbursements due
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 75,856 Contracts & Grants reimbursements due
State Energy Conservation Office 2,340,088 SECO LoanSTAR Program
Texas Real Estate Commission 1,280,600 Real Estate license fee revenue due at year-end

$ 81,832,483 $ 28,815,302

TRANSFERS IN FROM/OUT TO OTHER STATE ENTITIES

Entity

Transfers In 
from Other 

State Entities

Transfers Out  
to Other State 

Entities Purpose
Texas A&M University System Administrative & General Offices $ (908,386) $ RFS/PUF Debt Proceeds for minor construction projects
Texas A&M University System Administrative & General Offices 13,451,165 1,543,808 System Endowment Fund Appreciation Reserve distribution
Texas A&M University System Administrative & General Offices 283,978,387 Fixed Assets and Construction in Progress upon semi-final/final completion
Texas A&M University System Administrative & General Offices 8,303,612 Reversion of Local funds originally set aside for major construction projects
Texas A&M University System Administrative & General Offices 113,715,789 Available University Fund Allocation for the year
Texas A&M University System Administrative & General Offices 374,983 Resource Allocation Program funding for the year
Texas A&M University System Administrative & General Offices 189,000 Weizmann Research Initiative
Texas A&M University System Administrative & General Offices 67,903,814 Debt Service funding requirements
Texas A&M University System Administrative & General Offices 24,214,804 Local funds set aside for major construction projects
Texas A&M University System Administrative & General Offices 19,884 Fixed Assets
Texas Agrilife Research 10,724,511 14,903 Fixed Assets
Texas Agrilife Extension Service 12,805 Fixed Assets
Texas Engineering Experiment Station 163,191 Fixed Assets
Texas Transportation Institute 4,793 Fixed Assets
Texas Transportation Institute 9,856 Transfer Engineering Gift
Texas Real Estate Commission 3,884,580 Real Estate license fee revenue
Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board 181,364 Doctoral set asides
Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board 5,052,686 B-On Time set asides

$ 433,894,430 $ 98,941,119

LEGISLATIVE TRANSFERS IN/OUT

Entity
Legislative 

Transfers In
Legislative 

Transfers Out Purpose
Texas A&M University System Administrative & General Offices $ $ 6,564,726 RFS Debt Service

$ 0 $ 6,564,726
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that the liability not provided for by insurance or otherwise, if any, for these legal actions will not 
have a material adverse affect on Texas A&M University’s financial position. 
 
 
Note 10: Risk Financing and Related Insurance 
 

 Risk financing and related insurance is managed centrally at the A&M System.  Information 
included below is presented from the A&M System perspective.  All unpaid claim liabilities are held 
on A&M System books and are not applicable to Texas A&M University. 

 
 The A&M System is exposed to various risks of loss related to property – fire, windstorm or other 

loss of capital assets; general and employer liability – resulting from alleged wrongdoings by 
employees and others; net income – due to fraud, theft, administrative errors or omissions, and 
business interruptions; and personnel – unexpected expense associated with employee health, 
termination or death.  As an agency of the State of Texas, the A&M System and its employees are 
covered by various immunities and defenses which limit some of these risks of loss, particularly in 
liability actions brought against the A&M System or its employees.  Remaining exposures are 
managed by self-insurance arrangements, contractual risk transfers, the purchase of commercial 
insurance, or a combination of these risk financing techniques. 

  
 All commercial insurance policies include retention amounts (deductibles) for which the A&M 

System is responsible and for which A&M System members maintain funding reserve pools.  
Ongoing analysis of the risks facing the A&M System results in the continual evaluation of 
insurance policies purchased.  

 
 The A&M System has self-insured arrangements for coverage in the areas of workers’ 

compensation, group health and dental insurance and certain areas of medical malpractice.  Based on 
the requirements of GASB No. 10, liabilities for claims have been reported where information prior 
to issuance of the financial statements indicated that it was probable that a liability had been incurred 
and the amount of the loss could be reasonably estimated. 

 
 The workers’ compensation plan is considered a funded employer liability pool.  The workers’ 

compensation incurred but not reported liability is based on actuarial analysis of all historical claims 
data.  The plan provides claims servicing and claims payments by charging a “cost allocation” 
assessment to each A&M System member based on a percentage of payroll.   

 
 The A&M System implemented a self-insured health and dental plan on September 1, 1994, which is 

also considered a funded pool.  Premiums are determined through an actuarial pricing process that 
takes place each spring.  The A&M System maintains an experience stabilization fund of 
$51,188,288 that is comprised of excess premiums from previous years and is used to offset losses in 
a given year.  Dental benefits under the plan are limited to $1,500 per individual per year, so the 
potential for catastrophic loss is not a significant risk. 
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Plan  WCI Health & Dental
             IBNR Liability 9/1/11                7,349,000                  10,218,000 

CY Claims Plus Change in Estimates                2,723,000                178,306,499 

Claims Payments              (3,041,000)              (174,433,499)
Other Items (changes in estimates)                 (463,000)                                -   
IBNR Liability 8/31/12                6,568,000                  14,091,000 

IBNR Liability

 
 
 
Note 11: Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability 
 
Changes to the financial reports of Texas A&M University are discussed in Note 1.  Texas A&M 
University has no material violations of finance related to legal and contract provisions.  Per the laws 
of the State of Texas, Texas A&M University cannot spend amounts in excess of appropriations 
granted by the Texas Legislature and there are no deficits reported in net assets or retained earnings. 
 
 
Note 12: The Financial Reporting Entity 
 

 The A&M System is composed of a series of distinct members, each of which was created to render 
a specific service for the State within the limits of the A&M System's objectives, and all of which 
are under the control and direction of the Board of Regents of the A&M System.  Texas A&M 
University is a distinct member of the A&M System. 

 
 One private entity is included in the A&M System combined annual financial report.  Although the 

following entity is legally separate, due to its close relationship it is reported as if it were part of the 
A&M System: 
 
The Texas A&M Research Foundation (Research Foundation) has been included as a blended 
component unit in the combined financial statements of the A&M System since fiscal year 1990, at 
the direction of the State Auditor's Office.  This determination is based on the close relationship and 
joint agreements in effect between the Research Foundation and the A&M System in regard to 
research grant/contract administration, as well as the fact that various officials of the A&M System 
serve as ex-officio voting and non-voting trustees, and members of the executive committee of the 
Research Foundation. The Research Foundation has a fiscal year end of August 31, 2012 and is Fund 
Type 05, Appd Fund 9999. Complete financial statements of the Research Foundation may be 
obtained from their administrative offices at 400 Harvey Mitchell Parkway South, Suite 100, College 
Station, Texas, 77845.  
 
As of August 31, 2012, the Research Foundation had total Research and Development Expenditures 
for Texas A&M University of $100,156,378. 
 
A new agency, Texas A&M University System- Office of Sponsored Research Services, now 
manages a number of the relationships and agreements that the Texas A&M Research Foundation 
has previously managed beginning in 2012.  The intent is to move the majority of fiscal activity to 
each A&M System member’s financial statements.  The A&M System will begin to see a reduction 
in the balances and activities reported by the Texas A&M Research Foundation.  
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The Mexico City Center (Representacion de Texas A&M University en la Republica Mexicana, 
A.C.) and Casa Verde Research Center, Sociedad Anonimo, are component units of Texas A&M 
University.  The University can appoint a voting majority of the boards of each component unit.  
Financial information for these component units is not presented because they are considered 
immaterial in relation to the University’s net assets and financial activities.  Complete financial 
statements for the Mexico City Center and the Casa Verde Research Center may be obtained from 
Texas A&M University, External Reporting at 750 Agronomy Road, Suite 3101 GSC, 6000 TAMU, 
College Station, Texas, 77843-6000. 
 
The Texas A&M Foundation does not meet the State Comptroller’s criteria for inclusion in the 
financial statements as a component unit of Texas A&M University, and is therefore not included in 
the Texas A&M University annual financial report.  The foundation holds a significant amount of 
economic resources for the direct benefit of Texas A&M University.  The financial statements for 
the foundation’s fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 are prepared in accordance with financial 
accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations.  Net assets as of June 30, 2012 totaled $1.1 
billion.  Total revenues, gains and other support totaled $68.9 million. 
 
 
Note 13: Restatement of Net Assets 
 
A summary of restatements of net assets for the year ended August 31, 2012, is presented below: 
 

 
 
 
Note 14: Employee Retirement Plans 
 
Information included in this note is presented from the A&M System perspective.   
 
The State of Texas has joint contributory retirement plans for substantially all of its employees.   
 
Teacher Retirement System pension plan 
One of the plans in which the A&M System participates is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined 
benefit pension plan administered by the Teacher Retirement System of Texas (TRS Plan).  
Participating employers in the TRS Plan include public schools, service centers, charter schools, and 
community colleges as well as the State of Texas, which covers employees of colleges, universities, 
medical schools, and certain other state agencies.  Employees of the A&M System are members of 
the TRS Plan if they are employed on a half-time or greater basis, unless they participate in the 

Net Assets, September 1, 2011 $ 2,504,992,469 
Restatements:

(a)  Construction in progress close outs processed during FY2012 that had 
prior year in-service dates.

$ (2,109,255)       

(b) Equipment purchased in prior year not originally capitalized. 138,265          
(c) Fixed Asset gift received in prior fiscal year not identified until current 
fiscal year.

398,818          

Total Restatements $ (1,572,172)       
Net Assets, September 1, 2011, as Restated $ 2,503,420,297 
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Optional Retirement Program, described below, or are students employed in a position that requires 
student status as a condition of employment. 
 
Benefits under the TRS Plan are established or amended by the Texas Legislature in state law, as 
provided by Texas Government Code, Chapter 824.  Benefits include retirement and disability 
annuities and death and survivor benefits.  A member is vested after earning five years of creditable 
service.  The normal service retirement is at age 65 with 5 years of credited service or, for members 
who established and maintained membership before September 1, 2007, when the sum of the 
member’s age and years of credited service equals or exceeds 80 years (Rule of 80).  For members 
who established membership on or after September 1, 2007, members must be at least age 60 with at 
least 5 years of credited service to retire under the Rule of 80.  Reduced service retirement is at age 
55 with 5 years of credited service and at any age below 50 with 30 years of credited service.  The 
standard life annuity benefit formula is 2.3 percent of the average of the five highest annual salaries 
multiplied by the years of service credit.  For certain “grandfathered” members, the three highest 
annual salaries are used.  The Teacher Retirement System issues a comprehensive annual financial 
report that includes the TRS Plan.  That report may be obtained by writing to TRS at the Teacher 
Retirement System of Texas, 1000 Red River Street, Austin, Texas 78701-2698, or from the TRS 
Web site at www.trs.state.tx.us. 
 
Contribution requirements for employees and employers are not actuarially determined but are 
established in the Texas Constitution and pursuant to state law passed by the Texas Legislature each 
biennium.  The state constitution requires the legislature to establish a member contribution rate of 
not less than 6% of the member’s annual compensation and a state contribution rate of not less than 
6% and not more than 10% of the aggregate annual compensation of all members of the system 
during the fiscal year.  For the year ended August 31, 2012, the statutorily required contribution rate 
was 6.4% of annual compensation from active plan members and 6.0% of annual compensation from 
the A&M System. 
 
For the years ended August 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, Texas A&M University contributed 100% of 
the following statutorily required employer contributions: 
 

 2012 2011 2010 
Required Contribution Rate 6.00% 6.644% 6.644% 
Contributions Required & Made $4,642,326 $5,918,984 $6,005,344 

 
Optional Retirement Program 
The State has also established the Optional Retirement Program (ORP), a defined contribution plan 
for certain employees at public higher education institutions.  The ORP is authorized by Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 830, and is administered by the A&M System, subject to policies, 
practices, and procedures developed by the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board to provide 
greater uniformity in the administration of the program.  Participation in the ORP is in lieu of 
participation in the TRS Plan.  The ORP provides for the purchase of annuity contracts and mutual 
funds through companies that provide optional retirement programs for higher education institutions.  
Because these are individual investment contracts with investment or insurance companies, and 
future participant benefits are based on the performance of the selected investment instruments, 
neither the State nor the A&M System has any liability for investment performance or for retirement 
commitments beyond the required contributions.  Benefits in the ORP vest in a participant after one 
year of participation. 
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State law provides for participant contributions of 6.65 percent of annual compensation and for a 
maximum employer contribution of 8.5 percent of a participant’s annual compensation.  Each 
biennium, the Texas Legislature establishes the State’s share of the employer contribution and 
permits the higher education institutions to contribute an additional amount so that total employer 
contributions do not exceed 8.5 percent.  Depending on the source of funding for the employee’s 
compensation, the A&M System may be required to make the employer contribution in lieu of the 
State.  During the year ended August 31, 2012, the required State contribution rate was 6.00 percent 
and the A&M System’s contribution rate was 0.40 percent of participants’ annual compensation. For 
participants who enrolled in the plan on or before August 31, 1995, the A&M System’s contribution 
was 2.50 percent. 
 
For the year ended August 31, 2012, contributions to the ORP were as follows: 

 
Optional Retirement Program

Amount

Employer Contributions 40,627,092               
Employee Contributions 36,894,582               

  Total 77,521,674               

 
 
Effective January 1, 1999, the A&M System implemented an excess benefit arrangement under 
Section 415(m) of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC).   

 
 Since the A&M System bears no responsibility for retirement commitments beyond contributions, 

GASB No. 25, Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note Disclosures for 
Defined Contribution Plans, and No. 26, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Healthcare Plans 
Administered by Defined Benefit Pension Plans, do not apply to these financial statements or 
disclosures. 

 
 The retirement expense to Texas A&M University was $20,203,515 for the year ended August 31, 

2012.  Of this amount, $7,507,433 represents the portion of appropriations made by the State 
Legislature expended on behalf of Texas A&M University and $12,696,082 represents the portion 
paid from Texas A&M University’s funds. 

     
 

Note 15: Deferred Compensation 
 
Information included in this note is presented from the A&M System perspective. 
 
State employees may elect to defer a portion of their earnings for income tax and investment 
purposes pursuant to authority granted in Texas Government Code, Section 609.001.  All payroll 
deductions have been invested in approved plans during the fiscal year.  Two deferred compensation 
plans are available for A&M System employees. 
 
The State’s 457 Plan complies with IRC Section 457.  This plan is referred to as the Texa$aver 
Deferred Compensation Plan (DCP) and is available to all employees.  The DCP is an employer-
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sponsored plan administered by the Employees Retirement System of Texas (ERS). A&M System 
employees are permitted to participate in the plan as an agency of the State. The deductions, 
purchased investments and earnings attributed to the 457 Plan are held in trust and belong to the 
participants.  The State has no liability under the 457 Plan beyond the administrative requirements 
outlined in the corresponding provisions of the IRC. 
  
The A&M System also administers a Tax-Deferred Account (TDA) Program, created in accordance 
with IRC Section 403(b).  All employees are eligible to participate.  The TDA is an employer-
sponsored plan. The deductions, purchased investments, and earnings attributed to each employee’s 
403(b) plan are held by vendors chosen by the employee from an approved vendor list provided by 
the A&M System. The funds held in the accounts belong to the individual participants. The vendors 
may be insurance companies, banks, or approved non-bank trustees such as mutual fund companies.  
The assets of this plan do not belong to the A&M System or the State and thus do not have a liability 
related to this plan beyond the administrative requirements outlined in the corresponding provisions 
of the IRC. 
 
The 457(f) Deferred Compensation Plan allows the A&M System to defer income for eligible 
participants without regard to the amount deferred or an adverse impact on other retirement plans in 
which the participant is enrolled. The plan is structured under Section 457(f) of the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1986, as amended. It is authorized for use by Texas institutions of higher education in Title 
109, Article 6228a-5, Section 3 of Vernon’s Texas Civil Statutes. All employees of the A&M 
System are eligible to participate in this plan subject to the approval of the Board of Regents, the 
Chancellor, or any Chancellor-designated A&M System member Chief Executive Officer. 
 
 
Note 16: Donor-Restricted Endowments 
 
Donor-restricted endowments are managed centrally at the A&M System.  Information included in 
this note is presented from the A&M System perspective. 
 
The purpose of The Texas A&M University System Endowment Fund (the Fund) is to provide for 
the collective investment of all endowment and trust funds held by the A&M System or by the 
Board of Regents of the A&M System in a fiduciary capacity.  The Fund is used to provide funding 
for scholarships, fellowships, professorships, academic chairs and other uses as specified by donors. 
 
Distribution is made quarterly after the last calendar day of November, February, May, and August 
of each fiscal year to the endowment and trust funds participating in the Fund during the respective 
quarter. Income consists of interest earnings, dividends and realized capital gains. The income 
distribution per unit for each fiscal year will be to distribute, excluding fees, 5% of the 20-quarter 
average market value per unit as of the end of the previous February. 
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The amount of net appreciation for donor restricted true endowments presented in the table below is 
available for authorization and expenditure by the A&M System.  The Uniform Prudent 
Management of Institutional Funds Act, Texas Property Code, Chapter 163, provides general 
guidelines on how endowments should be maintained.  
 

Net Appreciation of Donor-Restricted Endowments

Donor-Restricted Amount of Reported in 
Endowments Net Appreciation* Net Assets

True Endowments 65,655,987                     Restricted for Expendable

* The total fiscal year 2012 fair value adjustment to the Fund was $39,832,113

 
 
The amount of net appreciation for donor restricted endowments specific to Texas A&M University 
is $41,032,120. 
 
 
Note 17: Post-Employment Health Care and Life Insurance Benefits 
 
In addition to providing pension benefits, the State provides certain health care and life insurance 
benefits for retired employees in accordance with State statutes. Substantially all of the employees 
may become eligible for those benefits if they reach normal retirement age while working for the 
State. Those and similar benefits for active employees are provided through the group insurance 
program, and premiums are based on benefits paid during the previous year. The State recognizes 
the cost of providing these benefits by expensing the annual premiums.   For the year ending August 
31, 2012, the employer contributions are presented below. 

Employer Contribution Rates

Level of Coverage Amount

Full-Time Employee/Retiree Only 367$           
Full-Time Employee/Retiree and Spouse 552$           
Full-Time Employee/Retiree and Children 482$           
Full-Time Employee/Retiree and Family 644$           

 
 
For the year ended August 31, 2012, benefit plan expenses totaled $157,228,100. The cost of 
providing benefits for 7,415 retirees was $39,855,108; and for 22,149 active employees the cost was 
$117,372,992.  
 
Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) are benefits provided to the A&M System’s retirees under 
the A&M System group insurance program. The authority under which the obligations of the plan 
members and the A&M System are established, and may be amended, is Chapter 1601, Texas 
Insurance Code. Retiree eligibility for insurance continuation is determined by the Legislature and is 
subject to change. 
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The A&M System and member contribution rates are determined annually by the A&M System 
based on the recommendations of the A&M System Office of Benefits Administration. The plan 
rates are based on the plan costs that are expected to be incurred, the funds appropriated for the 
plans, and the funding policy established by the Texas Legislature in connection with benefits 
provided through the plan.  The A&M System revises benefits plans and rates as necessary to match 
expected costs with available revenue.  The plan is operated on a pay-as-you-go basis and is 
unfunded. 
 
Because the OPEB plan described herein is not administered through a trust as defined under 
Paragraph No. 4 of GASB Statement No. 43, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans 
Other Than Pension Plans, GASB Statement No. 43 accounting is not applicable to the A&M 
System. 

For the year ended August 31, 2012, the contributions for the self-funded plan by the state per full-
time retired employee are shown in the following table. The retiree contributes any premium over 
and above state contributions. 

Three-Year Schedule of Employer Contributions

Fiscal Year Employer Annual Percentage of Annual Net OPEB Obligation
Ending Contribution OPEB Cost OPEB Cost Contributed At End of Fiscal Year

8/31/2012 63,131,287$           190,199,827$           33% 603,878,029$                      
8/31/2011 40,489,312$           174,919,214$           23% 476,809,489$                      
8/31/2010 40,173,687$           162,680,000$           25% 342,379,587$                      

 
 
The OPEB expense reflected in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets is 
net of the Employer Contributions, as these costs are included as a portion of Payroll Related Costs 
expense. 
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Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation 
 
The annual OPEB cost of the plan is calculated and based on the annual required contribution 
(ARC).  The ARC is the amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB 
Statement No. 45.  The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is 
projected to cover normal costs each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a 
period of years, not to exceed 30 years.  The following table shows the components of the annual 
OPEB cost for the year for the plan: 

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation
(in thousands of dollars)

Annual Required Contribution (ARC) 180,940$                   
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation 34,807                       
Adjustment to ARC (25,547)                     
Annual OPEB Cost 190,200                     
Employer Contributions Made (63,131)                     
Increase Net OPEB Obligation 127,069                     
Net OPEB Obligation 9/1/2011 476,809                     
Net OPEB Obligation 8/31/2012 603,878$                   

 

 
Schedule of Funding Progress of the Plan 
 
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and 
assumptions about the probability of events far into the future.  The amounts determined for the 
funded status of the plan and the Annual Required Contribution of the employer are subject to 
continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made 
about the future.  The multiyear schedule of funding progress is presented in the following table: 
 

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial Excess of Ratio of
Actuarial Accrued Assets Over Annual UAAL to

Actuarial Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered Covered
Valuation Assets (AAL) (Unfunded AAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date (a) (b) (a)-(b) (a)/(b) (c) ((a-b)/c)
8/31/2010 -$                1,996,798,639$        (1,996,798,639)$        0.0% 1,359,512,304$       146.9%
9/1/2010 -$                1,854,690,001$        (1,854,690,001)$        0.0% 1,313,538,458$       141.2%
9/1/2009 -$                1,864,320,000$        (1,864,320,000)$        0.0% 1,315,291,687$       141.7%

 
 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 
 
Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as 
understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of 
each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan 
members to that point.  The actuarial methods and assumptions used in the plan valuation include 
techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the 
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actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. Additional detail 
about the actuarial assumptions used in the plan valuation is outlined in the following table: 
 

Summary of Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Actuarial Valuation Date September 1, 2011
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Amortization Method Open
Remaining Amortization Period of Unfunded Liability 30 years
Actuarial Assumptions:

Investment Rate of Return 7.3%
Inflation 3.0%
Health Care Trend Rates 9.5% in 2012

Decreasing to 5.0% in 2021

 
 
Medicare Part D 

 
In fiscal year 2012 the plan received payments from the federal government pursuant to the retiree drug 
subsidy provisions of Medicare Part D.  GASB Statement No. 24, Accounting and Financial Reporting 
for Certain Grants and Other Financial Assistance, requires that these on-behalf payments be recorded 
as revenues and expenses of each plan. In fiscal year 2012 the A&M System received $3,834,332 of 
Medicare Part D payments from the federal government. 
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Note 18: Disaggregation of Receivable and Payable Balances 
 
A summary of accounts receivable and associated allowances for doubtful accounts balances and 
accounts payable balances for Texas A&M University for the year ended August 31, 2012, is 
presented below: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Accounts Receivable:

Current Accounts Receivable Amount on SNA
Federal Receivables $ 13,297,237         
Gift, Pledges & Donations 21,775,577         
Other 58,774,725         

Total $ 93,847,539         

Other Receivables Amount on SNA
Student Receivables 11,497,412         
Customer Receivables (Account) 46,841,180         
Deferred Comp-Goodman Receivable $ 328,563             
Outsourcing Arrangement Receivable 85,069               
Receivable from TAMUG 22,500               

Total $ 58,774,724         

Accounts Payable:

Current Accounts Payable Amount on SNA
Accounts Payable $ 22,634,896         
Payroll Payable 44,394,313         
Other 8,430,134           

Total $ 75,459,343         

Other Payables Amount on SNA
Sales Tax Payable $ 1,568,672           
Student Liabilities 6,685,730           
Payable to A&M Foundation 81,479               
Other (UBIT Payable) 94,253               

Total $ 8,430,134           
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Note 19: Termination Benefits 
 
Termination benefits are managed centrally at the A&M System.  Information included in this note 
is presented from the A&M System perspective.  Texas A&M University has no obligation to pay 
the A&M System for any termination benefits specifically incurred by the University. 
 
As of August 31, 2012, the A&M System has not incurred obligations to pay voluntary or 
involuntary termination benefits in fiscal year 2013.  
 
For the fully-insured HMO health plans, dental plan, and vision plan, the carrier is responsible for 
the billing and collection from all COBRA participants. The carrier retains all premiums and is liable 
for all claims and expenses. Enrollment information for these plans is included below; however, the 
A&M System does not have premium and expense information related to these plans.  
 
For the self-insured health and dental plans, the carrier performs the billing and collections process 
for COBRA participants. The carrier then forwards the premium to the A&M System, net of the 2% 
administrative fee, which is intended to cover costs related to the billing and collection functions. 
However, since the plan is self-insured, the A&M System is responsible for any claims or 
administrative costs associated with COBRA participants, and these amounts are included below.  
 
As part of the stimulus funding from the federal government, some terminated employees were 
eligible for the 65% subsidy for COBRA coverage.  The Federal Department of Labor agreed to 
reimburse employers the 65% COBRA reimbursement up to 15 months.  This applies to employees 
who were involuntarily terminated between September 1, 2008 and May 31, 2010.   The maximum 
end of the 15 month payment period was August 31, 2011.  The remaining balances received in 
fiscal year 2012 totaled $1,805.   
 
COBRA benefits for the A&M System for the year ended August 31, 2012 are as follows: 
 

Termination Benefits - COBRA

Enrollment

 Self-Insured 
Medical Plan 

 Self-Insured 
Dental Plan 

Fully-Insured 
Medical HMO 

Plans
Fully-Insured 
Dental Plan

Fully-Insured 
Vision Plan

Number of Participants 208 115 16 27 137

Self-Insured Activity

Premium Revenue 940,024$            69,165$           
2 Percent Administrative Fee Revenue 18,800                1,383               
Total COBRA Revenue 958,824              70,548             

Claims Paid 1,985,079           154,429           
Administrative Expenses 27,680                6,694               
Total COBRA Expenses 2,012,759           161,123           

Total Cost to State 1,053,935$         90,575$           
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Texas A&M Health Science Center 
Statement of Net Assets 
August 31, 2012 
(See Independent Accountant’s Report on Page 1) 
 
ASSETS 

    
 

Current Assets 
  

  
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 3) $ 16,665,193  

  
Short-Term Investments (Note 3) 

 
20,933  

  
Restricted: 

  
   

Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 3) 
 

12,680,483  

   
Legislative Appropriations 

 
23,908,004  

  
Receivables, Net of Allowances (Note 17): 

  
   

Federal 
 

1,125,686  

   
Accounts 

 
3,074,501  

   
Gifts 

 
178,634  

  
Due from Other State Entities (Note 8) 

 
14,702,258  

  
Consumable Inventories 

 
900,468  

  
Loans and Contracts 

 
249,083  

  
Other Current Assets 

 
1,237,412  

 
Total Current Assets $ 74,742,655  

       
 

Non-Current Assets 
  

  
Restricted: 

  
   

Loans and Contracts 
 

3,250,915  

   
Assets held by System Offices-Long Term 

 
66,326,239  

  
Assets held by System Offices-Long Term 

 
77,109,346  

  
Capital Assets (Note 2): 

  
   

Non-Depreciable 
 

138,941,334  

   
Depreciable and Amortizable 

 
223,853,719  

    
Less: Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization 

 
(102,684,439) 

 
Total Non-Current Assets $ 406,797,114  

       Total Assets $ 481,539,769  

       LIABILITIES 
  

 
Current Liabilities 

  
  

Payables: 
  

   
Accounts $ 3,127,232  

   
Payroll 

 
8,942,944  

   
Other 

 
9,636  

  
Due to Other State Entities (Note 8) 

 
1,084,853  

  
Deferred Revenue 

 
11,977,269  

  
Capital Lease Obligations (Notes 4, 6) 

 
251,468  

  
Employees' Compensable Leave (Note 4) 

 
464,399  

  
Funds Held for Others 

 
601,828  

  
Other Current Liabilities 

 
465,722  

 
Total Current Liabilities $ 26,925,351  

       
 

Non-Current Liabilities 
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Capital Lease Obligations (Notes 4, 6) 

 
898,902  

  
Employees' Compensable Leave (Note 4) 

 
7,605,390  

  
Assets Held for Others 

 
15,688,746  

  
Other Non-Current Liabilities 

 
50,000  

 
Total Non-Current Liabilities $ 24,243,038  

       Total Liabilities $ 51,168,389  

       NET ASSETS 
  

 
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt $ 260,110,614  

 
Restricted for: 

  
  

Non-Expendable 
  

   
Permanent Funds, True Endowments, Annuities 

 
42,921,757  

  
Expendable 

  
   

Capital Projects 
 

1,331,297  

   
Education 

 
16,033,403  

   
Funds Functioning as Endowments 

 
7,715,736  

 
Unrestricted 

 
102,258,573  

Total Net Assets $ 430,371,380  

       
       
       The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this 
statement. 
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Texas A&M Health Science Center 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets 
For the Fiscal Year Ended August 31, 2012 
(See Independent Accountant’s Report on Page 1) 
 
OPERATING REVENUES 

  
 

Tuition and Fees - Pledged 
 

29,282,085  

  
Discounts and Allowances 

 
(1,787,146) 

 
Professional Fees - Pledged 

 
343,486  

 
Auxiliary Enterprises - Pledged 

 
974,910  

 
Other Sales of Goods and Services - Pledged 

 
25,046,794  

 
Interest Revenue 

 
100,618  

 
Federal Revenue 

 
22,419,389  

 
State Grant Revenue 

 
3,070,613  

 
Other Operating Grant Revenue 

 
5,453,253  

 
Other Operating Revenues 

 
154,559  

Total Operating Revenues $ 85,058,561  

      OPERATING EXPENSES 
  

 
Cost of Goods Sold $ 345,561  

 
Salaries and Wages 

 
104,934,571  

 
Payroll Related Costs 

 
22,172,928  

 
Professional Fees and Services  

 
11,325,446  

 
Travel 

  
1,628,256  

 
Materials and Supplies 

 
12,846,756  

 
Communications and Utilities 

 
7,825,580  

 
Repairs and Maintenance   

 
4,572,076  

 
Rentals and Leases 

 
3,431,347  

 
Printing and Reproduction 

 
527,356  

 
Depreciation and Amortization 

 
10,660,895  

 
Bad Debt Expense 

 
5,544  

 
Interest Expense 

 
3,333  

 
Scholarships 

 
2,339,740  

 
Other Operating Expenses 

 
17,550,193  

Total Operating Expenses $ 200,169,582  

      Operating Income (Loss) $ (115,111,021) 

      NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
  

 
Legislative Appropriations $ 116,363,593  

 
Federal revenue and Federal Pass-Through 

 
158,266  

 
Gifts 

  
4,047,163  

 
Interest and Investment Income (Loss) 

 
3,451,310  

 
Investing Activities Expense 

 
(166,099) 

 
Net Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments 

 
4,446,340  

 
Land Income 

 
2,104,459  

 
Interest Expense and Fiscal Charges 

 
(18,981) 

 
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Capital Assets 

 
9,808  

 
Claims and Judgments 

 
(37,500) 

 
Other Nonoperating Revenues - Pledged 

 
103,536  
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Other Nonoperating Expenses 

 
(100,234) 

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) $ 130,361,661  

      Income (Loss) Before Other Revenues, Expenses, Gains (Losses), 
and Transfers $ 15,250,640  

      OTHER REVENUES, EXPENSES, GAINS (LOSSES), AND 
TRANSFERS 

  
 

Capital Contributions $ 59,334  

 
Transfers In from Other State Entities (Note 8) 

 
7,696,281  

 
Transfers Out to Other State Entities (Note 8) 

 
(1,518,069) 

 
Legislative Transfers Out (Note 8) 

 
(8,294,726) 

Total Other Revenues, Expenses, Gains (Losses), and Transfers $ (2,057,180) 

      CHANGE IN NET ASSETS $ 13,193,460  

      Net Assets, September 1, 2011 $ 417,177,920  

      NET ASSETS, August 31, 2012 $ 430,371,380  

      
      
      The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this 
statement. 
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Texas A&M Health Science Center 
Statement of Cash Flows 
For the Fiscal Year Ended August 31, 2012 
(See Independent Accountant’s Report on Page 1) 
 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

  
 

Proceeds from Tuition and Fees $ 27,202,147  

 
Receipts from Customers  

 
26,149,919  

 
Proceeds from Research Grants and Contracts 

 
30,792,592  

 
Proceeds from Loan Programs 

 
743,029  

 
Proceeds from Auxiliaries 

 
974,909  

 
Proceeds from Other Revenues 

 
117,272  

 
Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services 

 
(61,808,749) 

 
Payments to Employees for Salaries 

 
(104,595,670) 

 
Payments to Employees for Benefits 

 
(21,438,583) 

 
Payments for Loans Provided 

 
(484,088) 

 
Payments for Other Expenses 

 
(1,705,787) 

  
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $ (104,053,009) 

     CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
  

 
Proceeds from Legislative Appropriations $ 108,797,754  

 
Proceeds from Gifts 

 
3,949,030  

 
Proceeds from Other Grant Revenue 

 
215,860  

 
Proceeds of Transfers from Other Entities 

 
1,878,221  

 
Proceeds from Other Sources 

 
48,447,633  

 
Payments for Transfers to Other Entities 

 
(150,919) 

 
Payments for Other Uses 

 
(46,498,378) 

  
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Non-Capital Financing Activities   $ 116,639,201  

     CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
  

 
Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets 

 
19,084  

 
Payments for Additions to Capital Assets 

 
(3,759,942) 

 
Payments of Principal on Capital-Related Debt 

 
(416,572) 

 
Payments of Interest on Capital-Related Debt 

 
(18,981) 

 
Transfer of Capital Debt Proceeds from System (Nonmandatory) 

 
4,357,317  

 
Transfer to System for Capital Related Debt (Mandatory) 

 
(9,491,668) 

  
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related Financing Activities $ (9,310,762) 

     CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
  

 
Proceeds from Interest and Investment Income 

 
3,285,212  

 
Sales and Purchases of Investments Held by System 

 
(4,770,399) 

  
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities $ (1,485,187) 

     Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,790,243  

     Cash and Cash Equivalents, September 1, 2011 $ 27,555,433  

     Cash and Cash Equivalents, August 31, 2012 $ 29,345,676  
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Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to  
  

 
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 

  
     Operating Income (Loss) $ (115,111,021) 

     Adjustments: 
  

 
Depreciation and Amortization $ 10,660,895  

 
Bad Debt Expense 

 
225,658  

 
Operating Income and Cash Flow Categories: 

  
 

Changes in Assets and Liabilities: 
  

  
(Increase) Decrease in Receivables 

 
(794,286) 

  
(Increase) Decrease in Due from Other Entities 

 
(276,109) 

  
(Increase) Decrease in Inventories 

 
(550,146) 

  
(Increase) Decrease in Prepaid Expenses 

 
(127,596) 

  
(Increase) Decrease in Loans and Contracts 

 
157,513  

  
Increase (Decrease) in Payables 

 
(771,510) 

  
Increase (Decrease) in Due to Other Entities 

 
1,084,812  

  
Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Revenue 

 
643,836  

  
Increase (Decrease) in Deposits 

 
278,265  

  
Increase (Decrease) in Employees' Compensable Leave 

 
526,680  

Total Adjustments  $ 11,058,012  

     Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $ (104,053,009) 

     Non-Cash Transactions 
  

 
Nonmonetary Gifts, including Capital Assets $ 563,146  

 
Net Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments 

 
1,752,114  

 
Disposal of Capital Assets 

 
9,808  

 
Other Deductions to Capital Assets 

 
199,282  

     
     
     The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Texas A&M Health Science Center 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Fiscal Year Ended August 31, 2012 

 
General Introduction 

These financial statements include a Statement of Net Assets; a Statement of Revenues, Expenses, 
and Changes in Net Assets; a Statement of Cash Flows; and the related Notes to the Financial 
Statements.  
 
Reporting Entity 
The Texas A&M Health Science Center is a component of the Texas A&M University System 
(A&M System) and an agency of the State of Texas.  The A&M System prepares financial 
statements that are included in the State’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, which is audited 
by the Texas State Auditor’s Office. 
 
Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 

Basis of Accounting 

The basis of accounting determines when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in 
the accounts reported in the financial statements.  The accounting and financial reporting treatment 
applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus. 

For financial reporting purposes, the Texas A&M Health Science Center is considered a special-
purpose government engaged only in business-type activities.  Accordingly, the Texas A&M Health 
Science Center’s financial statements have been presented using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  Under the accrual basis of accounting, 
revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized at the time liabilities are incurred.  
Operating items are distinguished from non-operating items.  Operating revenues and expenses 
result from providing services or producing and delivering goods in connection with the Texas A&M 
Health Science Center’s principal ongoing operations.  Operating expenses include the cost of sales 
and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation or amortization on capital assets. 

The accompanying financial statements were prepared in conformance with generally accepted 
accounting principles as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).  The 
Texas A&M Health Science Center applies all GASB pronouncements as well as Financial 
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board 
Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless those 
pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements.  The Texas A&M Health 
Science Center does not apply FASB pronouncements issued after November 30, 1989 in the 
preparation of the accompanying financial statements. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
All highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase are 
considered cash and cash equivalents according to GASB No. 9.  With the exception of residual cash 
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which results from the management of investment portfolios, the A&M System maintains cash and 
cash equivalents for the purpose of meeting short-term disbursement requirements. 
 
Investments 
 
In accordance with GASB No. 31, the A&M System reports investments at fair value on the Balance 
Sheet.  Fair value is defined as the amount at which an investment could be exchanged in a current 
transaction between parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.    
 
GASB No. 40, implemented in fiscal year 2005, requires the disclosure of common deposit and 
investment risks related to credit risk, concentration of credit risk, interest rate risk, and foreign 
currency risk. Under GASB 40, disclosure of carrying value of investments is no longer required.  
 
GASB No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments, is effective for 
periods beginning in fiscal year 2010. This statement addresses the recognition, measurement and 
disclosure of information pertaining to derivative instruments. Most derivative instruments are 
required to be measured at fair value on the Balance Sheet. The statement also makes consideration 
of hedge accounting necessary. The disclosures required by GASB No. 40 have been incorporated 
into GASB No. 53.  
 
Current Assets 
 
On the Balance Sheet, items classified as current are defined as resources expected to be realized or 
consumed within one year. 
 
Receivables 
 
Receivable balances are grouped into several receivable categories. Accounts receivable reflects 
amounts owed for goods and services provided.  Other receivables include items such as travel 
advances, returned checks, and various items accrued and not yet invoiced. 
 
Receivable balances are presented net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts. The allowance is 
based on management’s judgment of potential uncollectible amounts, which includes such factors as 
historical experience and type of receivable. Refer to Note 24, Disaggregation of Receivable and 
Payable Balances, for additional details.  
 
Voluntary Nonexchange Transaction 
 
Voluntary nonexchange transactions (primarily private donations and pledges) are recognized in 
accordance with GASB No. 33, adopted by the A&M System on September 1, 2000.   
 
Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets are recorded at cost at the date of acquisition or fair value at the date of donation in the 
case of gifts.  Livestock held for educational purposes is recorded at estimated fair value.  The 
capitalization threshold for personal property is $5,000.  The capitalization threshold is $100,000 for 
buildings/building improvements, facilities and other improvements, software purchased, land use 
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rights with terms, and leasehold improvements.  Infrastructure has a capitalization threshold of 
$500,000.  Internally developed software has a capitalization threshold of $1,000,000. All land, land 
improvements, permanent land use rights, library books/materials, museums/collections, and works 
of art/historical treasures are capitalized. 
 
According to GASB No. 34, No. 35, and No. 51, the A&M System is required to depreciate and 
amortize capital assets. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated 
useful lives of the assets; generally, 10 to 30 years for buildings, 10 to 45 years for infrastructure, 4 
to 15 years for equipment, and 15 years for library books. 
 
GASB No. 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets, requires all intangible 
assets not specifically excluded by scope provisions to be classified as capital assets. Accordingly, 
existing authoritative guidance related to the accounting and financial reporting for capital assets 
should be applied to these intangible assets, as applicable.  
 
Payables 

Payable balances are grouped into several payable categories. Accounts payable represents the 
liability for the value of assets or services received at the balance sheet date for which payment is 
pending.  Payroll payable includes accrued salary, wages, and benefits.  Other payables include a 
variety items, including payables for purchasing card activity, manager fees, sales taxes, student 
liabilities. 
 
Unearned Revenue 
 
The A&M System members record receivables when revenue is earned but not collected.  Unearned 
revenue is recognized when cash is received prior to revenue recognition, and is considered a 
liability. 
 
Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) 
 
The liability and associated expenses for the A&M System’s single-employer postemployment 
health care and life insurance benefit plan is recorded by the A&M System Offices. In accordance 
with GASB 45, the OPEB liability is classified as noncurrent. Additionally, the net change in OPEB 
obligation is recorded as a natural classification of expense, which was formerly included in the 
payroll related costs classification. 
 
Restricted Net Assets 
 
Restricted net assets result when constraints placed on net asset use are either externally imposed by 
creditors, grantors, contributors, and the like, or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or 
enabling legislation. When both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available for use, restricted 
resources are used first, then unrestricted resources are used as needed. 
 
Other Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Certain operations provide goods and services to internal customers. These operations include 
activities such as self insured programs, repairs & maintenance, utilities, computer services, and 
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other services with interdepartmental activities. The revenues were eliminated to the extent of 
expenses for these internal transactions in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net 
Assets to avoid inflating revenues and expenses. Receivables and payables between A&M System 
members were eliminated except those arising from service department operations and auxiliary 
enterprises, which are considered to be exchange in nature.  
 
An Appreciation Reserve was created in fiscal year 1997 for the purpose of providing a consistent 
and predictable income stream for the System Endowment Fund.  The Appreciation Reserve is 
administered by the A&M System Offices and distributions occur when current income is 
insufficient to meet the distribution of income in accordance with the System Endowment Fund 
spending policy.   
 
Note 2: Capital Assets 
 
A summary of changes in Capital Assets for the year ended August 31, 2012, is presented below: 

Balance 
9/1/2011 Adjustments

Completed 
Construction 
in Progress Additions Deductions

Balance 
8/31/2012

Non-Depreciable and Non-Amortizable Assets:
Land and Land Improvements $ 30,436,317 $ (3,310,012) $ $ $ $ 27,126,305
Construction in Progress 111,572,012 111,572,012
Library Books 243,017 243,017

Total Non-Depreciable Assets $ 142,251,346 $ (3,310,012) $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 138,941,334

Depreciable and Amortizable Assets:
Buildings and Building Improvements $ 142,469,030 $ 3,310,012 $ $ $ $ 145,779,042
Infrastructure 3,224,314 3,224,314
Facilities and Other Improvements 1,831,305 1,831,305
Furniture and Equipment 42,543,686 5,665,670 (989,631) 47,219,725
Vehicles, Boats, and A ircraft 914,329 57,837 972,166
Other Capital Assets 24,824,609 3,448 (890) 24,827,167

Total Depreciable and Amortizable Assets at Historical Cost $ 215,807,273 $ 3,310,012 $ 0 $ 5,726,955 $ (990,521) $ 223,853,719

Less Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization for:
Buildings and Building Improvements $ (43,867,027) $ $ $ (6,346,156) $ $ (50,213,183)
Infrastructure (919,273) (179,060) (1,098,333)
Facilities and Other Improvements (471,630) (93,691) (565,321)
Furniture and Equipment (24,661,914) (3,899,763) 968,549 (27,593,128)
Vehicles, Boats, and A ircraft (683,747) (78,116) (761,863)
Other Capital Assets (22,247,940) (205,561) 890 (22,452,611)

Total Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization $ (92,851,531) $ 0 $ 0 $ (10,802,347) $ 969,439 $ (102,684,439)
Depreciable and Amortizable Assets, Net $ 122,955,742 $ 3,310,012 $ 0 $ (5,075,392) $ (21,082) $ 121,169,280

Capital Assets, Net $ 265,207,088 $ 0 $ 0 $ (5,075,392) $ (21,082) $ 260,110,614  
 
Note 3: Deposits, Investments, and Repurchase Agreements 
 
The Texas Education Code, Title III, Chapter 51.0031 grants authority for a governing board to 
invest funds under prudent person standards “if a governing board has under its control at least $25 
million in book value of endowment funds.” 
 
The A&M System’s investment policy authorizes the following types of investments:  U.S. 
Government obligations, U.S. Government Agency obligations, other government obligations, 
corporate obligations, corporate asset and mortgage backed securities, equity, international 
obligations, international equity, certificates of deposit, banker’s acceptances, negotiable certificates 
of deposit, money market mutual funds, mutual funds, repurchase agreements, venture capital, 
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private equity, hedge funds, Real Estate Investment Trusts (REITs), securities lending, derivatives, 
timber, bank loans, energy and real estate. 
 
Deposits of Cash in Bank 
 
As of August 31, 2012, the carrying amount of deposits was $29,345,676 as presented below: 
 
Composition of Cash and Cash Equivalents Carrying Amount

Cash on Hand $ 12,941
Cash in State Treasury 11,863,540
Reimbursement Due from Treasury 783,645
Assets Held For Investment By System Offices 4,005,067
Restricted Cash on Hand 500
Restricted Assets Held For Investment By System Office 12,679,983

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 29,345,676

Cash and Cash Equivalents per Statement of Net Assets Carrying Amount

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Current Assets $ 16,665,193
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Current Assets, Restricted 12,680,483

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents per Statement of Net Assets $ 29,345,676  
 
These amounts consist of all cash in local banks.  These amounts are included on the Statement of 
Net Assets as part of the “Cash and Cash Equivalents” line items. 
 
At the direction of the A&M System Board of Regents, Texas A&M Health Science Center cash and 
cash equivalents are held at the System level.  All deposits are managed centrally at the A&M 
System and participation is mandatory.  The A&M System’s annual financial statements provide 
required disclosures about the specific types of risk to which the deposits are exposed and the 
System’s policies to address each of those risks.   
 
Investments 
 
At the direction of the A&M System Board of Regents, Texas A&M Health Science Center 
investments and cash equivalents are pooled at the System level.  This fund pool is managed 
centrally at the A&M System and participation is mandatory.  The A&M System’s annual financial 
statements provide required disclosures about the composition of the investment portfolios, the 
specific types of risk to which those investments are exposed and the System’s policies to address 
each of those risks.   
 
As of August 31, 2012 the value of assets held long-term by the A&M System on behalf of the 
Texas A&M Health Science Center totaled $143,435,585 as presented below.  Of that amount 
$66,326,239 is restricted.  These investments are reported as Non-Current Assets, Restricted Assets 
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held by System Offices – Long Term and Assets held by System Offices – Long Term on the 
Statement of Net Assets. 
 
Health Science Center Share of Pooled Investments Held by the System, by Pool and by  Statement of Net Assets Classification
Investments Held by System in:

Cash Concentration Pool $ 80,302,128
System Endowment Fund 63,074,707
Separate Investment Accounts 58,750

Total Health Science System Share of Pooled Investments Held by System $ 143,435,585

Non-Current Assets
Cash Concentration Pool $ 77,050,596
Separate Investment Accounts 58,750

Non-Current Assets, Restricted
Cash Concentration Pool 3,251,532
System Endowment Fund 63,074,707

Total Health Science Center Share of Pooled Investments Held by System $ 143,435,585  
 
The Texas A&M Health Science Center has one current short-term investment, a trust donation, 
managed through Concord Trust Company with a value of $20,933.  This trust is the only investment 
managed directly by the Texas A&M Health Science Center.   
 
Investments
Domestic Equity 6,390
International Equity 6,347
Fixed Income Money Market and Bond Mutual Fund 8,196

Total Unrestricted Short Term Investments $ 20,933  
 
Note 4: Summary of Long-Term Liabilities 
 
During the year ended August 31, 2012, the following changes occurred in liabilities: 

Balance 
9/1/2011 Additions Deductions

Balance 
8/31/2012

Amounts Due 
Within One 

Year
Capital Lease Obligations $ $ 1,150,370 $ $ 1,150,370 $ 251,468
Employees’ Compensable Leave 7,543,109 526,680 8,069,789 464,399
Funds Held for Others 15,611,510 61,928,384 61,249,320 16,290,574 601,828
Other Liabilities 237,456 550,734 272,468 515,722 465,722
     T otal $ 23,392,075 $ 64,156,168 $ 61,521,788 $ 26,026,455 $ 1,783,417  
 

Notes and Loans Payable – Debt Service Requirements 

Notes payable consist of amounts used to make permanent improvements at the Texas A&M Health 
Science Center, to refund and retire the Board’s Permanent University Fund Commercial Paper 
Notes and Flexible Rate Notes, to provide interim financing for capital improvements and 
acquisition of equipment and land, to pay interest on notes, to refund outstanding notes as they 
mature and to pay the costs of issuing the notes. 
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The Texas A&M Health Science Center did not have any notes and loans payable outstanding as of 
August 31, 2012. 
 

Employees’ Compensable Leave 

 Full-time State employees earn eight to twenty-one hours per month annual leave depending on 
years of State employment.  Under the State's policy, an employee with 35 or more years of State 
service may carry up to 520 hours accrued leave forward from one fiscal year to another. 

 
 Employees with at least six months of State service who terminate employment are entitled to 

payment for all accumulated annual leave up to the maximum allowed.  The A&M System has 
accrued the dollar value of annual leave benefits which are payable upon retirement, termination, or 
death of its employees.  This liability (current and noncurrent) for the Texas A&M Health Science 
Center is projected to be $8,069,789 as of August 31, 2012.  This liability is based on calculations 
from the A&M System centralized leave tracking system and employer estimates. The accrued 
liability for the unpaid annual leave has been recognized as a current and non-current liability.  The 
Texas A&M Health Science Center made lump sum payments of $753,766 for accrued vacation to 
employees who separated from State service during the fiscal year ended August 31, 2012. 

 
     Sick leave accumulation is not limited.  Sick leave is earned at the rate of eight hours per month and 

is paid only when an employee is absent due to illness or to the estate of an employee in the event of 
his/her death.  The maximum sick leave payment to an employee's estate is the lesser of one-half of 
the employee's accumulated entitlement or 336 hours.  The A&M System policy is to recognize the 
cost of sick leave when paid.  The liability is not shown in the financial statements since historical 
use of sick leave has been minimal. 
 
Note 5: Bonded Indebtedness 
 

 The A&M System has established a financing program known as the Revenue Financing System.  
Members of the A&M System may use the Revenue Financing System as a long-term debt program 
to finance new facilities or as a short-term debt program to finance equipment or to interim finance 
construction projects.  Members’ financing requests are evaluated for adequate revenue streams and 
bonding capacity. 

 
 Assets created as a result of the expenditures of Permanent University Fund and Revenue Financing 

System Bonds and Notes proceeds, which are subsequently capitalized, are reported on the 
applicable members' Statement of Net Assets in the Capital Assets category.  The associated bond 
liability is reported in total by the A&M System Offices. 
 
The Texas A&M Health Science Center receives proceeds from revenue bonds issued and held by 
the System to support capital projects of the System and its institutions.  These proceeds are 
recorded as transfers from the System.  The Texas A&M Health Science Center disburses funds to 
the System for payments of principal and interest related to the Texas A&M Health Science Center’s 
share of bond proceeds.  These disbursements are recorded as transfers to the System.  At August 31, 
2012 the System had outstanding bonds payable of $2,241,200,000. All bonds issued by the System 
are defined as revenue bonds.  As such, the revenues of the System, including the Texas A&M 
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Health Science Center, are pledged for repayment of the bonds.  Segment information requirements 
are not applicable, due to the bond indentures’ lack of specifically identifiable activities and separate 
accounting requirements imposed by an external party. 
 
No amount of indebtedness related to these bonds has been recorded in the Texas A&M Health 
Science Center’s financial statements as the System is the party directly liable for these bonds.  At 
August 31, 2012, however, outstanding debt issued on behalf of the Texas A&M Health Science 
Center is $104,124,612. 
 
Note 6: Capital Leases 
 

 Certain leases to finance the purchase of property are capitalized at the present value of future 
minimum lease payments. At August 31, 2012, the Texas A&M Health Science Center had various 
capital lease obligations relating to the acquisition of capital assets. The original capitalized cost of 
the capital assets under capital lease as of August 31, 2012, is $1,566,943. The following is a 
schedule of the future minimum lease payments for leased property and the present value of the net 
minimum lease payments: 

  

 

Year Ended August 31, 2012 Total
2013 (Future Yr 1) $ 298,364
2014 (Future Yr 2) 328,331
2015 (Future Yr 3) 328,332
2016 (Future Yr 4) 278,018
2017 (Future Yr 5) 38,903
Total Minimum Lease Payments $ 1,271,948
Less: Amount Representing Interest at Various Rates (121,578)
Present Value of Net Minimum Lease Payments $ 1,150,370  

 
ORIGINAL CAPITALIZED COSTS OF ASSETS UNDER CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS

Assets under 
Capital Lease

Accumulated 
Depreciation

Furniture and Equipment $ 1,566,943     $ 94,418        
     T otal $ 1,566,943 $ 94,418  

  
Note 7: Operating Leases 

 
 A summary of future operating lease payments for the year ended August 31, 2012, is presented 

below: 
 

 

Year Ended August 31, 2012 Total
2013 $ 3,036,845
2014 1,737,103
2015 1,671,589
2016 1,498,393
2017 1,136,511
2018-2022 4,425,783
Total Minimum Future Lease Payments $ 13,506,224  
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A summary of future operating lease revenues for the year ended August 31, 2012, is presented below: 
 

 

Year Ended August 31, 2012 Total
2013 $ 1,942,109
2014 1,086,244
2015 107,480
2016 108,643
2017 80,278
2018-2022 298,575
2023-2027 298,575
2028-2032 298,575
2033-2037 298,575
2038-2042 298,575
2043-2047 298,575
2048-2052 238,860
Total Minimum Future Lease Revenues $ 5,355,064  
 
The cost and carrying amount of leased assets and depreciation on those assets is presented below. 
 
Carrying Value of Leased Assets

Accumulated Carrying 
Class of Property Leased Assets Depreciation Value

Building $ 14,990,679      $ 4,384,623        $ 10,606,056      
Land 666,783          -                 666,783          

Totals $ 15,657,462      $ 4,384,623        $ 11,272,839      
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Note 8: Interagency Balances / Activity 
 
As of August 31, 2012, amounts to be received or paid between funds and agencies are to be reported as: 

• Due from/to other state entities 
• Transfers in from/out to other state entities 
• Legislative transfers in/out 

 
The Texas A&M Health Science Center made transfers with other state agencies, which were consistent with 
the activities of the fund making the transfer.  Individual balances and activity at August 31, 2012, were as 
follows: 
 
DUE FROM/TO OTHER STATE ENTITIES

Entity

Due from 
Other State 

Entities
Due to Other 
State Entities Purpose

Agency 720, University of Texas System $ 2,523,067 $ Shared cash in Permanent Endowment Fund 
Agency 537, Department of State Health Services 65,773 Federal pass through funds related to contracts and grants 
Agency 537, Department of State Health Services 67,153 State pass through funds related to contracts and grants 
Agency 723, University of Texas Medical Branch at Galveston 81,577 Federal pass through funds related to contracts and grants 
Agency 506, University of Texas M.D. Anderson Cancer Center 8,256 Federal pass through funds related to contracts and grants 
Agency 506, University of Texas M.D. Anderson Cancer Center 157,479 State pass through funds related to contracts and grants 
Agency 744, University of Texas Health Science Center at Houston 28,402 Federal pass through funds related to contracts and grants 
Agency 785, University of Texas Health Center at Tyler 994 Federal pass through funds related to contracts and grants 
Agency 542, Cancer Prevention and Research Institute of Texas 1,558,253 State pass through funds related to contracts and grants 
Agency 729, University of Texas Southwestern Medical Center at D 6,500 State pass through funds related to contracts and grants 
Agency 732, Texas A&M University - Kingsville 2,489 Federal pass through funds related to contracts and grants 
Agency 710, Texas A&M University System 7,432,545 RFS/PUF debt proceeds
Texas A&M Research Foundation 2,769,770 Payroll reimbursement and indirect cost earnings 
Agency 300, Governor, Fiscal 1,084,853 State pass through funds related to contracts and grants 

$ 14,702,258 $ 1,084,853

TRANSFERS IN FROM/OUT TO OTHER STATE ENTITIES

Entity

Transfers In 
from Other 

State Entities

Transfers Out  
to Other State 

Entities Purpose
Agency 781, Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board $ $ 150,919 Tuition set asides
Agency 710, Texas A&M University System 1,196,942 Mandatory debt service
Agency 710, Texas A&M University System 170,208 System Endowment Fund appreciation reserve
Agency 710, Texas A&M University System 6,200,000 RFS/PUF debt proceeds
Agency 710, Texas A&M University System 969,998 System Endowment Fund appreciation reserve
Agency 710, Texas A&M University System 300,000 Grant matching funds
Agency 710, Texas A&M University System 27,001 Resource Allocation Program
Agency 556, Texas Agrilife Research 87,872 Capital Assets
Agency 712, Texas Engineering Experiment Station 2,358 Capital Assets
Agency 506, University of Texas M.D. Anderson Cancer Center 109,052 Capital Assets

$ 7,696,281 $ 1,518,069

LEGISLATIVE TRANSFERS IN/OUT

Entity
Legislative 

Transfers In
Legislative 

Transfers Out Purpose
Agency 710, Texas A&M University System $ $ 8,294,726 Mandatory Debt Service

$ 0 $ 8,294,726  
 
 
Note 9: Contingent Liabilities 
 

 At August 31, 2012, various lawsuits and claims involving the Texas A&M Health Science Center 
and its members had arisen in the course of conducting Texas A&M Health Science Center business.  
While the ultimate liability with respect to litigation and other claims cannot be reasonably estimated 
at this time, management is of the opinion that the liability not provided for by insurance or 
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otherwise, if any, for these legal actions will not have a material adverse effect on the A&M 
System’s financial position.  

 
Note 10: Risk Financing and Related Insurance 
 

 Risk financing and related insurance is managed centrally at the A&M System.  Information 
included below is presented from the A&M System perspective.  All unpaid claim liabilities are held 
on A&M System books and are not applicable to the Texas A&M Health Science Center. 

 
 The A&M System is exposed to various risks of loss related to property – fire, windstorm or other 

loss of capital assets; general and employer liability – resulting from alleged wrongdoings by 
employees and others; net income – due to fraud, theft, administrative errors or omissions, and 
business interruptions; and personnel – unexpected expense associated with employee health, 
termination or death.  As an agency of the State of Texas, the A&M System and its employees are 
covered by various immunities and defenses which limit some of these risks of loss, particularly in 
liability actions brought against the A&M System or its employees.  Remaining exposures are 
managed by self-insurance arrangements, contractual risk transfers, the purchase of commercial 
insurance, or a combination of these risk financing techniques. 

  
 All commercial insurance policies include retention amounts (deductibles) for which the A&M 

System is responsible and for which A&M System members maintain funding reserve pools.  
Ongoing analysis of the risks facing the A&M System results in the continual evaluation of 
insurance policies purchased.  

 
 The A&M System has self-insured arrangements for coverage in the areas of workers’ 

compensation, group health and dental insurance and certain areas of medical malpractice.  Based on 
the requirements of GASB No. 10, liabilities for claims have been reported where information prior 
to issuance of the financial statements indicated that it was probable that a liability had been incurred 
and the amount of the loss could be reasonably estimated. 

 
 The workers’ compensation plan is considered a funded employer liability pool.  The workers’ 

compensation incurred but not reported liability is based on actuarial analysis of all historical claims 
data.  The plan provides claims servicing and claims payments by charging a “cost allocation” 
assessment to each A&M System member based on a percentage of payroll.   

 
 The A&M System implemented a self-insured health and dental plan on September 1, 1994, which is 

also considered a funded pool.  Premiums are determined through an actuarial pricing process that 
takes place each spring.  The A&M System maintains an experience stabilization fund of 
$51,188,287.56 that is comprised of excess premiums from previous years and is used to offset 
losses in a given year.  Dental benefits under the plan are limited to $1,500 per individual per year, 
so the potential for catastrophic loss is not a significant risk. 

 
The Texas A&M Health Science Center College of Medicine has established a medical student 
liability self-insurance plan (the Plan) to provide eligible medical students of the Texas A&M Health 
Science Center College of Medicine with medical malpractice liability indemnity from and against 
medical malpractice claims.  Limits of liability are $25,000 per claim, $75,000 aggregate per 
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participant, and $100,000 annual aggregate.  The Plan is funded through a student participation fee.  
At August 31, 2012, the Plan had a balance of $311,424 with no accrued liabilities. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Note 11: Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability 
 
Changes to the financial reports of the Texas A&M Health Science Center are discussed in Note 1.  
The Texas A&M Health Science Center has no material violations of finance related legal and 
contract provisions.  Per the laws of the State of Texas, the Texas A&M Health Science Center 
cannot spend amounts in excess of appropriations granted by the Texas Legislature and there are no 
deficits reported in net assets or retained earnings. 
 
The Texas A&M Health Science Center Foundation is organized exclusively for the charitable, 
educational or scientific purposes of the Texas A&M Health Science Center and is operated 
exclusively to receive, hold, invest and administer property, real and personal, tangible and 
intangible, and to make expenditures to or for the benefit of the Texas A&M Health Science Center.  
The Texas A&M Health Science Center carried the Texas A&M Health Science Center Foundation 
in Agency Funds.  As of August 31, 2012, the Texas A&M Health Science Center held funds for the 
Foundation in Agency Funds totaling $16,179,269. 
 
Note 12: The Financial Reporting Entity 
 

 The A&M System is composed of a series of distinct members, each of which was created to render 
a specific service for the State within the limits of the A&M System's objectives, and all of which 
are under the control and direction of the Board of Regents of the A&M System.  The Texas A&M 
Health Science Center is a distinct member of the A&M System.  The Texas A&M Health Science 
Center has no component units. 

 
 One private entity is included in the A&M System combined annual financial report.  Although the 

following entity is legally separate, due to its close relationship it is reported as if it were part of the 
A&M System: 

 
 Blended Component Unit 

 
The Texas A&M Research Foundation (Research Foundation) has been included as a blended 
component unit in the combined financial statements of the A&M System since fiscal year 1990, at 

Plan  WCI Health & Dental
             IBNR Liability 9/1/11  $          7,349,000  $            10,218,000 

CY Claims Plus Change in Estimates              2,723,000              178,306,499 

Claims Payments             (3,041,000)            (174,433,499)
Other Items (changes in estimates)                (463,000)                               -   
IBNR Liability 8/31/12  $          6,568,000  $            14,091,000 

IBNR Liability
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the direction of the State Auditor's Office.  This determination is based on the close relationship and 
joint agreements in effect between the Research Foundation and the A&M System in regard to 
research grant/contract administration, as well as the fact that various officials of the A&M System 
serve as ex-officio voting and non-voting trustees, and members of the executive committee of the 
Research Foundation. The Research Foundation has a fiscal year end of August 31, 2012 and is Fund 
Type 05, Appd Fund 9999. Complete financial statements of the Research Foundation may be 
obtained from their administrative offices at 400 Harvey Mitchell Parkway South, Suite 100, College 
Station, Texas, 77845.  
 
As of August 31, 2012, the Research Foundation had total Research and Development Expenditures 
for the Texas A&M Health Science Center of $29,534,885.   
 
A new agency, A&M System- Office of Sponsored Research Services, now manages a number of 
the relationships and agreements that the Texas A&M Research Foundation has previously managed 
beginning in 2012.  The intent is to move the majority of fiscal activity to each System member’s 
financial statements.  We will begin to see a reduction in the balances and activities reported by the 
Texas A&M Research Foundation.   
 
Note 13: Employee Retirement Plans 

Information included in this note is presented from a A&M System perspective.   

The State of Texas has joint contributory retirement plans for substantially all of its employees.   

Teacher Retirement System pension plan 

One of the plans in which the A&M System participates is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined 
benefit pension plan administered by the Teacher Retirement System of Texas (TRS Plan).  
Participating employers in the TRS Plan include public schools, service centers, charter schools, and 
community colleges as well as the State of Texas, which covers employees of colleges, universities, 
medical schools, and certain other state agencies.  Employees of the A&M System are members of 
the TRS Plan if they are employed on a half-time or greater basis, unless they participate in the 
Optional Retirement Program, described below, or are students employed in a position that requires 
student status as a condition of employment. 

Benefits under the TRS Plan are established or amended by the Texas Legislature in state law, as 
provided by Texas Government Code, Chapter 824.  Benefits include retirement and disability 
annuities and death and survivor benefits.  A member is vested after earning five years of creditable 
service.  The normal service retirement is at age 65 with 5 years of credited service or, for members 
who established and maintained membership before September 1, 2007, when the sum of the 
member’s age and years of credited service equals or exceeds 80 years (Rule of 80).  For members 
who established membership on or after September 1, 2007, members must be at least age 60 with at 
least 5 years of credited service to retire under the Rule of 80.  Reduced service retirement is at age 
55 with 5 years of credited service and at any age below 50 with 30 years of credited service.  The 
standard life annuity benefit formula is 2.3 percent of the average of the five highest annual salaries 
multiplied by the years of service credit.  For certain “grandfathered” members, the three highest 
annual salaries are used.  The Teacher Retirement System issues a comprehensive annual financial 
report that includes the TRS Plan.  That report may be obtained by writing to TRS at the Teacher 
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Retirement System of Texas, 1000 Red River Street, Austin, Texas 78701-2698, or from the TRS 
Web site at www.trs.state.tx.us. 

Contribution requirements for employees and employers are not actuarially determined but are 
established in the Texas Constitution and pursuant to state law passed by the Texas Legislature each 
biennium.  The state constitution requires the legislature to establish a member contribution rate of 
not less than 6% of the member’s annual compensation and a state contribution rate of not less than 
6% and not more than 10% of the aggregate annual compensation of all members of the system 
during the fiscal year.  For the year ended August 31, 2012, the statutorily required contribution rate 
was 6.4% of annual compensation from active plan members and 6.0% of annual compensation from 
the A&M System. 

For the years ended August 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, the A&M System contributed 100% of the 
following statutorily required employer contributions: 

 2012 2011 2010 

Required Contribution Rate 6.00% 6.644% 6.644% 

Contributions Required & Made $1,854,599 $1,936,080 $1,985,134 

Optional Retirement Program 

The State has also established the Optional Retirement Program (ORP), a defined contribution plan 
for certain employees at public higher education institutions.  The ORP is authorized by Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 830, and is administered by the A&M System, subject to policies, 
practices, and procedures developed by the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board to provide 
greater uniformity in the administration of the program.  Participation in the ORP is in lieu of 
participation in the TRS Plan.  The ORP provides for the purchase of annuity contracts and mutual 
funds through companies that provide optional retirement programs for higher education institutions.  
Because these are individual investment contracts with investment or insurance companies, and 
future participant benefits are based on the performance of the selected investment instruments, 
neither the State nor the A&M System has any liability for investment performance or for retirement 
commitments beyond the required contributions.  Benefits in the ORP vest in a participant after one 
year of participation. 

State law provides for participant contributions of 6.65 percent of annual compensation and for a 
maximum employer contribution of 8.5 percent of a participant’s annual compensation.  Each 
biennium, the Texas Legislature establishes the State’s share of the employer contribution and 
permits the higher education institutions to contribute an additional amount so that total employer 
contributions do not exceed 8.5 percent.  Depending on the source of funding for the employee’s 
compensation, the A&M System may be required to make the employer contribution in lieu of the 
State.  During the year ended August 31, 2012, the required State contribution rate was 6.00 percent 
and the A&M System’s contribution rate was 0.40 percent of participants’ annual compensation. For 
participants who enrolled in the plan on or before August 31, 1995, the A&M System’s contribution 
was 2.50 percent. 
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For the year ended August 31, 2012, contributions to the ORP were as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Effective January 1, 1999, the A&M System implemented an excess benefit arrangement under 
Section 415(m) of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC).   

 
 Since the A&M System bears no responsibility for retirement commitments beyond contributions, 

GASB No. 25, Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note Disclosures for 
Defined Contribution Plans, and No. 26, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Healthcare Plans 
Administered by Defined Benefit Pension Plans, do not apply to these financial statements or 
disclosures. 

 
 The retirement expense to the Texas A&M Health Science Center was $2,941,805 for the year ended 

August 31, 2012.  Of this amount, $1,536,081 represents the portion of appropriations made by the 
State Legislature expended on behalf of the Texas A&M Health Science Center and $1,405,724 
represents the portion paid from the Texas A&M Health Science Center’s funds. 
 
Note 14: Deferred Compensation 

Information included in this note is presented from a A&M System perspective. 

State employees may elect to defer a portion of their earnings for income tax and investment 
purposes pursuant to authority granted in Texas Government Code, Section 609.001.  All payroll 
deductions have been invested in approved plans during the fiscal year.  Two deferred compensation 
plans are available for A&M System employees. 
 
The State’s 457 Plan complies with IRC Section 457.  This plan is referred to as the Texa$aver 
Deferred Compensation Plan (DCP) and is available to all employees.  The DCP is an employer-
sponsored plan administered by the Employees Retirement System of Texas (ERS). A&M System 
employees are permitted to participate in the plan as an agency of the State. The deductions, 
purchased investments and earnings attributed to the 457 Plan are held in trust and belong to the 
participants.  The State has no liability under the 457 Plan beyond the administrative requirements 
outlined in the corresponding provisions of the IRC. 
  
The A&M System also administers a Tax-Deferred Account (TDA) Program, created in accordance 
with IRC Section 403(b).  All employees are eligible to participate.  The TDA is an employer-
sponsored plan. The deductions, purchased investments, and earnings attributed to each employee’s 
403(b) plan are held by vendors chosen by the employee from an approved vendor list provided by 
the A&M System. The funds held in the accounts belong to the individual participants. The vendors 

Optional Retirement Program

Amount

Employer Contributions 40,627,092$            

Employee Contributions 36,894,582              

  Total 77,521,674$            
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may be insurance companies, banks, or approved non-bank trustees such as mutual fund companies.  
The assets of this plan do not belong to the A&M System or the State and thus do not have a liability 
related to this plan beyond the administrative requirements outlined in the corresponding provisions 
of the IRC. 
 
The 457(f) Deferred Compensation Plan allows the A&M System to defer income for eligible 
participants without regard to the amount deferred or an adverse impact on other retirement plans in 
which the participant is enrolled. The plan is structured under Section 457(f) of the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1986, as amended. It is authorized for use by Texas institutions of higher education in Title 
109, Article 6228a-5, Section 3 of Vernon’s Texas Civil Statutes. All employees of the A&M 
System are eligible to participate in this plan subject to the approval of the Board of Regents, the 
Chancellor, or any Chancellor-designated A&M System member Chief Executive Officer. 
 
Note 15: Donor-Restricted Endowments 
 
Donor-restricted endowments are managed centrally at the A&M System.  Information included in 
this note is presented from a A&M System perspective. 
 
The purpose of The A&M System Endowment Fund (the Fund) is to provide for the collective 
investment of all endowment and trust funds held by the A&M System or by the Board of Regents 
of the A&M System in a fiduciary capacity.  The Fund is used to provide funding for scholarships, 
fellowships, professorships, academic chairs and other uses as specified by donors. 
 
Distribution is made quarterly after the last calendar day of November, February, May, and August 
of each fiscal year to the endowment and trust funds participating in the Fund during the respective 
quarter. Income consists of interest earnings, dividends and realized capital gains. The income 
distribution per unit for each fiscal year will be to distribute, excluding fees, 5% of the 20-quarter 
average market value per unit as of the end of the previous February. 
 
The Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act, Texas Property Code, Chapter 163, 
provides general guidelines on how endowments should be maintained. 
 
The amount of net appreciation for donor restricted true endowments presented in the table below is 
available for authorization and expenditure by the A&M System.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Net Appreciation of Donor-Restricted Endowments

Donor-Restricted Amount of Reported in 

Endowments Net Appreciation* Net Assets

True Endowments 65,655,987$                 Restricted for Expendable

* The total fiscal year 2012 fair value adjustment to the Fund was $39,832,113.
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The amount of net appreciation for donor restricted endowments specific to the Texas A&M Health 
Science Center is $7,987,469. 
 
Note 16: Post-Employment Health Care and Life Insurance Benefits 

Post-employment health care and life insurance benefits are managed centrally by the Texas A&M 
University System for all system components.  Information included in this note is presented from a 
A&M System perspective.   
 
Plan Description and Funding Policy 
 
In addition to providing pension benefits, the State provides certain health care and life insurance 
benefits for retired employees in accordance with State statutes. Substantially all of the employees 
may become eligible for those benefits if they reach normal retirement age while working for the 
State. Those and similar benefits for active employees are provided through the group insurance 
program, and premiums are based on benefits paid during the previous year. The State recognizes 
the cost of providing these benefits by expensing the annual premiums.   For the year ending August 
31, 2012, the employer contributions are presented below. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
For the year ended August 31, 2012, benefit plan expenses totaled $157,228,100. The cost of 
providing benefits for 7,415 retirees was $39,855,108; and for 22,149 active employees the cost was 
$117,372,992.  
 
Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) are benefits provided to the A&M System’s retirees under 
the A&M System group insurance program. The authority under which the obligations of the plan 
members and the A&M System are established, and may be amended, is Chapter 1601, Texas 
Insurance Code. Retiree eligibility for insurance continuation is determined by the Legislature and is 
subject to change. 
 
The A&M System and member contribution rates are determined annually by the A&M System 
based on the recommendations of the A&M System Office of Benefits Administration. The plan 
rates are based on the plan costs that are expected to be incurred, the funds appropriated for the 
plans, and the funding policy established by the Texas Legislature in connection with benefits 
provided through the plan.  The A&M System revises benefits plans and rates as necessary to match 
expected costs with available revenue.  The plan is operated on a pay-as-you-go basis and is 
unfunded. 
 

Employer Contribution Rates

Level of Coverage Amount

Full-Time Employee/Retiree Only 367$           

Full-Time Employee/Retiree and Spouse 552$           

Full-Time Employee/Retiree and Children 482$           

Full-Time Employee/Retiree and Family 644$           
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Because the OPEB plan described herein is not administered through a trust as defined under 
Paragraph No. 4 of GASB Statement No. 43, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans 
Other Than Pension Plans, GASB Statement No. 43 accounting is not applicable to the A&M 
System. 

For the year ended August 31, 2012, the contributions for the self-funded plan by the state per full-
time retired employee are shown in the following table. The retiree contributes any premium over 
and above state contributions. 

 

 

 

 
 
 
The OPEB expense reflected in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets is 
net of the Employer Contributions, as these costs are included as a portion of Payroll Related Costs 
expense. 
 
Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation 
 
The annual OPEB cost of the plan is calculated and based on the annual required contribution 
(ARC).  The ARC is the amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB 
Statement No. 45.  The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is 
projected to cover normal costs each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a 
period of years, not to exceed 30 years.  The following table shows the components of the annual 
OPEB cost for the year for the plan: 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Three-Year Schedule of Employer Contributions

Fiscal Year Employer Annual Percentage of Annual Net OPEB Obligation

Ending Contribution OPEB Cost OPEB Cost Contributed At End of Fiscal Year

8/31/2012 63,131,287$         190,199,827$          33% 603,878,029$                    

8/31/2011 40,489,312$         174,919,214$          23% 476,809,489$                    

8/31/2010 40,173,687$         162,680,000$          25% 342,379,587$                    

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation
(in thousands of dollars)
Annual Required Contribution (ARC) 180,940$                 
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation 34,807                     
Adjustment to ARC (25,547)                    
Annual OPEB Cost 190,200                   
Employer Contributions Made (63,131)                    
Increase Net OPEB Obligation 127,069                   
Net OPEB Obligation 9/1/2011 476,809                   
Net OPEB Obligation 8/31/2012 603,878$                 
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Schedule of Funding Progress of the Plan 
 
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and 
assumptions about the probability of events far into the future.  The amounts determined for the 
funded status of the plan and the Annual Required Contribution of the employer are subject to 
continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made 
about the future.  The multiyear schedule of funding progress is presented in the following table: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 
 
Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as 
understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of 
each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan 
members to that point.  The actuarial methods and assumptions used in the plan valuation include 
techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the 
actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. Additional detail 
about the actuarial assumptions used in the plan valuation is outlined in the following table: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Medicare Part D 

 
In fiscal year 2012 the plan received payments from the federal government pursuant to the retiree drug 
subsidy provisions of Medicare Part D.  GASB Statement No. 24, Accounting and Financial Reporting 

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial Excess of Ratio of
Actuarial Accrued Assets Over Annual UAAL to

Actuarial Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered Covered

Valuation Assets (AAL) (Unfunded AAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date (a) (b) (a)-(b) (a)/(b) (c) ((a-b)/c)

8/31/2010 -$               1,996,798,639$      (1,996,798,639)$      0.0% 1,359,512,304$     146.9%

9/1/2010 -$               1,854,690,001$      (1,854,690,001)$      0.0% 1,313,538,458$     141.2%

9/1/2009 -$               1,864,320,000$      (1,864,320,000)$      0.0% 1,315,291,687$     141.7%

Summary of Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Actuarial Valuation Date September 1, 2011

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Amortization Method Open

Remaining Amortization Period of Unfunded Liability 30 years

Actuarial Assumptions:
Investment Rate of Return 7.3%
Inflation 3.0%
Health Care Trend Rates 9.5% in 2012

Decreasing to 5.0% in 2021
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for Certain Grants and Other Financial Assistance, requires that these on-behalf payments be recorded 
as revenues and expenses of each plan. In fiscal year 2012 the system received $3,834,332 of Medicare 
Part D payments from the federal government. 
 
Note 17: Disaggregation of Receivable and Payable Balances 
 
A summary of accounts receivable and associated allowances for doubtful accounts balances and 
accounts payable balances for the Texas A&M Health Science Center for the year ended August 31, 
2012, is presented below: 
 

Current Receivables Amount on SNA
Federal Receivables 1,125,686                      
Gift, Pledges & Donations 178,634                         
Student Receivables 57,393                           
Accounts Receivable 3,017,108                      

Total 4,378,821                      

Current Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable 3,127,233                      
Payroll Payable 8,942,944                      
Other 9,636                             

Total 12,079,813                     
 
Note 18: Termination Benefits 
 
Termination benefits are managed centrally at the A&M System.  Information included in this note 
is presented from a A&M System perspective.  The Texas A&M Health Science Center has no 
obligation to pay the A&M System for any termination benefits specifically incurred by the Texas 
A&M Health Science Center. 
 
As of August 31, 2012, the A&M System has not incurred obligations to pay voluntary or 
involuntary termination benefits in fiscal year 2013.  
 
For the fully-insured HMO health plans, dental plan, and vision plan, the carrier is responsible for 
the billing and collection from all COBRA participants. The carrier retains all premiums and is liable 
for all claims and expenses. Enrollment information for these plans is included below; however, the 
A&M System does not have premium and expense information related to these plans.  
 
For the self-insured health and dental plans, the carrier performs the billing and collections process 
for COBRA participants. The carrier then forwards the premium to the A&M System, net of the 2% 
administrative fee, which is intended to cover costs related to the billing and collection functions. 
However, since the plan is self-insured, the A&M System is responsible for any claims or 
administrative costs associated with COBRA participants, and these amounts are included below.  
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As part of the stimulus funding from the federal government, some terminated employees were 
eligible for the 65% subsidy for COBRA coverage.  The Federal Department of Labor agreed to 
reimburse employers the 65% COBRA reimbursement up to 15 months.  This applies to employees 
who were involuntarily terminated between September 1, 2008 and May 31, 2010.   The maximum 
end of the 15 month payment period was August 31, 2011.  The remaining balances received in 
fiscal year 2012 totaled $1,805.   
 
COBRA benefits for the A&M System for the year ended August 31, 2012 are as follows: 
 
 Termination Benefits - COBRA

Enrollment

 Self-Insured 
Medical Plan 

 Self-Insured 
Dental Plan 

Fully-Insured 
Medical HMO 

Plans
Fully-Insured 
Dental Plan

Fully-
Insured 

Vision Plan

Number of Participants 208 115 16 27 137

Self-Insured Activity

Premium Revenue 940,024$           69,165$          
2 Percent Administrative Fee Revenue 18,800               1,383              
Total COBRA Revenue 958,824             70,548            

Claims Paid 1,985,079          154,429          
Administrative Expenses 27,680               6,694              

Total COBRA Expenses 2,012,759          161,123          

Total Cost to State 1,053,935$        90,575$          
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Texas Woman’s University  
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
For the Fiscal Year Ended August 31, 2012 

 
Throughout its first century and into the first decade of its second, Texas Woman’s University has relied upon conservative financial 
policies to retain institutional stability and viability.   While other institutions have the luxury of support from billion dollar 
endowments, TWU, as an institution primarily for women, has been less fortunate.  Still, the University’s financial position is stout and 
stable, as illustrated in the year-to-year comparison below:  

FY12 FY11 % Change $ Change
Current Assets $ 167,182,729 $ 160,419,979 4.22% 6,762,750
Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation) 236,017,246 240,193,228 -1.74% (4,175,982)
Other Non-current Assets 103,024,850 103,951,083 -0.89% (926,233)
Total Assets $ 506,224,825 $ 504,564,290 0.33% 1,660,535

Current Liabilities 57,876,455 62,562,683 -7.49% (4,686,228)
Non-Current Liabilities 80,674,698 85,765,530 -5.94% (5,090,832)
Total Liabilities $ 138,551,153 $ 148,328,213 -6.59% (9,777,060)

Net Assets
    Invested in Capital (Net of Debt) $ 153,126,694 $ 151,626,132 0.99% 1,500,562
    Restricted 102,943,290 96,468,176 6.71% 6,475,114
    Unrestricted 111,603,688 108,141,769 3.20% 3,461,919
Total Net Assets $ 367,673,672 $ 356,236,077 3.21% 11,437,595

 Current Ratio 2.89 2.56 Current Assets  / Current Liabilities
Debt/Asset Ratio 0.27 0.29 Total Liabilities / Total Assets

Debt - to - Unrestricted Net Assets 0.22 0.24 Non-Current Liabilities / Unrestricted Net Assets

Improvement in each ratio above.

Statement of Net Assets

 

The increase of over 3% in Net Assets was realized primarily as a result of a reduction in long-term debt though the refunding issue of 
bonds.  On June 5, 2012 the University issued $17,915,000 in Revenue Financing System Refunding Bonds (RFSRB-2012) with an average 
interest rate of 2.422% to refund $18,860,000 of outstanding bonds from 3 earlier series with an average interest rate of 4.922%.  
Additional information is available in Note 5. 
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With the absence of significant endowed resources, TWU operations remain dependent on support from the state and on board 
designated tuition.  In FY12, state appropriated funds for operations dropped by $8.5 Million, or 12.6%.  The results are evident in the 
year-to-year comparison of key values of the Operating Statement, particularly in the Non-Operating section: 

 

Continued on next page 
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In addition to the decline in state appropriations, revenue from gifts also declined, and a loss was sustained on the disposal of Capital 
Assets.  The capital loss was a unique transaction that resulted from the combination of the University’s Dallas operations at the new 
TWU T. Boone Pickens Institute of Health Sciences-Dallas Center.  This new campus opened in January 2011, but the sale of the old 
campus property at Presbyterian Hospital in Dallas was delayed until FY 2012.  A capital gain recognized in FY2011 from sale of the 
former Dallas Parkland campus offsets the loss on the Presbyterian Campus recognized in FY2012.   

As a result of declining state support and a one-time capital loss, the University suffered a 9% reduction in its Composite Financial Index 
(CFI).  While the drop in CFI is disappointing, the current score shows a secure financial status to sustain the University’s initiatives as it 
competes for future resources.  Information about the CFI, its calculation and its meaning are provided on the following two pages.   
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Composite Financial Index (CFI) for Texas Woman’s University 

FY12 FY11 FY10 FY09 FY08 FY07 FY12 FY11 FY10 FY09 FY08 FY07

1.1461     1.0640 1.1100 1.1521 1.0424 0.8003 3.0162 2.7999 2.9211 3.0319 2.7431 2.1061
0.0204     0.0991 0.1016 0.1097 0.0836 0.1431 0.1568 0.7625 0.7813 0.8437 0.6434 1.1010
0.0351     0.0821 0.0832 0.0958 0.0694 0.1283 0.3514 0.8212 0.8325 0.9576 0.6937 1.2830
2.4397     2.0666 1.9603 2.2015 2.3207 2.4382 2.0477 1.7345 1.6453 1.8478 1.9478 2.0465

Composite Financial Index > 5.5721 6.1182 6.1802 6.6810 6.0279 6.5366

TWU's Composite Financial Index (CFI) History

 Net Operating Revenues
 Return on Net Assets  
 Viability

Ratios Converted & Weighted Core Ratio Values 
 Primary Reserve  

 
After sustaining a CFI of 6+ for the last 5 years, the decline experienced in FY12 is disappointing.  While management can work to 
improve the revenue recognized from gifts, and no significant disposal of capital assets is contemplated, the flow of appropriations 
from the state is in the hands of the legislature currently in session.  Based on the original bills posted in January 2013, it appears that 
state appropriations for TWU in the next biennium will remain very close to those budgeted for the FY12-13 biennium. 

Change in Core Ratios FY12 FY11 ∆ FY12 FY11 ∆ %∆
1.1461     1.0640 0.0822     3.0162     2.7999 0.2162     7.7%
0.0204     0.0991 (0.0787)    0.1568     0.7625 (0.6057)    -79.4%
0.0351     0.0821 (0.0470)    0.3514     0.8212 (0.4699)    -57.2%
2.4397     2.0666 0.3732     2.0477     1.7345 0.3132     18.1%

Composite Financial Index > 5.5721     6.1182     (0.5461)    -8.9%
An $8.2 Million reduction in State Appropriated Revenue was the principal cause for this drop  

Ratios Converted & Weighted
Narrative Analysis

FY12 vs. FY11

  The Primary Reserve climbed back to its FY09 peak.

A precipitous decline in Net Operating Revenue Ratio

A significant decline in Return on Net Asset Ratio

Viability Ratio ascended to a new high.

Net Result is a 9% drop in the CFI.

 Primary Reserve  
 Net Operating Revenues
 Return on Net Assets  
 Viability

 

Composite Financial Index (CFI) Information and Methodology 
 

http://www.cic.org/projects_services/infoservices/fit/cfi_information.asp 
The Composite Financial Index (CFI) provides a more complex picture of the financial health of the institution at a point in time than is 
possible by simply comparing multiple indicators.  Examining the trend of an institution’s CFI score over an extended period offers a 
more stable long-term view of an institution’s financial performance, given fluctuations in institutional conditions, and external 
circumstances, such as market performance. 

The CFI includes four commonly used financial ratios: 
 

Primary Reserve Ratio – A measure of the level of financial flexibility 
 

Net Operating Revenues Ratio – A measure of the operating performance 
 

Return on Net Assets Ratio – A measure of overall asset return and performance 
 

Viability Ratio – A measure of the ability to cover debt with available resources 

Continued on next page 

http://www.cic.org/projects_services/infoservices/fit/cfi_information.asp
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Once each of the four ratios is calculated, the relative strength of the score, or strength factor, and its importance in the mix of 
creating a composite score, or weight, are computed. The result is one weighted score for each indicator that when added together 
produces the Composite Financial Index. 

 

The strength factors and CFI score are standardized scores that fall along a scale of -1 to 10.  A CFI score of 3 is the threshold of 
institutional financial health. A score of less than 3 indicates a need for serious attention to the institution’s financial condition. A 
score of greater than 3 indicates an opportunity for strategic investment of institutional resources to optimize the achievement of 
institutional mission. 

 

Scale from NACUBO presentation, Composite Financial Index, Measuring Reporting and Monitoring 
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Texas Woman’s University 
Statement of Net Assets 
August 31, 2012 

(See Independent Accountant’s Report on Page 1) 

 
 

ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 3) $ 51,291,674
Short-Term Investments (Note 3) 3,738,662
Restricted:

Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 3) 32,076,523
Short-Term Investments (Note 3) 27,980,007
Legislative Appropriations 27,623,064

Receivables, Net of Allowances:
Student Accounts 11,794,162
Federal 2,093,296
Interest and Dividends 656,661
Texas Grants 1,763,077
Other 337,504

Due from Other State Entities (Note 8) 220,251

Consumable Inventories 847,289
Prepaid Expenses 979,397
Loans and Contracts 5,781,163

Total Current Assets $ 167,182,729

Non-Current Assets
Restricted:
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 3) $ 31,718,669
Investments (Note 3) 71,306,181
Capital Assets (Note 2):

Non-Depreciable 4,846,666
Depreciable and Amortizable 394,280,663

Less: Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization (163,110,083)
Total Non-Current Assets $ 339,042,096

Total Assets $ 506,224,825  
 
 
 



  

 
Page 8 

 

Texas Woman’s University  
Statement of Net Assets  (continued) 
August 31, 2012 

 
 

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities

Payables:
Accounts $ 2,401,295
Payroll 8,636,236

Due to Other State Entities (Note 8) 323,564
Deferred Revenue 37,861,792
Capital Lease Obligations (Notes 4, 6) 223,230
Employees' Compensable Leave (Note 4) 2,034,436
Accrued Bond Interest Payable 555,882
Revenue Bonds Payable (Notes 4, 5) 4,691,123
Other Current Liabilities 1,148,897

Total Current Liabilities $ 57,876,455

Non-Current Liabilities
Capital Lease Obligations (Notes 4, 6) $ 1,167,322
Employees' Compensable Leave (Note 4) 1,260,601
Revenue Bonds Payable (Notes 4, 5) 78,246,775

Total Non-Current Liabilities $ 80,674,698

Total Liabilities $ 138,551,153

NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt $ 153,126,694
Restricted for:

Non-Expendable
Permanent Funds, True Endowments, Annuities 9,363,204

Expendable
Debt Retirement 4,923,499
Capital Projects 59,531,672
Funds Functioning as Endowments 1,324,111
Other 27,800,804

Unrestricted 111,603,688
Total Net Assets $ 367,673,672

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



  

 
Page 9 

Texas Woman’s University  
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets 
For the Fiscal Year Ended August 31, 2012 

(See Independent Accountant’s Report on Page 1) 
 
 

OPERATING REVENUES
Tuition and Fees - Non-Pledged $ 807,869
Tuition and Fees - Pledged 89,506,473

Discounts and Allowances (20,885,097)
Auxiliary Enterprises - Pledged 27,561,651

Discounts and Allowances (4,963,449)
Federal Revenue 3,592,966
State Grant Revenue 5,693,290
Other Operating Grant Revenue 1,059,097
Other Operating Revenues 1,476,976

Total Operating Revenues $ 103,849,776

OPERATING EXPENSES
Cost of Goods Sold $ 58,311
Salaries and Wages 84,467,935
Payroll Related Costs 21,129,066
Professional Fees and Services 2,592,417
Travel 1,813,242
Materials and Supplies 13,590,118
Communications and Utilities 7,075,669
Repairs and Maintenance  3,800,832
Rentals and Leases 2,031,394
Printing and Reproduction 641,526
Depreciation and Amortization 14,433,498
Bad Debt Expense 906,204
Scholarships 15,790,641
Other Operating Expenses 6,759,625

Total Operating Expenses $ 175,090,478

Operating Income (Loss) $ (71,240,702)  
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Texas Woman’s University  
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets  (continued) 
For the Fiscal Year Ended August 31, 2012 

 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Legislative Appropriations $ 57,329,231
Gifts 1,186,173
Interest and Investment Income (Loss) 4,566,882
Investing Activities Expense (189,627)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments 674,459
Interest Expense and Fiscal Charges (4,416,103)
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Capital Assets (4,222,536)
Other Nonoperating Revenues - Pledged 20,061,647
Other Nonoperating Expenses (14,000)

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) $ 74,976,126

$ 3,735,424

OTHER REVENUES, EXPENSES, GAINS (LOSSES), AND TRANSFERS
Capital Appropriations (HEAF) $ 10,169,695
Transfers Out to Other State Entities (Note 8) (2,125,023)

Total Other Revenues, Expenses, Gains (Losses), and Transfers $ 8,044,672

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS $ 11,780,096

Net Assets, September 1, 2011 $ 355,730,744
Restatements (Note 12) 162,832
Net Assets, September 1, 2011, as Restated $ 355,893,576

NET ASSETS, August 31, 2012 $ 367,673,672

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

Income (Loss) Before Other Revenues, Expenses, Gains (Losses), and Transfers
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Texas Woman’s University  
Statement of Cash Flows 
For the Fiscal Year Ended August 31, 2012 

(See Independent Accountant’s Report on Page 1) 

 
 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Tuition and Fees $ 69,429,245
Proceeds from Research Grants and Contracts 10,345,353
Proceeds from Auxiliaries 22,598,202
Proceeds from Other Revenues 1,476,976
Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services (31,793,137)
Payments to Employees for Salaries (84,467,935)
Payments to Employees for Benefits (21,129,066)
Payments for Loans Provided (9,594,865)
Payments for Other Expenses (6,534,266)

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $ (49,669,493)

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Legislative Appropriations $ 55,204,208
Proceeds from Gifts 1,186,173
Proceeds from Other Sources 20,061,647

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Non-Capital Financing Activities  $ 76,452,028

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from State Appropriations (HEAF) $ 10,169,695
Proceeds from Issuance of Capital-Related Debt 19,743,712
Payments for Additions to Capital Assets (14,480,052)
Payments of Principal on Capital-Related Debt (23,380,000)
Payments of Interest on Capital-Related Debt (3,860,221)
Payments of Other Costs of Capital-Related Debt (268,261)

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related Financing Activities $ (12,075,127)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Sales of Investments $ 40,375,177
Proceeds from Interest and Investment Income 4,566,882
Proceeds from Principal Payment on Bonds 1,398,150
Payments to Acquire Investments (44,540,864)

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities $ 1,799,345

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 16,506,753

Cash and Cash Equivalents, September 1, 2011 $ 98,580,113

Cash and Cash Equivalents, August 31, 2012 $ 115,086,866  
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Texas Woman’s University  
Statement of Cash Flows (continued) 
For the Fiscal Year Ended August 31, 2012 

 
 

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to 
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Operating Income (Loss) $ (71,240,702)

Adjustments:
Depreciation and Amortization $ 14,433,498
Bad Debt Expense 906,204
Operating Income and Cash Flow Categories:

Classification Differences
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:

(Increase) Decrease in Receivables 12,020,585
(Increase) Decrease in Due from Other Entities 554,817
(Increase) Decrease in Inventories (71,569)
(Increase) Decrease in Prepaid Expenses 44,176
Increase (Decrease) in Payables (150,829)
Increase (Decrease) in Due to Other Entities (622,297)
Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Revenue (5,454,394)
Increase (Decrease) in Employees' Compensable Leave (101,636)
Increase (Decrease) in Other Liabilities 12,654

Total Adjustments $ 21,571,209

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $ (49,669,493)

Non-Cash Transactions
Net Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments $ 674,459
Disposal of Capital Assets 4,222,536

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.  
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Texas Woman’s University 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Fiscal Year Ended August 31, 2012 

General Introduction 

These financial statements include a Statement of Net Assets; a Statement of Revenues, Expenses, 
and Changes in Net Assets; a Statement of Cash Flows; and the related Notes to the Financial 
Statements.  
 
Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Reporting Entity 

Texas Woman’s University (TWU) was created in 1901 by an Act of the Twenty-Seventh Legislature 
of the State of Texas, and the enacting statute laid a strong foundation for a multi-purpose 
institution of higher education.  As a publicly funded institution, TWU’s financial records comply 
with state statutes and regulations.  This includes compliance with the Texas Comptroller of Public 
Accounts’ Reporting Requirements for State Agencies and State Colleges and Universities. 

Prepared for the University’s decennial accreditation process, these financial statements for the 
fiscal year ending August 31, 2012 meet all requirements delineated in Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements – and Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis – for State and Local Governments.  The financial Statements include the Statement of Net 
Assets, the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Net Assets, and the Statement of 
Cash Flows. 

As part of the preparation of this financial report, consideration was given to the requirements of 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain 
Organizations Are Component Units.  The results of this evaluation determined that Texas Woman’s 
University has neither Blended nor Discrete Component Units.  Consequently, these statements 
present the financial position and results of operations for TWU alone. 

Fund Type, Measurement Focus, and Basis of Accounting 

For financial reporting purposes, Texas Woman’s University is considered a special-purpose 
government engaged only in business-type activities.  Accordingly, the University’s financial 
statements have been prepared and presented as an Enterprise Fund, using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting 

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its 
measurement focus.  The basis of accounting determines when revenues and expenditures or 
expenses are recognized in the accounts reported in the financial statements.   

Under the accrual basis, revenues are recognized when earned, and expenses are recorded when a 
liability has been incurred.  All significant intra-agency transactions have been eliminated.  
Operating items are distinguished from non-operating items.  Operating revenues and expenses 
result from providing services or producing and delivering goods in connection with the University’s 
principal ongoing operations.  Operating expenses include the cost of sales and services, 
administrative expenses, and depreciation or amortization on capital assets. 

The accompanying financial statements were prepared in conformance with generally accepted 
accounting principles as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).  The 
University applies all GASB pronouncements as well as Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) 
Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting Research 
Bulletins issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or 
contradict GASB pronouncements.  The University does not apply FASB pronouncements issued after 
November 30, 1989 in the preparation of the accompanying financial statements. 
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Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets 

ASSETS 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the University has adopted the definition provided in 
GASB Statement No. 9, and considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three 
months or less to be cash equivalents. 

Restricted Assets 

Restricted assets include monies or other resources restricted by legal or contractual requirements.  
These assets include proceeds of enterprise fund general obligation and revenue bonds and 
revenues set aside for statutory or contractual requirements.  Assets held in reserve for guaranteed 
student loan defaults are also included. 

Inventories 

Inventories include both merchandise inventories on hand for sale and consumable inventories.  
Inventories are valued at cost, generally utilizing the last-in, first-out method.  The consumption 
method of accounting is used to account for inventories.  The cost of these items is expensed when 
the items are consumed. 

Capital Assets 

For classification of property assets, the University subscribes to the definitions and useful life 
classifications provided in the State Property Accounting Manual.  These can be reviewed at 
https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/spa/classcodes/index.php 

Assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of 
one year should be capitalized.  These assets are capitalized at cost or estimated historical cost, if 
actual historical cost is not available.  Donated assets are reported at fair value on the acquisition 
date.  Depreciation is charged to operations over the estimated useful life of the asset using the 
straight-line method. Categories and Useful Life for Capital Assets is shown in tabular form below. 

Capital Asset Categories and Assumed Useful Life Capitalization  (Months)
Category/Description Threshold Useful Life

Land and Land Improvements -$                     N/A
Buildings and Building Improvements 100,000$          360
Infrastructure, Depreciable 500,000$          312
Furniture and Equipment 5,000$              120
Vehicles, Boats and Aircrafts 5,000$              60 - 120
Construction in Progress -$                     N/A
Infrastructure, Non-Depreciable -$                     N/A
Other Assets (Artwork, Libraries, Leasehold Improvements) Various 120 - 180
Facilities and Other Improvements 100,000$          120 - 300
Land Use Rights Various 0 - 120
Computer Software Various 60 - 72
Other Intangible Capital Assets 100,000$          0 - 120  

Other Receivables 

Other receivables include year-end revenue accruals not included in any other receivable category. 

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/spa/classcodes/index.php
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LIABILITIES 

Accounts Payable 

Accounts Payable represents the liability for the value of assets or services received at the balance 
sheet date for which payment is pending. 

Employees Compensable Leave Balances 

Employees’ Compensable Leave Balances represent the liability that becomes “due” upon the 
occurrence of relevant events such as resignations, retirements, and uses of leave balances by 
covered employees.  Liabilities are reported separately as either current or non-current in the 
statement of net assets. 

Bonds Payable-Revenue Bonds 

Revenue bonds are reported at par.  Payables are reported separately as either current or non-
current in the statement of net assets. 

NET ASSETS 

The difference between fund assets and liabilities is “Net Assets”. 

Net assets are divided into three components—invested in capital assets, restricted, and 
unrestricted. 

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 

This amount represents the total amount of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and net 
of outstanding balances for bonds and other debt that is attributed to the acquisition, construction, 
or improvement of those assets. 

Restricted  

Restricted net assets represent resources that are constrained to a particular purpose, and are 
presented according to the purposes to which they are limited.  Grants, Student Loan Funds and 
Endowment assets are included in this category.  Restricted net assets result when constraints 
placed on net assets are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, and the 
like, or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.  Generally, when 
an expense is incurred that can be paid using either restricted or unrestricted resources, the 
University’s policy is to first apply the expense towards the restricted resources and then towards 
the unrestricted resources. 

Unrestricted 

This represents all resources not included in the other components.  These resources can be 
considered usable for any purpose, though they may not be in a spendable form, like cash.  
Unrestricted net assets often have constraints on resources, which are imposed by management but 
can be removed or modified. 

 

CLASSIFICATION OF REVENUE 

Operating Revenues 

Operating revenues include activities that have the characteristics of exchange transactions, such 
as (1) student tuition and fees, net of scholarship discounts and allowances, (2) sales and services 
of auxiliary enterprises, net of scholarship discounts and allowances, and (3) most Federal, state 
and local grants and contracts. 
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Non-operating Revenues 

Non-operating revenues include activities that have the characteristics of non-exchange 
transactions such as gifts and contributions, and other revenue sources that are defined as non-
operating revenues by GASB No. 9 and GASB No. 34, such as state appropriations and investment 
income. 

 

EXPENSES 
As a general operating policy the University applies restricted funds first in the payment of 
expenses for which both restricted and unrestricted funds are available.   
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Note 2: Capital Assets 

A summary of changes in Capital Assets for the year ended August 31, 2012, is presented below:  

Balance 
9/1/2011

Completed 
Construction 
in Progress Additions Deductions

Balance 
8/31/2012

Non-Depreciable and Non-Amortizable Assets:
Land and Land Improvements $ 4,846,666 $ $ $ $ 4,846,666
Construction in Progress 10,316,509 (21,798,391) 11,481,882 0

Total Non-Depreciable Assets $ 15,163,175 $ (21,798,391) $ 11,481,882 $ 0 $ 4,846,666

Depreciable and Amortizable Assets:
Buildings and Building Improvements $ 315,128,511 $ 20,945,517 $ $ (8,833,823) $ 327,240,205
Infrastructure 10,647,913 852,874 11,500,787
Facilities and Other Improvements 6,782,720 6,782,720
Furniture and Equipment 21,895,530 2,183,045 (1,213,063) 22,865,512
Vehicles, Boats, and Aircraft 2,074,263 269,738 2,344,001

Computer Software – Intangible 3,199,146 262,642 (127,335) 3,334,453
Other Capital Assets
     Library Books 20,536,399 282,744 (653,158) 20,165,985
     Museum and Art 47,000 47,000
Total Depreciable and Amortizable Assets at Historical Cost $ 380,311,482 $ 21,798,391 $ 2,998,169 $ (10,827,379) $ 394,280,663

Less Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization for:
Buildings and Building Improvements $ (103,796,017) $ $ (11,447,777) $ 4,797,493   $ (110,446,301)

Infrastructure (10,494,723) (51,083) (10,545,806)
Facilities and Other Improvements (5,367,962) (203,259) (5,571,221)
Furniture and Equipment (14,322,817) (1,895,870) 1,026,857 (15,191,830)
Vehicles, Boats, and Aircraft (1,482,848) (161,010) (1,643,858)
Computer Software – Intangible (3,156,293) (27,183) 127,335 (3,056,141)
Other Capital Assets

     Library Books (16,614,352) (647,115) 653,158 (16,608,309)
     Museum and Art (46,417) (200) (46,617)
Total Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization $ (155,281,429) $ 0 $ (14,433,497) $ 6,604,843 $ (163,110,083)

Depreciable and Amortizable Assets, Net $ 225,030,053 $ 21,798,391 $ (11,435,328) $ (4,222,536) $ 231,170,580
Capital Assets, Net $ 240,193,228 $ 0 $ 46,554 $ (4,222,536) $ 236,017,246  

One notable change in the Depreciable Capital Asset category is seen in the “Deduction” column above.  With the consolidation of the 
University’s Dallas-based operations at the TWU T. Boone Pickens Institute of Health Sciences-Dallas Center, the sale of the old campus 
building near Presbyterian Hospital was completed, resulting in a net reduction of approximately $9 Million in this asset category. 
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Note 3: Deposits, Investments, and Repurchase Agreements 

DEPOSITS
Bank Deposits (all deposits covered by FDIC insurance)    Carrying Amount Bank Balance

Cash in Bank $ 4,235,854         $ 5,767,161       

Total Bank Deposits $ 4,235,854         $ 5,767,161       

Composition of Cash and Cash Equivalents Carrying Amount

Cash on Hand $ 15,390              
Cash in State Treasury 12,530,096        
Total Bank Deposits (per above) 4,235,854         
Other Cash Equivalents (included in the Investments note disclosure) 98,305,526        

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 115,086,866

Cash and Cash Equivalents per Statement of Net Assets Carrying Amount

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Current Assets $ 51,291,674        
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Current Assets, Restricted 32,076,523        
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Non-Current Assets, Restricted 31,718,669        

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents per Statement of Net Assets $ 115,086,866       
INVESTMENTS 

The University’s Investment holdings and activity are governed by the Investment Policy adopted by the Board of Regents 
(http://www.twu.edu/regents/investment-policy.asp), which is, in turn, styled to assure compliance with the Public Funds Investment 
Act of the State of Texas (Texas Gov’t Code 2256).  Accordingly, the investment portfolio is very conservative, and investments are 
actively managed by SEC certified Investment Advisory firms.   Credit risk, interest rate risk, and foreign currency risk are all minimized 
by the strictures of the Regents’ Investment Policy.  This policy driven risk aversion is illustrated in the objectives stated in this brief 
excerpt: 

It is the policy of Texas Woman’s University to invest its funds primarily in instruments that emphasize the safety of the capital as well as 
the expected return on the investment.  Investment decisions are based on the overall investment strategy of the University rather than 
the performance of any single investment instrument.  The investment policy is governed by the following objectives: 

The investment instruments provide a measure of safety that protects the original principal contribution.  The primary aim of the 
investment is the avoidance of the loss of original investment. 

The investment instruments provide the necessary liquidity to meet the University’s daily operating and planned capital 
improvement needs which might be reasonably anticipated. 

The investment portfolio will be designed to provide an average yield equal to or greater than the yield on U. S. Treasury securities 
of comparable maturity to its maximum weighted average maturity.  The objective is to maintain a reasonable rate of return on 
investments through budgetary and economic cycles in line with the University’s investment risk constraints and cash flow needs. 

http://www.twu.edu/regents/investment-policy.asp
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Additional evidence of risk aversion is evident in the quality of investments held: 

Investment Type AAA AA+ A
U.S. Government Agency Obligations 2,325,792    17,076,128    1,322,928    
Corporate Obligations 4,680,392    37,343,888    1,006,615    
Corporate Asset and Mortgage Backed Securities 7,328,553     

Standard & Poor’s Rating for Investments Held

 
Since 2008, recession, turbulence in security markets, and Federal Reserve policy have created an environment with historically low short 
term investment yields.  As a result the target maturities of fixed income securities in TWU’s portfolio have stretched to longer durations.  
Average modified duration for the fixed income investments in both portfolios is shown below: 

Duration
(Years) Par Value
Under 5 995,000     
 6 - 10 625,000     
 11 - 20 1,150,000  
 21 - 27 937,526     

Total Par 3,707,526  

Modified Duration for 
Endowment Portfolio

 

Duration
(Years) Par Value
Under 5 49,004,195 

6 - 10 35,098,474 
Total Par 84,102,669 

General Portfolio
Modified Duration for

 

Valuation for all true investments is based on quoted market value at the close of business on August 31st.  For the category “Other 
Pooled Investment Funds”, the entire amount is attributed to the University’s accounts in TexPool (a 2a7-like investment pool, for which 
valuation is based on by net asset value per share of $1.00 USD per share) and other Money Market Accounts.  These accounts are reported 
as Cash Equivalents in the Statement of Net Assets. 

Investment Security Types $ Market Value % Portfolio
U.S. Treasury Securities 24,669,518       12.25%
U.S. Government Agency Obligations (Ginnie Mae, 
Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, Sallie Mae, etc) 20,724,848       10.29%
Corporate Obligations 43,030,895       21.37%
Corporate Asset and Mortgage Backed Securities 7,328,552         3.64%
Domestic Equity 6,269,154         3.11%
International Equity (ETF and Index Funds) 965,401            0.48%
Other Pooled Investment Funds 98,342,008       48.85%

Total 201,330,376     100.00%  
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Reconciliation of Investments per Note Disclosure to Investment Accounts on the Statement of Net Assets

Total Investments, per above disclosure $ 201,330,376
Less Investments included on the Statement of Net Assets in Cash Equivalents line items (98,305,526)

Total Investment Accounts on the Statement of Net Assets $ 103,024,850

Investment Accounts on the Statement of Net Assets
Current Assets – Short-Term Investments $ 3,738,662
Current Assets – Restricted Short-Term Investments 27,980,007
Non-Current Assets – Investments 71,306,181

Total Investments per Statement of Net Assets  $ 103,024,850  

Note 4: Summary of Long-Term Liabilities 

Changes in Long Term Liabilities 

The table below summarizes the changes that occurred in liabilities during the year ended August 31, 2012. 
 

Balance 
9/1/2011 Additions Deductions

Balance 
8/31/2012

Amounts 
Due Within 
One Year

Non-Current 
Amounts

Capital Lease Obligations $ 1,602,096    $ -                 $ 211,544      $ 1,390,552    $ 223,230      $ 1,167,322    
Employees’ Compensable Leave 3,488,757    2,726,109    2,919,829    3,295,037    2,034,436    1,260,601    
Revenue Bonds Payable 87,156,043  19,161,855  23,380,000  82,937,898  4,691,123    78,246,775  
     Total $ 92,246,896  $ 21,887,964  $ 26,511,373  $ 87,623,487  $ 6,948,789    80,674,698    

 
Detailed information is provided in Note 5 for Revenue Bonds Payable and in Note 6 for Capital Lease Obligations. 
 
Employees’ Compensable Leave 

A state employee is entitled to be paid for all unused vacation time accrued, in the event of the employee’s resignation, dismissal, or 
separation from State employment, provided the employee has had continuous employment with the State for six months. 

Full-time state employees earn annual leave from eight to twenty-one hours per month depending on the respective employees’ years of 
state employment.  The State’s policy is that an employee may carry his accrued leave forward from one fiscal year to another fiscal year 
with a maximum number of hours up to 532 for those employees with 35 or more years of state service.  Employees with at least six 
months of state service who terminate their employment are entitled to payment for all accumulated annual leave up to the maximum 
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allowed.  The University recognizes the accrued liability for the unpaid annual leave.  For the year ended August 31, 2012, the accrued 
liability totaled $3,295,037. 

The University made lump sum payments totaling $337,848 for accrued vacation (and/or compensatory time) to employees who separated 
from state service during fiscal year ending August 31, 2012.  

Sick leave, the accumulation of which is unlimited, is earned at the rate of eight hours per month and is paid only when an employee is 
off due to illness or to the estate of an employee in the event of his/her death.  The maximum sick leave that may be paid an employee’s 
estate is one-half of the employee’s accumulated entitlement or 336 hours, whichever is less.  The University’s policy is to recognize the 
cost of sick leave when paid and the liability is not shown in the financial statements since experience indicates the expenditure for sick 
leave to be minimal.     
 

Note 5: Bonded Indebtedness 

The Board of Regents has authorized the creation of the University’s Revenue Financing System which issues revenue bonds held to 
support capital projects of the University.  At August 31, 2012, the future liabilities related to outstanding series of bonds are listed 
below.    

REVENUE BONDS PAYABLE

Total Total
Year  Principal  Interest 

2013 (Future Yr 1) $ 4,530,000     $ 3,522,531   
2014 (Future Yr 2) 4,385,000     3,392,019   
2015 (Future Yr 3) 4,535,000     3,239,944   
2016 (Future Yr 4) 4,705,000     3,072,494   
2017 (Future Yr 5) 4,870,000     2,913,606   
2018-2022 (Future yrs 6-10) 25,665,000   11,214,985 
2023-2027 (Future yrs 11-15) 21,585,000   5,855,290   
2028-2032 (Future yrs 16-20) 8,715,000     1,446,775   
2033-2037 (Future yrs 21-25) 2,510,000     261,631      
Total $ 81,500,000   $ 34,919,276  

Also included in the accounts for bonded indebtedness are unamortized original issue premiums totaling $1,437,898.  
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A significant restructuring of bonded indebtedness was completed during the fiscal year. 

On June 5, 2012 the University issued $17,915,000 in Revenue Financing System Refunding Bonds (RFSRB-2012) with an average interest 
rate of 2.422% to refund $18,860,000 of outstanding bonds from 3 earlier series with an average interest rate of 4.922%: 

Date of Coupon
Series Maturities Par Amount Redemption Range

Combined Fee Revenue Bonds, Series 1999 2013 - 2019 3,965,000$    12-Jun-12 4.600% to 4.750%

Combined Fee Revenue Bonds, Series 2002 2013 - 2022 10,830,000    1-Jul-12 4.400% to 5.000%
Revenue Financing System Refunding and 
Improvement Bonds, Series 2004A

2017 - 2024 4,065,000      1-Jul-14 5.00%

Total 18,860,000$  

Summary of Refunded Bonds

 
The net proceeds of $19,695,877.63 (after payment of underwriting fees and other costs of issuance) were deposited in an irrevocable 
trust with an escrow agent (Bank of New York-Mellon) to provide for all future debt service payments on the bonds listed above.  As a 
result, the refunded bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability for them has been removed from the Statement of Net Assets. 

In June and July the escrow agent applied $15.3 Million from the escrow account to pay interest and principal on called bonds.  At August 
31, 2012 the escrow account holdings consisted of 4 U.S. Treasury securities with a market value of $ 4,452,777.84. These funds will be 
applied to make interest payments and call the remaining bonds in 2014. 

The refunding transaction resulted in deferred expenditures of $638 Thousand, but TWU also received an original issue premium of $2 
Million on the new bonds.  As a result of this refunding transaction, the University reduced its aggregate debt service payments by almost 
$3.8 Million over the next 12 years and obtained an economic gain (difference between the present values of the old and new debt service 
payments) of $2.6 Million.  All of the defeased debt was supported by the State of Texas (Tuition Revenue Bonds), so the savings are 
passed through to the citizens of the State. 

General information related to each series of bonds outstanding during FY2012 is summarized below: 

Combined Fee Revenue Bonds, Series 1999 

 To provide funds for the renovation of the TWU Denton Campus Human Development Building, Arts and Science Building, major 
repairs and renovations of other education and general buildings, and for paying costs of issuance for the bonds. 

 Issued 02-01-99.  The issue is defeased. 

 $8,500,000; all bonds have been issued.  All bonds still outstanding were called 07-01-12. 

 Source of revenue for debt service – Pledged revenues including a General Revenue Appropriation. 
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Combined Fee Revenue Bonds, Series 2002 

 To provide funds for the renovation and upgrading of buildings on the Denton and Dallas campuses, including, but not limited to, 
fire safety compliance, ADA improvements, environmental health and safety issues, electrical system upgrades, and for paying 
costs of issuance for the Bonds. 

 Issued 05-01-02.  The issue is defeased. 

 $17,500,000; all bonds have been issued.  All bonds still outstanding were called 07-01-12. 

 Source of revenue for debt service – Pledged revenues including a General Revenue Appropriation. 

Revenue Financing System Bonds, Series 2004 

 To provide funds for acquiring, purchasing, constructing, improving, renovating, enlarging or equipping property, buildings, 
structures, facilities, roads or related infrastructure for the University and paying certain costs of issuing the Bonds. 

 Issued 3-15-04. 

 $15,000,000; all bonds have been issued. 

 Source of revenue for debt service – Pledged revenues. 

Revenue Financing System Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2004A 

 To provide funds for acquiring, purchasing, constructing, improving, renovating, enlarging or equipping property, buildings, 
structures, facilities, roads or related infrastructure for the University, refunding certain outstanding debt obligations of the 
Board, and paying certain costs of issuing the Bonds. 

 Issued 12-1-04.  The issue is partially defeased. 

 $11,820,000; all bonds have been issued.   

 Source of revenue for debt service – Pledged revenues including a General Revenue Appropriation. 

Revenue Financing System Bonds, Series 2008 

 To provide funds for acquiring, purchasing, constructing, improving, renovating, enlarging or equipping property, buildings, 
structures, facilities, roads or related infrastructure for the University and paying certain costs of issuing the Bonds. 

 Issued 7-15-08. 

 $21,670,000; all bonds have been issued. 

 Source of revenue for debt service – Pledged revenues including a General Revenue Appropriation. 
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Revenue Financing System Bonds, Series 2009 

 To provide funds for acquiring, purchasing, constructing, improving, renovating, enlarging or equipping property, buildings, 
structures, facilities, roads or related infrastructure for the University, specifically, without limitations, to pay costs of 
constructing and equipping a new Institute for Health Sciences – Dallas Center on land leased by the University in the City of 
Dallas, Texas, and (ii) paying certain costs of issuing the Bonds. 

 Issued 1-15-09. 

 $20,400,000; all bonds have been issued. 

 Source of revenue for debt service – Pledged revenues. 

Revenue Financing System Bonds, Series 2009A 

 To provide funds for acquiring, purchasing, constructing, improving, renovating, enlarging or equipping property, buildings, 
structures, facilities, roads or related infrastructure for the University, specifically, without limitation, to pay costs of constructing 
and equipping a new fitness and recreation center on the Denton campus, and (ii) paying certain costs of issuing the Bonds. 

 Issued 12-01-09. 

 $14,980,000; all bonds have been issued. 

 Source of revenue for debt service – Pledged revenues. 

Revenue Financing System Refunding Bonds, Series 2012 

 To provide funds for refunding certain outstanding obligations of the Board to realize a net present value debt service savings and 
to pay costs of issuance of the Bonds. 

 Issued 06-05-12. 

 $17,915,000; all bonds have been issued. 

 Source of revenue for debt service – Pledged revenues including a General Revenue Appropriation. 
 

Revenue Pledged for Debt Service (See table below) 

Pledged Revenue Required for Future Principal 
and Interest on Existing Revenue Bonds

$116,419,276

Term of Commitment Year Ending 08/31 2035
Percentage of Revenue Pledged 54%
Current Year Pledged Revenue $230,409,331
Current Year Principal and Interest Paid $8,068,247
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Note 6: Capital Leases 

The University has entered into long-term leases for financing the purchase of certain fixed assets.  Such leases are classified as capital 
leases for accounting purposes and, therefore, have been recorded at the present value of the future minimum lease payments at the 
inception of the lease.  The following is a summary of original capitalized costs of all such property under lease as well as the 
accumulated depreciation as of August 31, 2012: 

Assets under 
Capital Lease

Accumulated 
Depreciation

Buildings and Building Improvements $      2,809,510 $    (1,213,197)

     Total $ 2,809,510 $ (1,213,197)  

Future minimum lease payments under these capital leases, together with the present value of the net minimum lease payments at fiscal 
year-end, are as follows: 

Year Ended August 31, Total
2013 (Future Yr 1) $ 296,015
2014 (Future Yr 2) 296,015
2015 (Future Yr 3) 296,015
2016 (Future Yr 4) 296,015
2017 (Future Yr 5) 296,015
2018-2022 (Future yrs 6-10) 148,007
Total Minimum Lease Payments $ 1,628,080
Less: Amount Representing Interest at Various Rates (237,528)
Present Value of Net Minimum Lease Payments $ 1,390,552  

 

Note 7: Operating Leases 

Future minimum lease rental payments under non-cancelable operating leases having an initial term in excess of one year are as follows: 
 

 

Year Ended August 31, Total
2013 $ 41,596
2014 12,308
Total Minimum Future Lease Payments $ 53,903  

 
There are no obligations for operating leases after fiscal year 2014. 
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Note 8: Interagency Balances / Activity 

Texas Woman’s University experienced routine transfers with other state agencies that were consistent with the activities of 
the fund making the transfer.  Repayment of interagency balances will occur within one year from the date of the financial 
statement. 

Individual balances and activity at August 31, 2012, follows: 
 

DUE FROM/TO OTHER STATE ENTITIES

Entity

Due from 
Other State 

Entities
Due to Other 
State Entities Purpose

Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board $ 5,054             $ -                       THECB ST WS Mentorship outstanding invoices on ST P-T Grants
Department of Family Protective Services 96,384           -                       DFPS Outstanding Invoice and Unreimbursed Expenses for Fed P-T Grant CFDA 93.658
Texas Department of Agriculture -                      84                   TWU owes TDA for Unexpended ST P-T funds that TX AgriLife owes TWU
Texas AgriLife 84                   -                       TX AgriLife owes TWU for Unexpended funds from ST PT Grant from TDA
U. Texas Health Science Ctr-Houston 2,311             -                       Fed PT Grant to TWU from UTHSCH-Outstanding Invoice CFDA 93.110
Texas A&M U. Corpus Christi 8,565             -                       TX A&M-Corpus Christi owes TWU for Outstanding Invoices for ST P-T Grant

Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board
-                      

301,480         Unspent Funds ST P-T Funds from THECB WS Mentorship (local fnds), Top 10% and 
Prof. Nursing Scholar

Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board 74,595           -                       Net due from THECB for CRU-Prof Services & State Grants to TWU
Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board 33,257           -                       Due from THECB for Federal PT grants to TWU CFDA 84.378 & CFDA 84.367
Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board -                      22,000           Unspent Funds Fed Funds from THECB CFDA 84.378

    Totals    $ 220,251         $ 323,564         

TRANSFERS IN FROM/OUT TO OTHER STATE ENTITIES

Entity

Transfers In 
from Other 

State Entities

Transfers Out  
to Other State 

Entities Purpose
Texas Finance Authority $ -                      $ 1,242,749      Texas Finance Authority  principal payment
Texas Finance Authority -                      74,406           Texas Finance Authority Interest payment
Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board -                      784,435         Tuition Set Aside - Be On Time
Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board -                      23,433           Tuition Set Aside - Doctoral and Dental Hygiene

    Totals    $ -                      $ 2,125,023       
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Note 9: Contingent Liabilities 

At August 31, 2012, there were no material pending lawsuits or claims involving Texas Woman’s 
University.  Any claims incurred but not asserted against the University cannot be reasonably 
estimated at this time, and any such liability, to the extent not provided for by insurance or 
otherwise, is not likely to have a material effect on the University. 

The University has received several grants for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit 
by the grantor agencies.  Such audits could lead to a request for reimbursements to grantor 
agencies for expenditures disallowed under the terms of the grant.  Based on prior experience, 
management believes such disallowance’s if any, will be immaterial. 

 

Note 10: Risk Financing and Related Insurance 

The state now utilizes an allocation program that funds both workers' compensation 
benefits and risk management costs through annual assessments that participating 
agencies pay to the State Office of Risk Management (SORM). 
 

The University is required by certain bond covenants to carry fire and extended 
coverage and boiler insurance on buildings financed through the issuance of bonds using 
pledged Auxiliary Enterprise or other non-Educational and General Funds.  The insurance 
protects the bondholders from a disruption to the revenue stream that is being utilized to 
make the bond interest and principal payments.  In Fiscal Year 2012 this coverage was 
also purchased for buildings that are not financed with bonds. The total limit of liability 
is $400,000,000 and the carrier is Zurich American Insurance Company. 
 

The University carries a Commercial General Liability Policy through Travelers 
Insurance Company which provides insurance protection to pay for bodily injury or 
property damages. The policy provides coverage for liability arising from personal 
injury and advertising injury. While the general total limit of coverage is $1,000,000 
for each occurrence and $2,000,000 general aggregate. An Umbrella Excess Liability 
Protection Policy provides additional $10,000,000 coverage. 
 

The Texas Motor Vehicle Safety Responsibility Act requires that every non-
governmental vehicle operated on a state highway be insured for minimum limits of 
liability in the amount of $20,000/$40,000 bodily injury and $15,000 property 
damage.  However, Texas Woman's University has chosen to carry liability insurance 
on its licensed vehicles in the amount of $1,000,000 combined bodily injury and 
property damage.  This coverage is provided by Travelers Insurance Company.  In 
addition, the University carries the same coverage for leased vehicles. 
 

A Medical Professional Liability Policy is carried to cover Officers of the University, and 
employees of the Student Health Services Clinic, the University Family Counseling 
Clinic, the University Dental Hygiene Clinic, the Speech and Hearing Clinic, the TWU 
Counseling Center, the Stroke Center, the Fitness & Recreation Center, the Dysphagia 
Clinic, and the Exercise & Sports Nutrition Clinic. 
 

The University participates in the United Educators Insurance Risk Retention Group, Inc., 
with a limit of liability of $5,000,000 for each claim.  This legal liability policy covers 
Directors, Trustee, or Officers of the University. 
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In addition, the University carries crime coverage through Travelers Insurance as follows:  
 

$1,000,000  Employee Dishonesty
$1,000,000  Forgery and Alteration
$1,000,000  Computer Fraud
$1,000,000  Funds Transfer Fraud  

 
Note 11: The Financial Reporting Entity 

Texas Woman’s University is an Enterprise Fund reported in the State of Texas’ Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report as a Proprietary Fund Type.  There are no component units or related 
parties to be included in its financial statements.  Because the University is considered a 
component of the State of Texas, and because its financial information is included in the State’s 
audited Annual Financial Report, the University’s financial statements are usually not 
independently audited.  For SACS accreditation, a review of financial statements for fiscal year 
2012 has been completed by accountants independent of the University. 

 

Note 12: Restatement of Net Assets 

During FY 2012, the following adjustments were made which required the restatement of the 
amounts in Net Assets: 
 

 

 Balance of Net Assets August 31, 2011         355,730,744 
 Adjust Loan Balances for Perkins Nursing Loans                164,946 
 Adjust Grant Receivable Balance                  (2,114)
 Balance of Net Assets Sept. 1, 2011, As Restated         355,893,576  

 

Note 13: Employee Retirement Plans 

The State of Texas has joint contributory retirement plans for substantially all of its employees.   

Teacher Retirement System pension plan 

One of the plans in which the University participates is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined 
benefit pension plan administered by the Teacher Retirement System of Texas (TRS Plan).  
Participating employers in the TRS Plan include public schools, service centers, charter schools, and 
community colleges as well as the State of Texas, which covers employees of colleges, universities, 
medical schools, and certain other state agencies.  Employees of the University are members of the 
TRS Plan if they are employed on a half-time or greater basis, unless they participate in the 
Optional Retirement Program, described below, or are students employed in a position that 
requires student status as a condition of employment. 

Benefits under the TRS Plan are established or amended by the Texas Legislature in state law, as 
provided by Texas Government Code, Chapter 824.  Benefits include retirement and disability 
annuities and death and survivor benefits.  A member is vested after earning five years of 
creditable service.  The normal service retirement is at age 65 with 5 years of credited service or, 
for members who established and maintained membership before September 1, 2007, when the sum 
of the member’s age and years of credited service equals or exceeds 80 years (Rule of 80).  For 
members who established membership on or after September 1, 2007, members must be at least 
age 60 with at least 5 years of credited service to retire under the Rule of 80.  Reduced service 
retirement is at age 55 with 5 years of credited service and at any age below 50 with 30 years of 
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credited service.  The standard life annuity benefit formula is 2.3 percent of the average of the five 
highest annual salaries multiplied by the years of service credit.  For certain “grandfathered” 
members, the three highest annual salaries are used.  The Teacher Retirement System issues a 
comprehensive annual financial report that includes the TRS Plan.  That report may be obtained by 
writing to TRS at the Teacher Retirement System of Texas, 1000 Red River Street, Austin, Texas 
78701-2698, or from the TRS Web site at www.trs.state.tx.us. 

Contribution requirements for employees and employers are not actuarially determined but are 
established in the Texas Constitution and pursuant to state law passed by the Texas Legislature 
each biennium.  The state constitution requires the legislature to establish a member contribution 
rate of not less than 6% of the member’s annual compensation and a state contribution rate of not 
less than 6% and not more than 10% of the aggregate annual compensation of all members of the 
system during the fiscal year.  For the year ended August 31, 2012, the statutorily required 
contribution rate was 6.4% of annual compensation from active plan members and 6.0% of annual 
compensation from the University. 

For the years ended August 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, the University contributed 100% of the 
following statutorily required employer contributions: 

 2012 2011 2010 

Required Contribution Rate 6.0% 6.664% 6.664% 

Contributions Required & Made $2,766,253 $2,936,854 $2,841,561 

 

Optional Retirement Program 

The State has also established the Optional Retirement Program (ORP), a defined contribution plan 
for certain employees at public higher education institutions.  The ORP is authorized by Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 830, and is administered by the University, subject to policies, 
practices, and procedures developed by the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board to provide 
greater uniformity in the administration of the program.  Participation in the ORP is in lieu of 
participation in the TRS Plan.  The ORP provides for the purchase of annuity contracts and mutual 
funds through companies that provide optional retirement programs for higher education 
institutions.  Because these are individual investment contracts with investment or insurance 
companies, and future participant benefits are based on the performance of the selected 
investment instruments, neither the State nor the University has any liability for investment 
performance or for retirement commitments beyond the required contributions.  Benefits in the 
ORP vest in a participant after one year of participation. 

State law provides for participant contributions of 6.65 percent of annual compensation and for a 
maximum employer contribution of 8.5 percent of a participant’s annual compensation.  Each 
biennium, the Texas Legislature establishes the State’s share of the employer contribution and 
permits the higher education institutions to contribute an additional amount so that total employer 
contributions do not exceed 8.5 percent.  TWU’s Board of Regents has approved the additional 
contributions for employees of the University who were participating in ORP on or before August 31, 
1995.  Depending on the source of funding for the employee’s compensation, the University may be 
required to make the employer contribution in lieu of the State.  During the year ended August 31, 
2012, the required State contribution rate was 6.0 percent and the University’s contribution rate 
was 2.5 percent of participants’ annual compensation (for employees participating in ORP on or 
prior to August 31, 1995). 

 

http://www.trs.state.tx.us/
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For the year ended August 31, 2012, contributions to the ORP were as follows: 

 Participant contributions  $1,634,838 

 Employer contributions   1,756,397 

Total  $3,391,235  

Note 14: Deferred Compensation 

The following deferred compensation plans are available to University employees: 

University employees may elect to defer a portion of their earnings for income tax and investment 
purposes pursuant to authority granted in Texas Government Code, Section 609.001.  The state of 
Texas offers a deferred compensation plan to all state employees, referred to as the TexaSaver 457 
Plan and administered by the Employees Retirement System of Texas.  This plan is in accordance 
with Internal Revenue Code Section 457 and permits employees to defer a portion of their salary 
until future years.  Deferred amounts are invested in approved investment products offered by 
qualified vendors as directed by participating employees.  All amounts of compensation deferred 
under the plan, all property and rights purchased with those amounts, and all income attributable 
to those amounts, property, or rights are held in trust for the exclusive benefit of participants and 
their beneficiaries and may not be used for, or diverted to, any other expense, except to defray the 
reasonable expenses of administering the plan.  Neither the State nor the University is liable to a 
participating employee for the diminution in value or loss of all or part of the participating 
employee’s deferred amounts or investment income because of market conditions or the failure, 
insolvency, or bankruptcy of a qualified vendor. 

The University also administers a Tax-Sheltered Annuity Program created in accordance with 
Internal Revenue Code, Section 403(b).  All employees are eligible to participate.  The Tax-
Sheltered Annuity Program is a private plan, and the deductions, purchased investments, and 
earnings attributed to each employee’s 403(b) plan are held by vendors chosen by the employee.  
The vendors may be insurance companies, banks, or approved non-bank trustees such as mutual 
fund companies. The assets of this plan do not belong   to the University, or the State.  Therefore, 
none of these entities has a liability related to this plan. 

 
Note 15: Donor-Restricted Endowments 

True Endowment Earnings 501,962.22 Restricted for Expendable
501,962.22

Donor-Restricted 
Endowments

Amounts of Net 
Appreciation

Reported in                          
Net Assets

 
The net appreciation (cumulative and unexpended) on earnings from donor-restricted endowments 
presented above is available for authorization and expenditure by Texas Woman’s University for the 
support of students and programs. 

Endowments are established at Texas Woman’s University for the support of students and programs 
in the various colleges and schools.  When initially created, the endowment contract legally 
specifies the purpose of the fund and how investment income is to be distributed.  The University 
restricts the expenditure of the annual income based upon terms of the agreement.  For each 
endowment, a separate scholarship account is established and funded annually by the interest 
income generated from investments of the endowment principal.   

The current University policy for distributions permits annual distributions of up to 5% of a trailing 
five-year average of the investment fund’s total market value.  The University’s policy is based on  
the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (Texas Property Code Chapter 163). 
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Note 16: Post-Employment Health Care and Life Insurance Benefits 

Plan Description.  The University contributes to the State Retiree Health Plan (SRHP), a cost-
sharing multiple-employer defined benefit other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plan administered 
by the Employees Retirement System of Texas (ERS). The SRHP provides healthcare, life, and dental 
insurance benefits to eligible retired employees of the State, including retirees of participating 
universities, as well as to eligible retirees of other entities as specified in statute.  Eligible 
participants generally are retirees who retired with at least 10 years of service to eligible entities.  
The Texas Insurance Code, Chapter 1551, assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit 
provisions to the ERS board of trustees. The ERS issues a publicly available comprehensive annual 
financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for 
SRHP. That report may be obtained by writing to ERS at Employees Retirement System of Texas, 
P.O. Box 13207, Austin, Texas 78711-3207, or from the ERS Web site at www.ers.state.tx.us. 

Funding Policy.  The Legislature determines the amount to be appropriated each biennium for the 
employer’s contribution toward retiree benefit costs.  Currently, for retirees who were state 
employees, the State pays 100 percent of eligible retiree health and basic life insurance premiums 
and 50 percent of dependents’ premiums.  The retiree contributes any premium in excess of the 
employer contribution amount.  Employer contributions do not include the cost of any optional life 
or dental insurance benefits.  The table below summarizes the maximum monthly employer 
contribution toward eligible retirees’ health and basic life premium for fiscal year 2012. 

Level of Coverage Amount ($)
Retiree Only $438 
Retiree and Spouse $689 
Retiree and Children $606 
Retiree and Family $857 

Maximum Monthly Employer Contribution 
for Retiree OPEB

For the fiscal year ended August 31, 2012

 

Contractually required employer contributions to the plan are currently based on the annual pay-
as-you-go expenses of the SRHP.  The University's contributions to SRHP for the years ended August 
31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, included in amounts reported as Payroll Related Costs, were $3,093,239, 
$2,855,273, and $2,562,464 respectively, which equaled the required contributions each year. 

 

Note 17: Disaggregation of Receivable and Payable Balances 

Net Other Receivables Amount
Receivables related to gifts, grants and sponsored programs 2,100,581           
Total Net Other Receivables 2,100,581$         

Net Other Payables Amount
Payables related to students deposits 1,148,897           
Total Net Other Payables 1,148,897$         

Net other receivables at 08/31/12, are detailed by type as follows:

Net other payables at 08/31/12, are detailed by type as follows:

 
 

http://www.ers.state.tx.us/
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Note 18: Termination Benefits 

The University entered into Agreements with 23 employees resulting in termination 
benefits.  These benefits totaled $1,262,270 and were paid in a lump sum payment to each 
employee.  All benefits were paid and expensed during the fiscal year and no additional 
liability extends to future years. 

 







Copies of this report have been distributed to the following: 

Legislative Audit Committee 
The Honorable David Dewhurst, Lieutenant Governor, Joint Chair 
The Honorable Joe Straus III, Speaker of the House, Joint Chair 
The Honorable Thomas “Tommy” Williams, Senate Finance Committee 
The Honorable Jim Pitts, House Appropriations Committee 
The Honorable Harvey Hilderbran, House Ways and Means Committee 

Office of the Governor 
The Honorable Rick Perry, Governor 
 
 



 

This document is not copyrighted.  Readers may make additional copies of this report as 
needed.  In addition, most State Auditor’s Office reports may be downloaded from our Web 
site: www.sao.state.tx.us. 
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, this document may also be requested 
in alternative formats.  To do so, contact our report request line at (512) 936-9500 (Voice), 
(512) 936-9400 (FAX), 1-800-RELAY-TX (TDD), or visit the Robert E. Johnson Building, 1501 
North Congress Avenue, Suite 4.224, Austin, Texas 78701. 
 
The State Auditor’s Office is an equal opportunity employer and does not discriminate on the 
basis of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, or disability in employment or in the 
provision of services, programs, or activities. 
 
To report waste, fraud, or abuse in state government call the SAO Hotline: 1-800-TX-AUDIT. 
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